Public Document Pack

CYNGOR
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr Sir Fflint
Chief Officer (Governance) - . .
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu) Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

To: ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
CS/ING

11 February 2015

Tracy Waters on 01352 702331
tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

Dear Sir / Madam

A meeting of the FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL will be held in the COUNCIL
CHAMBER, COUNTY HALL, MOLD CH7 6NA on TUESDAY, 17TH FEBRUARY,
2015 at 2.00 PM to consider the following items.

Yours faithfully

e

T

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2 COUNCIL MINUTES (Pages 3 - 8)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 27 January
2015.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interests from Members.

4 COMMEMORATION AND TRIBUTES TO THE LATE COUNCILLOR
STELLA JONES

CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS
PETITIONS
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME




11

12

13

14

15

QUESTIONS

To note the answers to any questions submitted in accordance with County
Council Standing Order No. 9.4(A).

NOTICE OF MOTION
COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16 (Pages 9 - 74)

Report of Chief Executive, Chief Officer (People and Resources), Corporate
Finance Manager enclosed.

COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME_2015/16 AND INDICATIVE
FUNDING TO 2018/19 (Pages 75 - 98)

Report of Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Organisational Change), Corporate
Finance Manager enclosed.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2015/16 & CAPITAL PROGRAMME
2015/16 (Pages 99 - 126)

Report of Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise),
Corporate Finance Manager enclosed.

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 - 2017/18 AND REVISION OF 2014/15
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS (Pages 127 - 138)

Report of Corporate Finance Manager enclosed.

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION -2015/16 POLICY (Pages 139 - 148)
Report of Corporate Finance Manager enclosed.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015/16 (Pages 149 - 178)
Report of Corporate Finance Manager enclosed.




76.

77.

78.

Agenda Item 2

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
27 JANUARY 2015

Minutes of the meeting of the Flintshire County Council held at County Hall,
Mold on Tuesday, 27 January 2015

PRESENT: Councillor Glenys Diskin (Chair)

Councillors: Alex Aldridge, Bernie Attridge, Glyn Banks, Haydn Bateman,
Marion Bateman, Chris Bithell, Amanda Bragg, Helen Brown, Derek Butler,
Clive Carver, David Cox, Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, Ron Davies,
Rosetta Dolphin, lan Dunbar, Andy Dunbobbin, Carol Ellis, David Evans, Jim
Falshaw, Veronica Gay, Robin Guest, Alison Halford, Ron Hampson, George
Hardcastle, Ray Hughes, Dennis Hutchinson, Joe Johnson, Rita Johnson,
Christine Jones, Kevin Jones, Colin Legg, Phil Lightfoot, Brian Lloyd, Richard
Lloyd, Mike Lowe, Dave Mackie, Nancy Matthews, Hilary McGuill, Tim
Newhouse, Mike Peers, Vicky Perfect, Neville Phillips, Mike Reece, Gareth
Roberts, David Roney, Tony Sharps, Aaron Shotton, Paul Shotton, Nigel
Steele-Mortimer, Carolyn Thomas, Owen Thomas, David Wisinger and Matt
Wright

APOLOGIES:
Councillors: Alan Diskin, Chris Dolphin, Brian Dunn, Cindy Hinds, Ann
Minshull, Billy Mullin, lan Roberts, lan Smith and Arnold Woolley

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chief Executive, Chief Officer (Community and Enterprise), Democracy and
Governance Manager, Corporate Finance Manager, Finance Manager and
Team Manager — Committee Services

COUNCIL MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2014 had been
circulated with the agenda.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None were received.

CHAIR’S COMMUNICATIONS

A copy of the Chair's communications had been circulated to all
Members before the meeting. The Chair thanked all Members for their well
wishes whilst she had been poorly.

Page 3



79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

The Chair welcomed the Flintshire County Council apprentices who
were in attendance to observe meeting protocol and decision making
processes as part of their studies at Coleg Cambria.

PETITIONS

Councillor Mike Reece submitted a petition from residents objecting to
the installation of speed humps on the High Street in Bagillt.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

The Democracy and Governance Manager confirmed that none had
been received.

QUESTIONS

The Democracy and Governance Manager confirmed that none had
been received.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS ON COMMITTEE MINUTES

The Democracy and Governance Manager confirmed that none had
been received.

NOTICE OF MOTION

The following Notice of Motion had been submitted by Councillor David
Roney:-

“This Council resolves to follow other Councils and other European
Countries in rejecting the European Union (EU) Commission’s Transatlantic
Trade and Investment Partnership (TTIP) scheme, and calls upon the Prime
Minister to use his veto to reject the proposed Treaty in order to protect the
residents and businesses of Flintshire from this threat to any future chance of
ethical and fair trade.

This Council instructs its Chief Executive to write to Flintshire MPs and
AMs to ask for their active support in opposing this scheme”.

The Notice of Motion was formally proposed by Councillor Roney and
seconded by Councillor Peter Curtis.

Councillor Roney detailed the background to the Notice of Motion and
explained that the TTIP was a Treaty being negotiated in secret between the
EU and the United States (US), and it had been specifically engineered to
give multinational companies what they wanted: the dismantling of all social,
consumer and environmental protection and compensation for the companies
for any infringement of their assumed rights.

Page 4



In his view one of the greatest dangers of TTIP was that it would open
up Europe’s Public Health, Education and Water Services to US companies
and it could mean the privatisation of the NHS. He also referred to how TTIP
would open the door for widespread GM foods.

He believed the biggest threat that TTIP brought was Investor-State
Dispute Settlements (ISDS) which allowed unelected companies to sue
governments if those governments’ policies caused the company to lose
profit. Phillip Morris were suing the Australian government for making plain
packaging mandatory — there were suing Uruguay for increasing the size of
the graphic health warnings on cigarette packets.

The litigation was pursued in tribunals knows as ISDS’s. Such an ISDS
agreement was also core to the EU’s planned TTIP agreement and would see
US multinationals sue European governments in such areas as regulating
tobacco, health and safety and quality controls.

He concluded by asking that Members support the Notice of Motion to
protect the people who they represented, and fight to keep TTIP out of the
UK.

Councillor Carolyn Thomas thanked Councillor Roney for the Notice of
Motion and also Councillor Arnold Woolley who had previously circulated
information to all Members.

Councillor Curtis supported the Notice of Motion unconditionally,
concurring that TTIP was a huge threat to the NHS.

The Leader of the Council, Councillor Aaron Shotton, also supported
the Notice of Motion which was a national issue and one which would affect
the residents of Flintshire. He added that he felt certain companies should be
publically owned, such as the energy companies and said if the Prime Minister
signed the proposed Treaty then public ownership of such bodies would
become essentially impossible.

Councillor Derek Butler also spoke in support of the Notice of Motion
citing that the Treaty would greatly affect the rights of workers and the
potential damage to the NHS.

Councillor Bernie Attridge requested a recorded vote and was
supported by the requisite nine other Members. On being put to the vote, the
Notice of Motion was carried.

For the proposal:

Councillors: Alex Aldridge, Bernie Attridge, Glyn Banks, Haydn Bateman,
Marion Bateman, Chris Bithell, Amanda Bragg, Helen Brown, Derek Butler,
David Cox, Paul Cunningham, Peter Curtis, Ron Davies, Glenys Diskin,
Rosetta Dolphin, lan Dunbar, Andy Dunbobbin, Carol Ellis, David Evans,
Veronica Gay, Robin Guest, Ron Hampson, George Hardcastle, Ray Hughes,
Dennis Hutchinson, Joe Johnson, Rita Johnson, Christine Jones, Kevin

Page 5



83.

Jones, Colin

Legg, Phil Lightfoot, Brian Lloyd, Richard Lloyd, Mike Lowe,

Dave Mackie, Nancy Matthews, Hilary McGuill, Tim Newhouse, Mike Peers,
Vicky Perfect, Neville Phillips, Mike Reece, Gareth Roberts, David Roney,

Tony Sharps,

Aaron Shotton, Paul Shotton, Carolyn Thomas, Owen Thomas

and David Wisinger

Against the proposal:
Councillors: Nigel Steele-Mortimer and Matt Wright

Abstentions

Councillors: Clive Carver, Jim Falshaw and Alison Halford

RESOLVED:

That the Notice of Motion be supported.

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME

The Chief Executive introduced the report which explained the
requirement to adopt the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2015/16 by 31
January 2015.

Within
Government

the Regulations made under Schedule 1B of the Local
Finance Act 1992, there was limited discretion given to the

Council to apply additional elements that were more generous than the
national scheme, details of which were outlined in the report. The Council’s
recommended approach to the available discretions were to continue to apply
them as follows:

1.

Not to increase the “extended payment period” to more than four
weeks when an applicant started work. This rule acted as a
good incentive measure under CTRS and it made sense to
maintain it in line with the Housing Benefits (HB) Extended
Payment Rules, which were also set at four weeks. The
projected cost of this measure for 2014/15 was £20,098 and the
approximate cost for 2015/16 would be £20,700.

. To continue to disregard all War Disablement and War Widows

Pensions as income. The projected cost of this measure for
2014/15 was £42,870 and the approximate cost for 2015/16
would be £44,156.

To maintain the standard three month backdating provisions for
working age customers when a good reason for failing to claim
earlier was shown. This reflected the current position with
regard to CTRS and HB. The projected cost of this measure for
2014/15 was £62,502 and the approximate cost for 2015/16
would be £64,377.

Councillor Aaron Shotton moved approval of the recommendations,
which was duly seconded, citing his support for the three discretions as
outlined in the report.

Page 6



84.

85.

RESOLVED:

(@) That the laying of The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (Prescribed
Requirements and Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations
2015 be noted; and

(b)  That the Scheme as set out in 3.02 of the report be adopted and the
recommendations to maintain the discretionary payments be approved.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REPORT 2014/15

The Corporate Finance Manager presented the Treasury Management
Mid-Year Report for 2014/15 for approval and thanked all Members who had
attended the recent Treasury Management training.

The report was considered at Cabinet on 20 January 2015 following the
recommendation of the Audit Committee on 10 December 2014 which
considered the report in detail.

Councillor Aaron Shotton moved approval of the recommendation
which was duly seconded.

Councillor Mike Peers asked for clarification on the interest costs
associated with debt which he said differed from those in previous reports.
The Finance Manager said it was a profiled budget, with more costs being
incurred in the second half of the year than in the first. She confirmed that the
remainder of that budget would be paid in the coming six months bringing the
total paid in line with budget and amounts reported previously. The Chief
Executive added that in future reports, end of year projections and accruals
would be included for ease of reference.

RESOLVED:
That the Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2014/15 be approved.

INABILITY TO ATTEND MEETINGS DUE TO ILLNESS

The Democracy and Governance Manager introduced the report for the
authorisation of temporary absence of Councillor Billy Mullin from attendance
at formal meetings.

Councillor lan Dunbar moved approval of the recommendation which
was duly seconded.

The Chair, on behalf of all Members, sent best wishes to Councillor
Mullin.

Page 7



86.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Mullin’s absence from meetings be approved.

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

There was 1 member of the public and 2 members of the press in
attendance.

(The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 2.35pm)

Chairman

Page 8



Agenda Item 10

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER (PEOPLE AND

RESOURCES, CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Members with the recommendations of the Cabinet for the
Council Fund Revenue Budget 2015/16.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 A report was considered by Cabinet on 16 December 2014 which
presented a first draft of the Council Fund Revenue Budget for
2015/16 for initial approval.

2.02 The Cabinet’s initial budget proposals for 2015/16, which at that stage
identified a budget gap of £1.760m were also referred to Overview
and Scrutiny for consideration.

2.03 Further proposals were presented to Cabinet in January 2015 for
additional efficiencies of £2.848m which were reported in full to the
Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee and shared
with the four service portfolio Overview and Scrutiny Committees at
their respective meetings which were held throughout January which
left a remaining gap of £0.777m.

2.04 The final budget proposals for 2015/16, which show a balanced
position, will be considered by Cabinet in the morning and verbal
feedback will be provided at Council. A copy of this report is attached
as Appendix A.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS
3.01  The recommendations of the Cabinet to County Council are set out in
Section 9 of the report.

3.02  Section 3 provides an update of the details of the proposals for closing
the budget gap and details of the final proposed budget and its
funding are set out in Section 5 of the report.

3.03 Section 6 of the report sets out details of reserves and balances.

Page 9



3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

5.00
5.01
6.00
6.01
7.00
7.01
8.00
8.01
9.00
9.01
10.00
10.01
11.00
11.01

12.00
12.01

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 includes a specific duty
on the Chief Finance Officer to report to the Authority when it is
considering its Budget and Council Tax on the robustness of the
estimates and the adequacy of reserves. Section 7 of the report
provides this statement in detail.

Section 8 of the report provides an update on risk from the Chief
Executive.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Council approves the recommendations of the Cabinet as set
out in Section 9 of the attached report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

As set out in the report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

As set out in the report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

As set out in the report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

As set out in the report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

As set out in the report.
APPENDICES
As set out in the report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary_ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 10



Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER (PEOPLE AND

RESOURCES), CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET _2015/16

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To present the final revenue budget proposals for the Council Fund for
2015/16 for recommendation to Council.

BACKGROUND

The final Local Government Settlement for 2015/16 was published by Welsh
Government on 10 December 2014.

As a consequence of the combined impacts of:-

a reduction in Revenue Support Grant from Welsh Government;
reductions by Welsh Government in specific grants;

no provision within the Settlement for pay and price inflation;

no provision within the Settlement for nationally recognised demand
led and policy led service pressures; and

¢ local service and financing pressures.

a total funding ‘gap’ of £16.4m to be ‘bridged’ for the 2015-16 financial year
was reported to Cabinet on 16 December 2014. As reported to both Cabinet
and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee subsequently
the gap has been increased by £1.865m to £18.265m

The draft budget reported to Cabinet in December presented corporate and
service portfolio efficiencies totalling £12.640m. At that time the remaining
gap to be found stood at £1.760m. This gap has since been increased to
£3.625m

Budget Strategy
As reported to Cabinet on 16 December 2014 the budget strategy developed

for 2015/16 onwards is based on an organisational strategy to reduce costs to
shield and protect local public services.

Page 13



The overall budget is a package of measures and proposals which combine:-

corporate financing options e.g how to manage inflation;
portfolio level business plan proposals;

reviews pressures on portfolio budgets;

maximising income generation;

reviews of workforce numbers and costs;

a review of council tax levels; and

a full review of Reserves and Balances.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

FIRST STAGE OF CLOSING THE BUDGET ‘GAP’

3.01 The ongoing work on developing further efficiencies had produced a set of
further proposals, by the January meeting of Cabinet, to a value of £2.848m,
leaving a remaining gap of £0.777m.

Table 1: Closing the Gap Stage 1

Proposal £m

Procurement Supplier Charging 0.116
Non Standard Inflation Provision Review 0.348
Reduction in Fire and Rescue Authority Levy Provision 0.124
Council Tax Reduction Scheme projected provision 0.130
Central Loans and Investments Reviews 1.830
Workforce Efficiency Projects 0.300
Running Total 2.848
Remaining Gap 0.777

3.02 Table 1A: Proposal Explanations

Procurement Supplier Charging

An income generating opportunity has been identified by applying a
charge to suppliers of the Council for the use of electronic invoicing
software. A charge of £50 p.a. will apply in relation to suppliers who
undertake in excess of £1,000 of business per year.

Non Standard Inflation Review

The draft budget proposals provided for an inflationary increase for energy
(8%), Fuel (6%) and Food (4%), products where inflation has been
running above standard inflation. Due to reducing unit prices, and taking
into account specialist advice, the provision for NSI allocation was first
revised downwards by £0.348m, with a commitment to review further on
the basis of latest advice, prior to the setting of the final budget.

Page 14



Reduction in Fire and Rescue Authority Levy Provision

The draft proposals reported to Cabinet in December provided for an
inflationary increase of 2% on the 2014/15 levy of £0.139m. The annual
budget has been set by the Fire and Rescue Authority. The budget
requires a minimal increase of £0.015m, thereby reducing the required
provision by £0.124m.

Council Tax Reduction Scheme Projected Provision

The draft proposals included an additional amount of £0.308m to reflect
the impact of the annual council tax rise (3% at draft stage) which is not
provided for in the Revenue Support Grant received from Welsh
Government. Current demand levels have been reviewed and the
additional amount required to meet demand is £0.130m less than first
predicted.

Central Loans and Investment Reviews
The additional efficiencies in this complex account are:-

Reprofiling of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP): accounting
principles provide an opportunity to account for the cost of borrowing in
the year after the related asset becomes operational. The draft proposals
provided for this charge in the year that the expenditure was incurred. In
view of the overall financial challenges it is deemed appropriate to take
advantage of this ‘borrowing holiday'.

Interest on borrowing: the required level of borrowing and the timing of
that borrowing is reliant on the Capital Programme set by the Council and
the internal resources available to meet that expenditure. The draft capital
programme and the information arising from the detailed review of
reserves and balances has allowed a review of the amount of borrowing
required, the timing of that borrowing and the types of loans and
associated interest rates.

Impact of the exit from the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy
System (HRAS) exit: arrangements are continuing for the exit of the
Housing Revenue Account Subsidy system by April 2015. The settlement
transaction will be dealt with in line with corporate practice and the revised
apportionment rates will result in a benefit to this account.

Workforce Efficiency Projects

The next phase of the strategy to make further reductions to workforce
costs is under development in consultation with the Trade Unions.
Projects including the “buy back” of annual leave are well advanced.

Page 15




3.03 SECOND STAGE OF CLOSING THE BUDGET ‘GAP’

Changes proposed by Cabinet to the following efficiencies as a consequence
of the challenge and suggestions made by Overview and Scrutiny are listed
below:-

Table 2: Responding to the Challenges from Overview and Scrutiny

Housing: Portfolio: Response Service Out of Hours

Amended proposal to withdraw the charging proposals (budget pressure of
£20K)

Life Long Learning Portfolio: Let’'s Walk Cymru

Amended proposal to include a transitional grant of £7.5k for Walkabout
Flintshire pending agreement of a longer term plan (budget pressure of
£7.5k)

Corporate Resources: Switchboard and Contact Centre Services

Amended proposal to phase implementation of call handling systems
changes (budget pressure of £40k)

Corporate Resources: Post Office Counter Payments Options

Amended proposal to defer implementation of the payments option to
assist vulnerable clients with an alternative personalised payment option
and budgeting advice (budget pressure of £7.5k)

3.04 Summary of Balancing Position

Table 3: Table 1: Closing the Gap Stage 2 to Balance the Budget

£m
Remaining “Gap” (as per Table 2) 0.777
Revisions following Overview & Scrutiny Challenge 0.075
(3.04)

_Revised “Gap” | 0852
Reduction of NSI (3.05) (0.197)
Council Tax at 3.75% (Net of CTRS Impact) (3.06) (0.385)
Use of Reserves (3.07) (0.270)

_Balance ' i 0

Page 16




4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the Cabinet makes the following recommendations to County Council on
17 February 2015:-

1. the 2015/16 Council Fund Revenue Budget Requirement to be set at
£249.979m (which is £1.827m below its calculated Standard Spending
Assessment) (5.02)

2. there be a 3.75% increase in Council Tax at Band D and an assumed 99%
collection rate (5.02)

3. inclusion of the Outcome Agreement Grant of £1.479m in the budget
(5.03)

4. acceptance of the levels of inflation assumed in the budget (5.04 — 5.06)
5. acceptance of the amounts for transfers in and out of the settlement (5.07)
6. inclusion of £2.853m of recurring pressures in the budget (5.08)

7. inclusion of £0.730m of one-off costs to be funded from Reserves (5.09)
8. inclusion of efficiencies of £12.874m in the budget (5.10)

9. The use of reserves to fund transitional funding of £0.270m pending the
identification of additional efficiencies (5.11)

10. the contingency reserve be maintained and its use considered in the
context of the overall medium term financial plan for 2015/16 and future years
(6.03)

Page 17



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER (PEOPLE AND
RESOURCES), CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER
SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.01 To present the final revenue budget proposals for the Council Fund for
2015/16 for recommendation to Council.
2.00 BACKGROUND
2.01 The final Local Government Settlement for 2015/16 was published by Welsh
Government on 10 December 2014 following a period of consultation during
which Flintshire made representations over the risks to local services being
caused by continued annual reductions in revenue and capital support for
local government.
2.02 As a consequence of the combined impacts of:-
e a reduction in Revenue Support Grant from Welsh Government;
e reductions by Welsh Government in specific grants;
e no provision within the Settlement for pay and price inflation;
e no provision within the Settlement for nationally recognised demand
led and policy led service pressures; and
¢ local service and financing pressures
a total funding ‘gap’ of £16.4m to be ‘bridged’ for the 2015-16 financial year
was reported to Cabinet on 16 December 2014. As reported to both Cabinet
and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee subsequently
the gap has been increased by £1.865m to £18.265m as a consequence of
the adjustments made to the efficiency targets set for achieving reductions in
workforce costs (based on targets for reductions in workforce numbers) as
part of the 2014-15 budget and the minor impact of the final settlement.
2.03 The draft budget reported to Cabinet in December presented corporate and

service portfolio efficiencies totalling £12.640m. At that time the remaining
gap to be found stood at £1.760m. This gap, which has since been increased
to £3.625m with the adjustments to efficiency targets through workforce
reductions, was to be bridged through a combination of:-

e corporate financing options e.g central loans and investments and

Page 18



2.04

inflation provision;
e income levels including Council Tax;
e further specific workforce efficiencies; and
¢ further service efficiencies.

Budget Strategy

As reported to Cabinet on 16 December 2014 the budget strategy developed
for 2015/16 onwards is based on an organisational strategy to reduce costs to
shield and protect local public services. Whilst building and capitalising upon
the efficiency programmes in being from earlier years, it was recognised that
the renewed strategy had to be more ambitious due to the scale of the
financial challenge. The strategy was built on the four pillars of ‘corporate’ or
whole council efficiencies, ‘functional’ or within service efficiencies,
organisational redesign on management structures based on a new
‘operating model’, and workforce efficiencies through phased reductions in
the number of people we employ.

The principles which underpinned this strategy, as set out in the Council's
Medium Term Financial Strategy for the period 2013-2017, have been
followed through:-

planning for the long-term as a whole organisation;

making decisions for local public services which can be sustained;
being ambitious and positive about change to better the organisation;
having a clear philosophy underpinned by social values; and
managing the transition from the current to the future with care.

The twin objectives of these programmes of change and cost reduction have
been and remain as:-

e maximising the financial efficiency of the organisation and prioritising
our resources; and

e modernising the organisation to be lean, productive, efficient, resilient
and high performing.

Whilst the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is under review alongside the
developing budget for 2015/16, with the purpose of re-forecasting the
changing budget assumptions for future years and realigning our
organisational strategy to suit, the principles and objectives within stand fast.
This Cabinet led review will be reported upon, and shared with Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee, in April/May.

The continued organisational change strategy from 2014-15 and a series of
fundamental business plan reviews across each new Chief Officer portfolio
form the basis of the renewed financial strategy for 2015-16 and future years.
Chief Officers and their operational teams have been set the challenge of
working to a collective budget savings target of up to 30% of total Council
resources up to 2017/18. The business planning approach, which has

Page 19



3.00

3.01

challenged priorities, models of service design and delivery, base budget
allocations, value for money, income and cost recovery for services and
management and workforce structures and cost, has generated the proposals
listed in the appendices to this report.

The overall budget is a package of measures and proposals which combine:-

corporate financing options e.g how to manage inflation;
portfolio level business plan proposals;

review of pressures on portfolio budgets;

maximising income generation;

reviews of workforce numbers and costs;

a review of council tax levels; and

a full review of Reserves and Balances.

The MTFP and the Improvement Plan of the Council set out ambition for
alternative ways of working and alternative service delivery models, some of
which will be new to Flintshire. A number of the budget proposals for this and
later budgets are based on creative and ambitious ideas for community
ownership of assets, community and social enterprise, commissioning and
trading, and more extensive collaboration. Within the budget are the seeds of
new ways of working described in the new Council operating model, the
MTFP and the Improvement Plan.

CONSIDERATIONS

FIRST STAGE OF CLOSING THE BUDGET “GAP”

The ongoing work on developing further efficiencies within the four areas
listed in 2.03 above had produced a set of further proposals, by the January
meeting of Cabinet, to a value of £2.848m, leaving a remaining gap of
£0.777m. These further efficiencies, which are shown in the table below, were
reported in full to the special budget meeting of the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 22 January 2015 and have been
explained to the four service portfolio Overview and Scrutiny Committees at
their respective special budget review meetings held on 23 and 26 January
2015.

Table 1: Closing the Gap Stage 1

Proposal £m

Procurement Supplier Charging 0.116
Non Standard Inflation Provision Review 0.348
Reduction in Fire and Rescue Authority Levy Provision 0.124
Council Tax Reduction Scheme projected provision 0.130
Central Loans and Investments Reviews 1.830
Workforce Efficiency Projects 0.300
Running Total 2.848
Remaining Gap 0.777

Page 20



3.02 The six proposals set out in the table above are explained in more detail
below :-

Table 1A: Proposal Explanations

Procurement Supplier Charging

An income generating opportunity has been identified by applying a
charge to suppliers of the Council for the use of electronic invoicing
software. A charge of £50 p.a. will apply to suppliers who undertake in
excess of £1,000 of business per year.

Non Standard Inflation Review (NSI)

The draft budget proposals provided for an inflationary increase for energy
(8%), Fuel (6%) and Food (4%), products where inflation has been
running above standard inflation. Due to reducing unit prices, and taking
into account specialist advice, the provision for NSI| allocation was first
revised downwards by £0.348m, with a commitment to review further on
the basis of latest advice, prior to the setting of the final budget.

Reduction in Fire and Rescue Authority Levy Provision

The draft proposals reported to Cabinet in December provided for an
inflationary increase of 2% on the 2014/15 levy of £0.139m. The annual
budget has been set by the Fire and Rescue Authority. The budget
requires a minimal increase of £0.015m, thereby reducing the required
provision by £0.124m.

Council Tax Reduction Scheme Projected Provision

The draft proposals included an additional amount of £0.308m to reflect
the impact of the annual council tax rise (3% at draft stage) which is not
provided for in the Revenue Support Grant received from Welsh
Government. Current demand levels have been reviewed and the
additional amount required to meet demand is £0.130m less than first
predicted.

Central Loans and Investment Reviews
The additional efficiencies in this complex account are:-

Reprofiling of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP): accounting
principles provide an opportunity to account for the cost of borrowing in
the year after the asset for which the borrowing is incurred becomes
operational. The original budget proposals provided for this charge in the
year that the expenditure was incurred. A rescheduling of borrowing is
proposed which defers making some significant capital payments for two
financial years.

Page 21



3.03

3.04

Interest on borrowing: the required level of borrowing and the timing of
that borrowing is reliant on the Capital Programme set by the Council and
the internal resources available to meet that expenditure. The draft capital
programme and the information arising from the detailed review of
reserves and balances has allowed a review of the amount of borrowing
required, the timing of that borrowing and the types of loans and
associated interest rates.

Impact of the exit from the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy
System (HRAS): arrangements are continuing for the exit of the Housing
Revenue Account Subsidy system by April 2015. The settlement
transaction will be dealt with in line with corporate practice and the revised
apportionment rates will result in a net benefit to this account.

Workforce Efficiency Projects

The next phase of the strategy to make further reductions to workforce
costs is under development in consultation with the Trade Unions.
Projects, including the “buy back” of annual leave, are well advanced.

SECOND STAGE OF CLOSING THE BUDGET ‘GAP’

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been given an assurance that
further service efficiencies, over and above those which have been presented
and scrutinised through the budget preparation process, would only be
considered as a last resort. This limits the options to bridge the remaining gap
of £0.777m and achieve a balanced budget. The options which remain are a
further review of Non Standard Inflation, the Council Tax precepting level, and
drawing upon reserves and balances.

Responding to the Challenges from Overview and Scrutiny

At the closing budget review meeting of Corporate Resources Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (to which all members were invited) the Chief Officers
and Cabinet members summarised the main challenges from the Overview
and Scrutiny Committees on itemised budget proposals, and gave an initial
response.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been provided with the
summary feedback from the first phase of the public ‘Big Budget
Conversation’ held in August and September 2014 and the full unedited
feedback from the second phase of this information and consultation exercise
held from December 2014 to January 2015. The first phase consultation was
based on the general financial position and the actions the council could take
to manage its reducing finances; the second on the specific draft budget
proposals of the Cabinet published in December 2014. The Committees
were encouraged to draw upon the feedback in examining the budget
proposals.

Page 22



3.05

The attention of the public was drawn to the specific proposals where there
will be some public impact, as opposed to the proposals which are to be
achieved from internal change without any impact. There has been a strong
alignment between the proposals selected by the public for feedback and
those which members have chosen to examine from the beginning of the
internal consultation process in October 2014. Therefore, the questions and
concerns of the public have been well tested by members as part of the
democratic process.

Changes proposed by Cabinet to the following efficiencies as a consequence
of the challenge and suggestions made by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee will be presented in full at the Cabinet meeting, and will have an
impact on the budget ‘gap’ as summarised above:-

Table 2: Responding to the Challenges from Overview and Scrutiny

Housing: Portfolio: Response Service Out of Hours

Amended proposal to withdraw the charging proposals (budget pressure of
£20K)

Life Long Learning Portfolio: Let’'s Walk Cymru

Amended proposal to include a transitional grant of £7.5k for Walkabout

Flintshire pending agreement of a longer term plan (budget pressure of
£7.5k)

Corporate Resources: Switchboard and Contact Centre Services

Amended proposal to phase implementation of call handling systems
changes (budget pressure of £40k)

Corporate Resources: Post Office Counter Payments Options

Amended proposal to defer implementation of the payments option to
assist vulnerable clients with an alternative personalised payment option
and budgeting advice (budget pressure of £7.5k)

The combined effect of these amendments is a pressure of £75k which would
increase the remaining budget ‘gap’, as its stands at 3.01, to £852k.

Review of Non Standard Inflation (NSI)

As also discussed at the budget review meeting of the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee the need to set aside any provision for Non
Standard Inflation (NSI) has been re-reviewed. Specific market intelligence
on energy (Crown Commercial Services, UES Energy) has identified that gas
prices are currently predicted to stay at a similar level to 2014/15 with the

Page 23



3.06

3.07

potential for a small reduction, whilst electricity is likely to increase slightly
due to electricity market reforms which is likely to increase the standing
charges within bills between 2% - 3% although the energy supply cost is is
forecast to remain similar to current levels.

Market intelligence within the food markets (Tuco Ltd, Procurement Partner)
indicates that some food groups (fish, pasta, canned groceries) may be
subject to an increase of between 0.5% and 3% though there is likely to be
stability within other food groups. Inflation on food is considered to be the
area of greatest risk in 2015/16; therefore an allocation of £0.064m will be
maintained and held centrally within the budget.

NSI provision is set aside to support services which are exposed to higher
than normal annual inflationary pressures in procuring fuel, energy and food
supplies. Over and above the £0.348m proposed to be withdrawn as an
efficiency in the table in 3.01, a provision of £0.261m still remains in the draft
budget. On the basis of the review this amount is recommended to be
reduced to £0.064m with the remaining £0.197m contributing to a further
efficiency to reduce the remaining reported budget gap. The reduction of NSI
is considered low risk although it will be closely monitored as an in-year risk
with any financial pressure caused by a reverse in the deflationary market
trends to be met corporately in-year should it arise.

Review of Council Tax Level

Following a review of Council Tax levels and taking account of the overall
remaining budget gap the proposed Council Tax level for 2015/16 is an
increase of 3.75% which equates to an increase of £37.06 on the Band D rate
raising the annual amount to £1,025.27. The Council Tax rate at 0.75%
above the working assumption within the original budget proposals has the
effect of reducing the budget gap by a net £0.385m after taking account of the
corresponding increase in the Council Tax Reduction Scheme.

Reserves and Balances

Councils can draw on reserves and balances to help balance their annual
budget. This is an option which Flintshire has generally avoided in recent
years. Whilst a lawful option, provided that there are sufficient uncommitted
reserves available, this practice poses risks. Whereas reserves can only be
used once, the annual efficiency to be funded by them recurs year on year
and would have to be funded through a different solution in each and every
financial year which follows. A modest use of reserves and balances could be
a part of the solution to closing the remaining budget gap, noting that the
Council has only limited uncommitted reserves and balances with other
demands upon them. These demands include the ongoing need to meet the
redundancy and other exit costs of employees leaving the organisation under
our ongoing programme to reduce workforce numbers, and service pressures
which emerge in-year once the budget has been set. Taking into account the
adjustments proposed in 3.04 — 3.06 there is still a remaining gap of £0.270m
and it is proposed that this is met from transitional funding by way of the

Page 24



3.08

3.09

3.10

utilisation of reserves.
Summary of Balancing Position

Table 3: Closing the Gap Stage 2 to Balance the Budget

E | £m
Remaining “Gap” (as per Table 1) 0.777
Revisions following Overview & Scrutiny Challenge 0.075
(3.04)

Revised “Gap” | 0.852
Reduction of NSI (3.05) (0.197)
Council Tax at 3.75% (Net of CTRS Impact) (3.06) (0.385)
Use of Reserves (3.07) (0.270)

_Balance 1 0

Implementation of the Budget Efficiencies

The Council has developed processes for the in-year tracking and reporting
on the progress of implementing agreed efficiencies in recent years. Given
the growing scale of the annual efficiency programme, and the reducing
financial flexibility to accommodate any significant in-year under-achievement
in efficiency targets, these processes need to be strengthened. Actions will
include extended programme management arrangements, more consistent
use of the corporate model for project management, internal escalation of
risks for resolution, and higher profile reporting of the higher risk efficiency
proposals to members. As proposed by the Corporate Resources Overview
and Scrutiny Committee all higher risk efficiency proposals of a significant
financial value will be featured in the monthly budget monitoring report (which
is reported to both Cabinet and Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee). The implementation of specific service change proposals of
significance and/or risk can also be reviewed by the respective Overview and
Scrutiny Committees, at their request, as part of the forward work
programming.

As discussed at the second and closing budget meeting of the Corporate
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the achievement of a number
of itemised budget efficiencies will be dependent on the completion of service
reviews and the adoption of their outcomes by Cabinet, with the input of
Overview and Scrutiny. These reviews are Day Care Services, Car Parking
Strategy, Transportation, Highway Winter Maintenance, Part Night Street
Lighting, and Household Recycling Centres. In recommending these
proposals Cabinet has a policy intent to implement change once these
reviews are completed and reported. It is important that Council supports the
policy intent and accept that the outcomes of the reviews will need to be
‘sized’ to meet the efficiency targets set for each.

Page 25



3.11

3.12

4.00

Schools Budget

The budget report to Cabinet on 16 December 2014 provided details on the
impact of the proposed budget on schools. There have been no further
changes made to the schools budget and the budget has been set at an
overall increase of 0.6% in line with national expectations of protecting
investment in schools. Welsh Government has been notified of the schools
budget for 2015/16 in line with the statutory deadline of 14 February 2015.

Medium Term Financial Planning

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is being reviewed thoroughly to (1)
forecast the financial resources to be available to the Council during the
period 2015-16 to 2017-18, and the budget pressures, based on the best
available intelligence and (2) project the collective efficiency targets to be set
to enable the corporate and portfolio targets to be re-set. The MTFP will set
the context for the next stage of developing, agreeing and implementing the
organisational strategy for the next three years. For the second part of this
critical work the starting point will be the review of the new three year
business plans for each service, for which the 2015-16 financial year is the
first year of implementation.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

Following on from the Council's Big Budget Conversation held during August
and September, the Council's budget proposals were published on 18
December 2014 and were open for public feedback for a four week period.

In meeting its duties to assess the potential equality impact of its budget
proposals the Council facilitated an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
workshop on the evening of Monday 5 January 2014. The purpose of the
workshop was to look at Category 2 and 3 proposals (those with lower and
higher direct public impact) and discuss what potential they had to specifically
impact on any of the 9 protected characteristic groups and the Welsh
Language.

Those proposals, where it was felt there was potential to impact on people to
whom the Council owes an equality duty, have also been subject to specific
ElAs and consultations have been undertaken, or are in progress, with those
people most impacted.

A summary report of the public feedback and EIA workshop is attached at
Appendix 9. As reported in 3.04 the public feedback has been shared with all
members and the Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been invited to
draw upon the feedback in scrutinising the budget proposals.

Page 26



5.00 SUMMARY OF FINAL BUDGET PROPOSALS AND ASSUMPTIONS

5.01 As a result of the changes outlined above, total expenditure and funding now
equates to £287.605m and the total budget build up is outlined below. Details
of the figures making up the total budget are attached in appendices 1 - 7.

Summary Position

Proposed Budget 2015/16

Funding £m
Aggregate External Funding (AEF)/RSG NNDR 186.419
Council Tax 63.560
SSA/Budget Requirement 249.979
Specific Grants (Estimated) 35.147
Outcome Agreement Grant (Estimated) 1.479
Use of Reserves — Investment Strategy 0.730
Use of Reserves — Transitional Funding 0.270
Total Funding 287.605

Expenditure

Base Budget Rolled Forward 296.945
Prior Year Budget Decisions (Appendix 1) (1.657)
Inflation (Appendix 2) 1.573
Transfers in/out of the settlement (Appendix 3) 0.406
Pressures & Investments Recurring (Appendix 4) 2.853
Pressures & Investments One off (Appendix 5) 0.730
Efficiencies — Business Planning (Appendix 6) (12.874)
Less Specific Grants 2014/15 (35.518)
Plus Specific Grants 2015/16 (Estimated Appendix 7) 35.147
Total Expenditure 287.605

Page 27



5.02

5.03

5.04

5.056

5.06

5.07

5.08

Income

The budget proposals in this report set a budget requirement of £249.979m
which is an amount of £1.827m below the calculated Standard Spending
Assessment (SSA). At this level of spend, the increase on the Band D
Council Tax Rate (excluding Police and Town/Community Councils’ precepts)
is 3.75%. This equates to an increase of £37.06 on 2014/15 and a Band D
rate of £1,025.27. The Council Tax system in Wales contains nine property
bands ranging from Band A to Band |. In order to ensure consistency
between councils when reporting Council Tax information it is agreed practice
that all related information is expressed in terms of Band D equivalents.

The amount of the Outcome Agreement Grant available for 2015/16 has been
advised by Welsh Government. As always the achievement of this is subject
to assessment against agreed performance. The Council has been
successful in achieving 100% of its grant in previous years and full grant
achievement has been assumed for 2015/16.

Expenditure

Inflation

Pay and Price Inflation of £1.573m is included in the budget proposals as
detailed in Appendix 2. The proposals include pay inflation at 1% for
increases on pay from April 2015 which is sufficient to meet the outcome of
the nationally negotiated agreement. Price Inflation of £0.421m has only
been included for some targeted service areas at levels where this has been
judged as essential.

As shown in 3.05, for 2015/16 it is recommended that a risk based approach
be taken to Non Standard Inflation for energy, food and fuel. As such there
will remain a small provision for inflation on food supply procurement only of
£0.064m to recognise the risks within the market and this will be monitored
throughout the financial year as part of the Corporate risk process. A small
amount of Non Standard Inflation (£0.038m) also remains to meet increases
in Non domestic rates (NNDR).

Inflation of 3% amounting to £0.254m has been generally assumed on the
yield from existing fees and charges.

The final settlement included various transfers in and out of the settlement
and, following an assessment of the local impact for Flintshire, the relevant
amount of funding has either been “passported” to (for transfers in) or taken
from (for transfers out) the service concerned as detailed in appendix 3.

Appendix 4 sets out the recurring pressures and investment of £2.853m

recommended for inclusion in the 2015/16 budget. These now include the
unachieved workforce efficiencies remaining from the 2014/15 budget.

Page 28



5.09

5.10

5.11

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

Appendix 5 details one-off costs of £0.730m associated with the achievement
of efficiencies included in the budget which will be funded from the reserves
identified as being available following the extensive review of historical
reserves and balances.

Appendix 6 sets out the efficiencies, totalling £12.874m, recommended for
inclusion in the budget. This now includes the additional efficiencies
identified from Central and Corporate Budgets as part of the Strategy to close
the budget “gap” as identified in 3.02

Transitional Funding

As part of the final balancing budget strategy, there is a requirement to
contribute a temporary amount of £0.270m from reserves pending the
identification of further efficiencies in-year. This is considered a reasonable
strategy due to the relatively modest amount required and the fact that there
are sufficient reserves available to meet it.

UNEARMARKED BALANCES AND EARMARKED RESERVES
Base Level of Unearmarked Reserves

The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy confirms the Council's
commitment of maintaining a base level of reserves of 2% of turnover. The
current base level of reserves is £5.769m as reported in monthly budget
monitoring reports. Despite the fact that funding has reduced in 2015/16 over
2014/15 it is proposed that unearmarked reserves are maintained at the
same level for 2015/16 which will provide an additional safeguard in the
current uncertain financial climate.

Contingency Reserve

When the 2014/15 budget was set the Contingency Reserve was estimated
to be £3.709m at 31 March 2014. As a result of the net underspend reported
in the final outturn for 2013/14 the actual amount in the Contingency Reserve
at the year end was £5.328m.

The monthly budget monitoring report has provided updates on the
movements on the reserve and the Month 8 monitoring report (also on this
agenda) shows an estimated balance of £3.955m in the contingency reserve
as at 31 March 2015. It is recommended that this reserve is retained and its
use considered within the context of the overall medium term financial plan
for 2015/16 and future years.

Whilst the base level of reserves is a known sum which is set aside, the level

of contingency reserve is based on the current estimate and is subject to
change at the end of the financial year.

Page 29



6.05

6.06

7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

Review of Reserves and Balances

As part of its budget strategy, a critical review and challenge of all reserves
and balances held by the Council was undertaken to ensure that all balances
were still required for the intended purpose and for the same amount. The
aim of this review was to maximise the amount of one off funding available for
use in relation to future investment costs. The outcome of this work has
identified £1.138m of reserves and balances that have been released with no
direct risk or impact on service levels.

Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Council Fund Earmarked Reserves include service balances, corporate
balances and schools balances.

Service balances are made up of those balances held by departments which
Cabinet has agreed can be carried forward. Corporate Balances are held to
meet commitments which fall in future years on specific items of expenditure.

The Council also holds Specific Reserves which are set aside for a specific
future service.

Appendix 8 details the estimated closing balances for 2014/15 and 2015/16 in
respect of all reserves and balances. The Section 151 Officer is satisfied that
the level of these reserves is appropriate (see also Section 6 below)

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER REPORT ON ESTIMATES AND RESERVES

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 includes a specific duty on the
Chief Finance Officer (for Flintshire this is the Corporate Finance Manager) to
report to the Council when it is considering its budget and Council Tax setting
on the robustness of the estimates and the adequacy of reserves. The Act
requires the Council to have regard to this report in making its decisions in
relation to the budget.

The 2015/16 budget has been set within the context of the Medium Term
Financial Plan and continues to recognise a significant reduction in the
funding available to the Council from Welsh Government (3.4% for 2015/16).
The Council's budget strategy for dealing with this significant financial
challenge, which is based on it's organisational strategy, has been set out in
detail for members in previous budget reports and at the member drop in
sessions and various overview and scrutiny meetings.

The Council's overall level of reserves and balances is reviewed annually as
part of the budget process. However, to ensure that the Council was best
positioned to respond to the scale of the financial challenges it faces for
2015/16, it was important for me to ensure that this review was undertaken in
greater detail and with more challenge than in previous years. This was done
with a view to maximising the level of resources available to contribute to
current and future funding requirements and the outcome of this review

Page 30



7.04

7.05

7.06

8.00

8.01

8.02

8.03

resulted in an amount of £1.138m being made available as previously
reported.

Details of all the Council's earmarked reserves were also sent in a letter to
the Minister for Public Services following a request made to all Welsh
councils. The letter also included details of the Council's strategy for dealing
with and utilising its reserves and a copy of this letter was sent to members
attending the budget review overview and scrutiny session on 30" January
2015.

Supported by the above, | can confirm the reasonableness of the estimates
contained in the proposed budget, having regard to the Council's spending
needs in 2015/16 and the financial context within which the budget is being
set. Inevitably in managing a budget of this scale across a large and diverse
organisation variances will occur, but | believe that the budget assumptions
represent a measured and acceptable level of risk. A robust programme for
the delivery of the £12.874m of efficiencies within the budget and to the
timescales anticipated is essential together with effective and disciplined in-
year financial management that will assist with ensuring that budgets are
managed effectively and prompt action taken to mitigate any impacts should
variances occur.

Within the context described above, | recommend that the Council should
maintain the level of general balances of £5.769m which will safeguard its
position and also enable it to plan ahead to meet future financial challenges
as set out in the Medium Term Financial Plan. The level of earmarked
reserves and balances is set out in Appendix 8.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT ON RISK

The budget strategy for 2015/16 has been a major challenge for the
organisation with diminishing options being available year on year to secure
organisational efficiencies, following successive years of significant
reductions to Council budgets. The budget for 2015/16 relies on a
combination of the continued implementation of the organisational change
programme and the service-level efficiencies derived from the new Chief
Office portfolio service business plans.

The Council needs to be satisfied that these levels of financial efficiency are
achievable (1) based on the risk-assessed plans shared with members and
(2) in proportion to the overall budget.

There is a sufficient level of confidence that the efficiency targets are
achievable provided that the organisation improves its systems for
programme to co-ordinate, track and review the implementation of budget
plans in each portfolio. A number of specific budget proposals are subject to
the completion of reviews and the adoption of their outcomes as set out in
3.10.

Page 31



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Cabinet makes the following recommendations to County Council on
17 February 2015:-

1. the 2015/16 Council Fund Revenue Budget Requirement to be set at
£249.979m (which is £1.827m below its calculated Standard Spending
Assessment) (5.02)

2. there be a 3.75% increase in Council Tax at Band D and an assumed 99%
collection rate (5.02)

3. inclusion of the Outcome Agreement Grant of £1.479m in the budget
(5.03)

4. acceptance of the levels of inflation assumed in the budget (5.04 — 5.06)
5. acceptance of the amounts for transfers in and out of the settlement (5.07)
6. inclusion of £2.853m of recurring pressures in the budget (5.08)

7. inclusion of £0.730m of one-off costs to be funded from Reserves (5.09)
8. inclusion of efficiencies of £12.874m in the budget (5.10)

9. the use of reserves to fund transitional funding of £0.270m pending the
identification of additional efficiencies (5.11)

10. the contingency reserve be maintained and its use considered in the
context of the overall medium term financial plan for 2015/16 and future years
(6.03)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in detail in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

As part of the ElAs impacts on poverty have been raised and will be
considered by services at the point of developing the detail around the
proposals for implementation.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The impact of the proposals on the 9 protected characteristics and the Welsh
language have been assessed by means of an EIA workshop. Further

Page 32



14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

16.00

16.01

specific EIA's have also been undertaken, or are in progress, on those
proposals where it was felt there was potential for impact. See section 4
above and Appendix 9. These will be considered by services at the point of
developing the detail around the proposals for implementation.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Continued workforce reductions are proposed within the portfolio business
plans which generate the proposed budget efficiencies. Specific workforce
efficiency projects with a value of £0.300m are in negotiation with the Trade
Unions.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Consultation Required

Formal consultation on workforce proposals will be set out in the detailed
plans and timescales of the workforce programme and in accordance with
statutory requirements and Council policy. The requirement for further
consultation on those proposals where there is a direct public impact will be
subject to ongoing review.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

The budget proposals have been published and were open to public feedback
from 18 December 2014 to 11 January 2015.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) workshop, attended by
representatives from older age groups; disability groups; the Welsh language;
people from a black and minority background; Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and
Transgender (LGBT) groups; Trade Unions and other groups representing all
protected characteristics such as North Wales Regional Equality Network was
held on the evening of Monday 5 January 2015.

Consultations and EIA's have been undertaken, or are in progress, on a
number of specific proposals to ensure there is no discrimination or
disadvantage.

The Council's Overview and Scrutiny Committees met on the dates below to
debate the budget proposals and consider the public feedback and EIA
findings:-

Corporate Resources - 22 January

Housing - 23 January

Environment - 23 January

Social & Health Care - 26 January

Lifelong Learning - 26 January

Corporate Resources (open invitation for all members) - 30 January

Page 33



17.00

17.01

The School Budget Forum has received updates on an ongoing basis
throughout this process and formal consultation has now been completed.

Consultation with Business Ratepayers has been undertaken with Flintshire's
largest businesses and representative trade and business organisations.

Dialogue and information sharing has been a regular feature of the ongoing
process and formal consultation has now been completed with the FJTUC.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Prior Year Budget Decisions

Appendix 2 — Inflation

Appendix 3 — Transfers in/out of the Settlement

Appendix 4 — Pressures and Investments — Recurring

Appendix 5 — Pressures and Investments — One-Off

Appendix 6 — Efficiencies

Appendix 7 — Specific Grants

Appendix 8 — Reserves

Appendix 9 - Summary Report of Public Feedback and EIA Workshop

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:  Gary Ferguson
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary_ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 34



Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / Items Dropping Out

Appendix 1

2015/16 2016/17
£m £m

APPROVED 2013/14 BUDGET
Social Services
Transition to Adulthood 1.239

1.239
Streetscene & Transportation
Loss of Car Park Income (0.002)
Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) -rephasing of full implementatic 0.225

0.223
Education & Youth
Free School Meals - increased demand 0.003
Review of Denominational transport provision (0.030)

(0.027)

Council Wide
Revised Effect of Prudential Borrowing costs for agreed Capital Projects
(change due to revised interest rates and receipt of grant funding) 0.916

0.916
Corporate Services
Income reduction - Vacation of former Council Offices , Ewloe 0.000 0.399

0.000 0.399
TOTAL 2013/2014 2.351 0.399
APPROVED 2014/15 BUDGET
Social Services
Independent Living Fund (ILF) estimate of RSG transfer 0.338 0.112
Transition to Adulthood 0.000 0.700
Funtional VFM's
Learning Disabilities — Short Term Care (0.012) (0.013)
Learning Disabilities — Enhanced Community Residential Services (0.006) 0.000
Childrens Services - Accommodation Efficiencies (0.018) 0.000
Social Services for Adults — Direct Payments (0.024) (0.024)
Social Services for Adults — structural realignment (0.032) 0.000
Development and Resources - income (0.030) 0.000
Social Services for Adults — Assets (0.023) 0.000
Housing — Community Support Services (0.018) 0.000

0.175 0.775
Planning & Environment
Funtional VFM's
Public Protection and Planning (0.042) 0.000

(0.042) 0.000

Page 35



Appendix 1

Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue

Previous Years' Growth / Items Dropping Out

2015/16 2016/17

£m £m
Streetscene & Transportation
Landfill Tax - increase cost per tonnage 0.292 0.053
Funtional VFM's
Streetscene & Assets Transportation — Highways Related Services (0.075) 0.000
0.217 0.053
Education & Youth
Remission Payments for School meals, trips & uniforms 0.025 0.025
Corporate VFM Procurement 0.002 0.000
Funtional VFM's
Youth and Community services (0.046) 0.000
Inclusion Services (0.218) 0.000
Library Service 0.001 0.000
(0.236) 0.025
Governance
Chief Executive and Democratic Services - Review of support (0.110) 0.000
(0.110) 0.000
Central & Corporate
Impact of Actuarial Valuation 1.747 1.504
Single Status Agreement 0.000 5.801
Workforce Organisational Redesign (0.550) 0.000
1.197 7.305
Review of 2012/13 - Social Care Variance (0.409) 0.000
(0.409) 0.000
TOTAL 2014/2015 0.792 8.158
ONE OFF AND TIME-LIMITED PRESSURES
Investment Costs Dropping Out (4.800)
(4.800)
TOTAL ONE OFF AND TIME-LIMITED PRESSURES (4.800)
TOTAL PREVIOUS YEARS ITEMS (1.657) 8.557

Page 36



Appendix 2

Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue
Inflation
£m £m
Pay
Pay Inflation from April 2015 (1%) 1.304
1.304
Price
Targeted General Price Inflation 0.421
0.421
Non Standard
Food - (2%) 0.064
NNDR - (2%) 0.038
0.102
Income
Income - (3%) 0.254
0.254
Total Inflation 1.573

Page 37



Provisional Settlement 2015/16
Transfers in:

21st Century Schools (LGBI)
Integrated Family Support Services
Autistic Spectrum Disorder

Total Transfers in

Transfers out:
Student Finance Wales
Food Safety Controls
National Adoption Service

Total Transfers out

Net effect

Page 38

Appendix 3

£m £m
0.376
0.144
0.040
0.560
(0.120)
(0.022)
(0.012)
(0.154)
0.406



Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue

Pressures & Investments

Social Services

Transition

Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
Total Social Services

Streetscene & Transportation
Foodwaste rate increase

Tipping Fee increase

Total Streetscene & Transportation

Planning & Environment
Landfill aftercare provision

Gas Engine Income

Total Planning & Environment

Education & Youth
Teachers Pension Increase
School Modernisation

Greenfield Valley trust contribution to Lottery Funding

Total Education & Youth

Community & Enterprise
Impact of CT increase on CTRS
Total Community & Enterprise

Governance

IT System Maintenance (P2P)
Total Governance

Central & Corporate

Feasability Study Provision
Workforce unachieved efficiencies
Review of State Pension - estimate
Next Actuarial review - Estimate
Insurance Provision

Prudential Borrowing

Loss of income from Ewloe rent
Total Central & Corporate

TOTAL NEW PRESSURES

Page 39

Appendix 4

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£m £m £m
0.000 0.223 0.863
0.290 0.216 0.216
0.290 0.439 1.079
0.110 0.110 0.110
0.018 0.018 0.018
0.128 0.128 0.128
0.100 0.100 0.100
0.100 0.100 0.100
0.200 0.200 0.200
0.000 1.364 1.364
0.000 0.236 0.112
0.021 0.000 0.000
0.021 1.600 1.476
0.254 0.625 0.952
0.254 0.625 0.952
0.062 0.062 0.062
0.062 0.062 0.062
0.050 0.050 0.050
1.798 1.798 1.798
0.000 2.738 2.738
0.000 0.000 1.300
0.050 0.328 0.328
0.000 0.252 0.281
0.000 0.000 0.532
1.898 5.166 7.027
2.853 8.220 10.924




Budget 2015/16

Business Plan Investment Requirements
Portfolio

People & Resources

Social Services

Community & Enterprise

Governance

Total

Page 40

£m

0.050
0.200
0.050
0.430

0730 _

Appendix 5



Business Plan Efficiencies 2015/16
Summary

Portfolio

Planning & Environment (Appendix 6a)
Streetscene & Transportation (Appendix 6b)
Social Care (Appendix 6¢)

Education & Youth (Appendix 6d)
Organisational Change (Appendix 6e)
People & Resources (Appendix 6f)
Governance (Appendix 69)

Community & Enterprise (Appendix 6h)
Corporate & Central (Appendix 6j)

Total

Page 41

£m

0.941

2.570

2.068

1.459

1.306

0.385

0.248

1.565

2.333

12.874

Appendix 6



ON

saA

‘seale 9say) Ul UayeHapun AJUSLIND oM

0 BWN{oA JO sisAjeue ue uo paseq s! Buiaes jo ajewnis3 ‘|esodosd
ay uiynm paquasap se pabieys aq ueo aaj buued e yoym

10} samanoe jo sadA) ay) aseasoul o) sasodoud jiig (Sarepn) Buluueld

LONeIBUAL) BWOJU]

0500

ajnpayas a3 mau 0} juanbasqns ") suolPUOD jO
abieyostp -aul yom Buiueid Joj Guibieyo jo sluawaga feuONPPY

01

ON

oN

‘Ul paJojoey S| BAOUE g Ui 0} paLajal
aseaJou) 99§ Bujuueld %G| ay] "J9A0DaI O} SBNUNUD AWoudad
ay) se suoneaijdde Bujuueld jo awWNjoA 3y} Ul 9SBSI1DUI pajEWIST

udijesaua) awoduy|

0900

suofeddde Buuueld jo Jaquinu Ul 8sE3I0U|

ON

SOA

‘90U 88 JO S[9AS] [ENUUE JU333) UO paseq
ajew)sa aAleAIasLOD e s [esodosd 8y ‘saaj uoneoydde Suuued
l|e U1 aseaIdul %G| B aonpoLul 0) S333s |ig (Sajep) Butuued

UOJJeJaUaL) AW0DU|

SEL'0

(asea1oul O %G 1) S99} Buiuueld ul aseasou)

oN

ON

‘UOHEPOWWOIIE 33O Jo Buires e
ui Bunynsas 6uppom sybe pue ajiqow paseassul \leH AUnog o) yed
SSaUISNE PIARUIIIC) WOY) Wed)} uapiem poolunoqubiau ay) aron

Asuaiyg aoseg

cLo0o

(sanynn 10 Juas ou) YO PRYUSAIL) JO INSOID

ON

SaA

-ssnoy Buppom [euuiou usamjaq dn )i yoid yeis aiojeq

bBiuiaao Bop ay) uiejad Jo Jojoesuos Buisuusy JNo Je saAsway)
4o Bop auy) dalp 0} Juajuod aJe 8dAIas ay) Buuinbas ssawolsnd
JSOW Jey) UMOYS SBY 3DUIPIAS pue AJOINIBIS-UCU SI 32IAJBS SHY ||
Spuayaam pue Aepu4 0) Aepuoly wdp| pue wdgg'g usamiaq sbop
Aexs 198)109 0} 33} Ino|led pue Ag-puejs e pled Ajuaund ase SJeo0O

MaIARY [eInjonng

4 v ¢Lo0

asiuag boQg suinoy jo InQ aacway

ssasn Bunsixg

SBA

*$9sBaIOUI

29 pasodosd ay) UC USHEUBPUN 3q [IIM UOBINSUOD Jiads
‘sauoyine 6uunoqybiau Jsuiebe Ajqeinoaey 1oa)ai sea) pasodold
‘siseq Bunueuy-jias e uo ajesado jses| je ued uonauny Buisuad ay
18y} aInsua [iIm pouad Jeak aaiy) ay) JOAC SISEBIOUI 39} [EIUSIRIOY)

UONBJAURL) SWODU|

4 v 0200

Buioueuy yes Buisuaory o~£

4

siasn Bunsixg
121and |essuagy

SOA

‘sasealoul 33} pasodoid ay) UC usNeUBpUN Bq |IM

uofe)Nsuod Jyjoadg 'J0jaas ajeaud ay) pue sanuoyine Guunoqybiau
1suiebie Ajqesnoae) Joa)ja) saa) pasodold “siseq Buioueuy

-j{9s e uo ajelado JSES| Je UBD UONOUNY [04UCD jsad pue jewiue sy}
1ey) aInsua [m pouad Jeak 221y) 8Y) JDAC SISEBIOUI 33 |RJUDLLBIOU]

UONEIALIE) BWODU|

0e0'0

¥
Buioueuy jjos [0ALOT) 1S4 pUE [BUNUY wxww

ol

ON

ON

‘a2|AJaS ay) JO SouBINSAL
ay) aaosdwi 0} J1aunog yBnasog AjUnoy WeyxaIpn Yum siseq
paseys e uo jsod 130y PUBT PJRUILBILOY JUEJEA BY) 0} HUDY

uoneioge(oD

$200

pounon) ybnoiog AlUNoD WEYXaIA Yim uoljesogeljod - uyels

ON

ON

‘lesodosd

sButaes ay) Buiaaiyoe Ul ISISSE M Bale abeuIRIP BY) UIYIM SHOM
13poN AseaiaQg aAnewally piemoy Buibuuq pue sisanbal juswasnal
Aseyunioa Apea Buyying "pannioal aq o) jou 150d UAASS mojie

1M papiAcid BJe SD1AISS LDIYM Ll JSUUBW 3Y) JO MIIASY oljojod
2y} SSO0.OL JApEaT Wea | JO [2A8) 8y} mojaq Sisod aulu Jo 5507

MOIABY |eIOnS

€520

malnal ad1nas - Buyyelg

oN

oN

“S[es
sBbuines Buiaaiyoe ul JSiSSe |im Sjsod JUBJEA 0] JUBWIINISBI-UOU
pue Juawasjal Aiejunjoa Apeg sjaag) sjeudoidde je ase oljogiod
MU AU} UIYIM [01)UOD JO Sueds JBY) INSUD O} [2A3)] JopeaT] wea |
pue sabeuBp 921AJ9S ‘'901AI3S JO peaH ie sisod GG Jo uononpay

MajAaY [einjorulg

6620

ainonsal Juswabeuew - Suyels

psuueld uoyeynsuos
atgnd syydeds

joeqpasy
ajiqnd 0} usdQ

uopjeue|dx3y

adA] jesodoid

Joedwy oqiqnd
® s1 8JaY) Jayjaym
jJo uonesuoberen

w3
sjesodoid
9151

ays jo Ayiiqesaaliep
pue A)jiqeidesse

ay) 40} sniels HSY

sjesodoid syyjoadsg

ON

eg xipuaddy

oljojiod
juswuosaug pue Buluueld 104 91-G1 196png




Page 43

%691 39Bpnq %, S81ouepye |ejo L
195°S |ejo3 }8bpnq oljopi0d
yoedwy oyqnd 1oyBIH =¢ Tv6°0 siejo} Kauayoyy3 186png
joedw anqnd mo =g - SIIOUB|I21YYB/S)S0I JUBWISBAU] SB3YIO
yoedwn ayqnd J02up ON = | 60 s|esodoud ue|d ssauisng Jo anjea [ejo |
AN NOILLYSRIODILVD w3 juswiuoaiaug g Bujuueld
60 vliolL
“adines ay) Jo KiaAiep
oN oN 21UOIIOBID JO BSN paseaiou) pue adijaesd Jsaq uo Bumwesp ssaocoid(  Aouarly] Saines 1 0200 sjuawanosdwi ssao0id juawabeueyy Juawdopaaq woy sbuineg [
swabeue Juawdoaa( auy) Jo malaal NI iiny & 23euapun
“SNOJUO SS8] aLL0J3qG ABWS SIY
1ey) s)s866ns |ug (sejep) Buluueld o) pajejas uoneisiba) Asepuodag|  Aousioyg edueg N
ON ON ‘ojoguod Juswsuoaaug pue Buiuueld ay) Jo jje Joj siadedsmau 220f| 1 MBIABY [RINDINIS b oLoo Buisianpe sadedsmau J0 1500 3onpaY (44
wyhim saofou ojqnd asejd o) Juswalinbal 3y} JO MaIAB) B BYepspUN
‘soje M Ssosoe sabieyd aouas piepuels 19s pue apiaosd [
oN SBA 0} sey Auoyiny Bujuueld 18207 ay) 1eym Auepd 'saoiues uojeaydde 1yj3 dlnies F4 0200 agiape Buuueld aid R
] MBIASY [RINJONUIS
-a1d Aiojepuew jo uoisiAsd By} aanpoaul Im [ig (sajepn) Buluueld

eg xipuaddy



ON

SBA

‘pabueyoun ulews)
OSJE ||wA Sulq B1j8auMm JO AJOA)ap pUe BNUNUOD PINOM Saledold Lofaalod palsisse 0} salaAlleqg

saoyo BuisnoH g
sesuag Josuue) asysivl4 2
sa)is enue) Buiakoay pjoyesnoH |

:woy iinbei Ay s1auUIEluU0D MaU Aue 108)ja3 0}
SjuapIsal Joj 8q [jw jesodosd By) SSaippe 1oy 0} paeniep aie sbeq pue saue) 1oeju0) By) B9
Aguawund ‘oje saippea pooj ‘sbeq ‘sexoq HudAoal se Yyons sisulejuod aisem mau Buuinbal sjuepisey

uonINpay axNAIAS

S|13unoD
AJUNWIWoOY g umo]

SaA

“pasapIsuod
8q |w 8sudiajuy 1008 e 0} }om By Japua) o) Ayunpoddo ay) "sels ey je sjeae| Buokaal
BU) 3010 W Y2AYM JOBIUOD PASIATIUBOU Ue L0 Paseq Sa)is ay) Jo juawebeuew ay) 10enuod ()

sa)is ay) 0} ss82de Juapisas buisiwndo
uo paseq paploap 8q O} SUOHEds| Palsebins Inoj o) AJUNOD By} Ul SBYIS JO JaquNy 3y} 8onpal 0} (1)

:s1 (esodosd 8] “noqe| esnoy-ul Buisign pajesado ase Sals 8Y| "SB{EAA LI SefuOYINY (8907
1810 Aue UBY)} JOW S| YYMm Sals asjuas) Buljskoay pjoyssnoH g sejesedo Agueund 1punod syl

uopaNpay 8JIAIBS

0510

891AI88 AJBAIBP SIBUIRIUOD BISEM B BLIAOWeY

00¥'0

“SUONJ|j02 AY[NQ BPN{OUI PINOM LIIUM
1oenuod paseq soueutioped e yBnosy eanes ay apiaoid
pue ugisiaoid sanue) Buiphaay pioyssnoH asieuofey

S8Z°0

€01

ON

oN

Sejos
JuaLnd uo BUAB]S Yels 1LI0 || Ulm JEIS B]SEm uou Joj salum Buunp yeam Bunjuom Aep G eonposy;

MBIABY [RINPNIS

ON

ON

‘SBUE(eS JaMO| UD

sej0J (2y10ads aa1Bs) 2uBLSB-UOU YW SJBLIBIS MBU JO SIBARS| 80IAIBS AU 99e(da O} S 810j3J1a)
uojuaul By ‘AJBSSBIBUUN 5| BXAIBS BIJUS BY) SSOIO BII0)HOM JuBUSE B Jey) Jesjd awoosq
sey }) 'sieak om) Jo pouad e oy Sy} pejesado Buiaey ‘juswabueLe siy) Ul SJyBusq Jes|o Ie aJay)
ISIUM “AIE|ES PasEaJoul UB JO) UINJS) Ul SBIIAIBS BUBISIABNS JO SUONIBS BY) SSOITE YIoMm O} yels
By} sanbaJ 801 MBU BY] "Z| 0Z LI BJ01 8A)RI8d0 8UBDSIBaNS JUBUaB e PBdNPOJUI IDUND] BYL

MBIABY |RININNS

ON

ON

*s)s0d jus|eAinba awn |y Ul UBHONPaS GZ - OZ B I [8Ad) pajdadxe

JIB48A0 B4} Inq pouad uone)nsued Buunp PaULIYUOD aq 0} PSIIBYE HEIS JO JIBQINN "WYY je

aseq bugesado ejbuis e oju) seyjabio) yejs Buibuug pue Buom paulquod Woy jyeusq ey} Juasaidal
0} PRONPaJ UBAq SABY RINJONUIS BY} UM S[8A3] JBUO [y 'jouod jo sueds Joj sejdiouud ubisap
|euonesiueB10 SMO|0) pue SiepesT WwWee| pue SieBeuBy 821AI8S JO [9AS] 8} S8ONPaI 8ININAS

Mau 8y “s,olojuod podsuel| 8y} pue 8usdsieans snoiaaid ay) WY YEIs B $S3PN[DUI Ydiym
padojaaep ainonns pajeibajul mau B pue uayeUapun uaaq sey aimanas buyels ay) Jo mainel In} v

MalABy (BINjONSS

0e0'0

YIS @)SEM UOU Joj JBjuW Buunp yaam Bunjom Aep G aanposy|
==

080°0

N

4

(ued 1e84 ¢) S3j0s BuBdSIaNs Juauab-uou mu_._E:_

(@)

sl

@©
a-

mainel ubisaq uonesiueiip Buwojo) asnonng Buyes

oN

ON

‘s1sod Juajemnba awn ||ny ul UORINP3J G- O

- [2A8) pajoadxa ng pouad uoneynsuad Buunp pauuyuod aq o} PejJaye YEIS JO JBQUINN "S8Jes anjea
1584 Je 10)0as ajeaud ay) yBnoiyy painoosd aq w sjuswalnbal isieoads seo |y “way) uoddns

0} sjsixe 196pnq e aseum pue jJuslwennbal Jusueuad € S| BJBY) SIBYM (1DUNOD ay) Aq pakojdwe

2 A|UO [(W SIB21J0 [BDIUYDA) ‘BIMNY Ul S|qE(IBAR BUIpUN JO [2A8] BY) UD AJUIBLISD OU IO BN L
‘Buianpai s) Buipuny [ejided pue juelb yGnouy BIGEIIBAR YJOM JO JUNOWe By SY "Sewayas ol indu
|euoissajosd opiacid pue ssiApe 0} Swesj isi|eioads pakojdwa Aj9a.p Sey |1auno) ey ‘AlleduolsiH

MaIADY [BsNPNAS

0500

JUB)O PeLIS —~ SBIIAIBS [BIIUYOB] JSe10ads 82INoSINQ

angnd ayoads

Spao

oyqnd 03 ued;

uoyjeuejdxy

ad£] jesodoid

yoeduy aygnd
e S] a1alf Jawgaym
jo uonespoBajen

fesodosd

aw Jo Ajpgesaaep
pue Auqeydasoe
ayy 10} SMELS RS

wy
sjesodoig
91-54

stesodoud ap1oeds

ON

49 xipueddy

ojjojji04 uonepodsues |

pue auaoas)aalns Jo} 9}-G| 18bpng




-abe)s

yoes e uoisinoid [eusaul jsuiebe Bunsa) Jexsew - pouad seeA 88y} B JAA0 UOHDUN [Ny BY) J9puBd)
Alletuswaioul o} S1 uonuelul 8y, "esuadxe 1ealb 1B pasy pue 1auned Buyl AQ PBUMO JOU SI UIum
juewdinba pue jue|d pasieads Jo Junowe abe| e sasnbal uonesade syl “yels Bunsixe poddns

Aouatoiyg aa1nes

SL00

891:8s Bunino sselb esieuepg

qg xipueddy

oN oN 0} eouesisse Asuabe L 801AIBS snoy-ul ey) Aq Ino paused s Gumna ssesb ease o Ajuolew eyl
siejo)
101088 Auejunion
ssesn Bunsig o 5 SN0l pasipisqns
s|1ouUno) syuswsbueLse [9ABH paseq AJUNWILIOD [E20] S9AIIRP 0} AJUNLILOD nanpeyY SANES 18410 ||le MalAB) pue podsuel] aaisuodsay puewsq saowey 9
ANUNLWOY B UMO] SEA |E90] 8} PUE S|IDUN0D AJUNWILOY) B UMO ] I YIOM PUB SBHAIBS SNG PaSIPISGNS JuaLINg SAowWwey
syounod “sieljays Joj Aqisuodses| yopeiauag swoouy stunogy o
AunWwwod g umoy ON saueuBjUlewW Buie) §0 19adsal Ul SIIDUNOY AJUMULLOD B MO Yjm 83UBLULLOD (W SUOISSNISIQ : umo] 3 Ayunwiwo?) o) sisljsys sng jo esueusjuiew abieyd
oN soA |BUILLIB) SN PIOW Ut PapIACHd AjUBLING 801AIBS UoRBULIGJU) Jo ainsojg|  UCIPNPEY dNIRS UOIES SNG PIO Ul 8JJAISS UOTIBULGJUL JO 2INSOID| ¥
ON SOA WwolsAS UOHEULIoJU] BLI (B8 JB)BYS SNQ B|qeI[2IUN JuBLIND By} BAOWSY | UORINPSY 8JiAeg sd0js SNq e We)SAS uoneunojul ewy [ee) 8sea) €
SIS0D 4B)S 8240 YIBG U1 UONONP3J € Aq ERITNE
pajesauab aq pinom sBuiaes ay) “sjuawebuelse Gunsixe ey 80e|de) UBD 8N0J PBUYEP PISIPISANS|  LORINPaY BDIARS pasipisqns-uou w podsuel) enisuodsey puewsq ade|dey z
stasn Bugsixg sap -uou Ajjenusjod pue Jeino e Jey) Jusixe ay) 0} UMOIB SBY 821AJSS BU) J0) puBWS(] - BMNYS BpIseeq
*pasnba. SB[DIYBA JO JAQUINU ||2IBAC S} 89NPBJ PUB BJIAIBS 8L JO uoIsinoid 8yl|  Aousioyg eaines S/10 € 858Ud MalAaY 199]4 1
ON OoN esi[eusel® W siu) “1equeldes uljauiged Aq peacsdde Sem malasy 1814 8y) Jo aseyd |euy ayl
5260 [sreoL
‘J8a| 8|oIUBA SHOUNCY By} Jemod o) ABlaus e 4
Buisyan 1oy Ayunpoddo eyl suado jodep iwe)|ly 0} 93inos ABiaus ay) pueixe 0} [eualod 8y) 'SeliS| uOfeIaUsS) BWODY| 0500 Iypuel je uononposd ABsaua ao_m%n_ [
Jlypue| yloq o} sjpued aeoaoioyd Buionponu Aq paanposd AB1eus Jo |aaa] B} 8SeeaIdUl 8} papuajul
1)1 ‘Juaunseau; yuan "pub suiew ay) o) uoasuuod sy u Aloedes ul Buninses Buanpal s) Addns g
oN ON seb ay) -ssuiqin} seb yBnosy AB1aua eanposd ARUBLIND pJepuRIS PUe [IIY%00ig e SBYIs (|ypue) 8y ) o
uononNpay anAIes GZO0 syuswebuene Buibieyds uonoejjod ajsem Aying jo ?m oL
ON S8A *82|AI9S 9Y]) JO SIBsN (e Joj 8fieyd awos JapISUoT pue 821AI8S 8Y) Joj pafileyd sejel ay) Jo manal ¥
‘sajis anua) Guyohoay ployasnon je uonoajod uonoNpay 8oIeS SuUofda|j0d 6
0} Y8 Jou ajsem Jo asodsip 0} 8|qe SjuspIsay ‘pandwe usaq aaey pajussald suiq (e jey) Jeans : : ajsem uiq passiw Joj Buiuinies Jo Agiod Bunsixe eyl eAoway
oN SBA £q1894s Jo ubis, pue %o8yd 0) SMaJT) 'UOH3B]|02 Joj 1N 18] Jou sulq dn xoid o} wnjes doig
*8:81|ddNS [19J3WILIOD |220f O} 82IAISS 10} JuaLaINba) Aue 5
1s0d ubis o) s1 [esodosd 8] "SISWOJSNI WOy PAAIBIB] S| SLOJUE BY) BINSUS O} BIIN0SB) Yels abise| uoRanpsY BANES BOIAJDS UORIBH0D BISEM BPES Ou) ALY ‘
e seunbai pue sanss Huob-uo sejeasd eanas ey Builbeueyy ‘esnoy-ul uni eq o) peau Ajuessedau
Si85[) 9IRS SBA 10U SBOP 83IAIBS B} ING ‘BdIAIBS B)Sem apeJ) e Jsodubis o) uoneBiqo Aomes e sey |1ouno ey
*Uoi)08|j02 Joj pajuasald |euejew |
sisem uspJeb Jo Junowe pajiw e SI 818Y) uByM AIEniga 0) JaquisacN pouad siy) Buunp suonaa|iod| vonanpay ednes Aieniged o} JaquIBAON SUOI8|03 aisem uspieB pusdsng g
oN SBA uiq yae|q 8y) Buluiejulew JSjiym SUBIHDBJI0D |euBlew Bjsem uap.eb (e aseed o) s |esodoud a8y
SISeq 83} OU / UW OU © UO Bq | saBueyd asay) Jo uofeuawe|duy "sapuaEwe| o o o [eInong o15em siesodoud opsoubeig g
©ACIdILI 0] UONEPUSLULLOIDS SXBW PUE 8JIAIBS B)SEM BY) UIIw suonesado |8 Jo malnsl e Jno : - :
oN aN Auiea o) Jauped ansoubelp e abebua o) i jesodoid sy) malnay 18914 oip 0 ajejdwe) 3L BumojioL
*(pe)dedxe sjsem pooj) U0 IXBU By} JE Paos||0d aq .
1M BjSEem [UORIPPE B4} puE papiaoid Bq Jou | SABpIjOH jueq JejSe] pue Sewsuy) Uo SuolaalieD Aousiouyg soineg pso'a dn Ujea LORIBo03 Sewsud ou puE bul Aep ¢ @onponuy L4
oN SEA *SEBJE SLIOS Ul PAONPOIIUI SUOHIB||0D ABPUNS pUE PBPUBIXS Bq ||w SUCNJ3I|0D Bisem Aepinies
uiq [euciuppe Aans Joj Adde w pue paydde Ajenuue aq jm 8beyo oY) "pandwa| uonelsuUBS BWODL| 0500 uiq e)sem uapseb puodas sof ebJeya e eanponu €
8q 0} uIq aisem uspieb puodas e Buuinbas sjuapises asoy) Joy abieyd e aq |Iw 2184) "18q0J00
L oN SBA - yasepy si1seq ApyBiupo) e uo uig Bsem uapieb auy) Jo uondB|(0 B Yyw papiacid 84 |jw Juapisaes yoeg



%906 % S8} 3o |ej01
£1£°82 1303 106 ojjojiod
yoedw) oqnd 1eyBi =¢ 0.5 sie0} A3usdy3 yeBpng
joedw ajiqnd mo =7 0000 |JUR1213Ja/S) 3 | JOIB0
1ordus ajqnd 18P ON = | 0452 sjesodoud uejd $sau|sng JO aNjeA |ejo L
A3 NOILVSINOO3LVD w3 uogieuodsuel | ' 3uadsieans
[ozs'2 [TvioL
S00°L s|ejol
senuoylny |eoo buunogybisu
uonoNpay eanes z 0010 , ¢ [43
ON sap “suswenbal Aiojnjels Bunas}osd 1SIIYM PIEPURIS IUBUBILIEW JBJUM MBIABY 10 1E4) Ydjew O} pepUE]S BJUBLBUIEL JBJUM DY) MBIASY
. syed
Juswssasse ysu Guwoyio} ‘spoued A1 pabuojoid|  uoponpay eoueg 4 0500 (AR
oN SBA 10 mous jo spouad ul Bunes - syed 1B I3UNOD UIYIW UOISIACID BOUBUSIUIEL 1BJUW BU) MBIABY JED [3UN0O LI LOISIACId S3UBLIBIUIBLL JBjum 8L s\mﬁmx
A —d
weg pue wdz| ueamieq Jo| uoRONPeY BJIAIRS z seele [eguepisel fle ul Gupyby Em?ﬂf ol
oN SBA pauwin) eq [w s)yb L ysu 0} 108lqns “seale |epuapisal Jje ul Bunybi Jybiu ped eanponu)| A
@3J
Sfaunod BUUSIUIY | yopessuag) swoow) z sebiey) Bunieggy| 6
Aunwwo)) g umo) SaA ul ssped Jed anuad umo) je o} sebieys Gunped Suonpanui AGsjens Bunyed JeJ sjounod sy asiAey -
\
*SSeq 98) OU / UMW OU B UO 8q [w sabueyd asey) jo uonejuawa)duy .
*SB12UBIOYIS BA0IHLI O] LOREPUBLILIOIS] BYEW pue 80iAI8S Aemybiy ay) uiyw suoesedo eyy|  MOIN8Y |BIMONAS 3 eusasieens siesodoid anscfilgra| @
oN oN 10 maiaal e Jno Aued 0) Jeuped onsoubelp e ebebua o) st jesodosd e mainey 18314 8y} uwojiog
-swiea) Buisues|s aandess ey dosy pue
swes} Juawwadiojus 8U) 8rowal Jo (j8As) Buisueso ey} aonpa: pue) Guuany o) yoeoidde @duessiol|  uopanpay ediAles L 0sL0 SLUEE)} JUSWSIIOJUS BY) AjINUS BAOWSAL 10 8INPRY | L
0:9Z & 83nponul |(w [esodoid ay) “umo) Asaae u) 8iaes Buisues|d Aienb y6iy e epjacid pue
oN SBA SWea) JUBLLSII0JUT |EJUBWUCIIAUT PUE JusLadiolug Bunped A1) Ylog sey Ajuauns jounc) ay]
S|15UN0Y .
Aunuwiwo) @ umo) SOA euige) Aq panasdde Ajsnoiaaid Se malaal 8BS By} 40 aseyd jeuy juawajdwy uenonpay aaiaies ¢ 0£0°0 malne) 80uB|ueAu0d 3(ignd jo eseyd [eu 9
*Aauenbayy JuaLnd ay) 1e sAe|ds AJIQISIA UO SIN3 fle Bujuieres 'sauo 1snf o) piepuels|  UONONPRY SdleS 4 0£0°0 sabian Aemybiy Joj 1nd ssesb pundas anowey g
oN SHA 8UY) 8anpal 0} 8q |w |esodosd ay| "Jeak e aowy sebiaa Aemybiy e 1n3 0} S| piepuels ueund ey
‘peonpas
8 U SBIIYAA JO JAGINU BY) pUE B31Ales ey sjesado o) paJinbal yels jo Jaquinu 8y} - SeWoy
paseyjeys ‘6'e ‘sjuepisel aqeseulna o} Juadelpe sjyby asoy) 10f 3 Buiulelal 1sjiym Ajuno) ey u|  UORINPAY 3JAIBS Z 0500 eanosal Bugybll jeans paonpay 14
spybiy Jo Awolew ay) Joj pyepue)s ay) Buionpas Ajueayiubis Ag -aoinas ay) Aq pesinbas s1 s82Inosas
oN SBA 10 |9A8| paxy e jey) spuewsp ‘bl A18A8 Jo snedal sy} s0) SAEp 88.Y) JO PJEPUE)S JUBLIND 8Y|
uswdinba pue jued
10 uonanpai Aq pajelsust aq w Buiaes ay) "pousd JySiwieao pue Suuaae eyl Buunp Ino palued .
‘nje Buideams 8nusa umo) ‘Buikjdwa AJINB Se yoNs suceIado YW BSEBIUI YoM JO 19AS| SIy eas|  MeIeY [BIMINAS k Se0'0 Gubiiom Wb puep3| €
1w jesodosd ay) syiom pauue|d Jo Sjunowe jlews pue saouabiawa yw Buljeop (see/ e sfep 5ot)
oN oN 461U a1 ybnouy spom aidoad JO JAqUINU JlBWS v “ZL0Z U1 JIYS BUIuSAS UB PE2NPOAUl BUSISIIAARS
‘Jue|d pue }8ay B[oIUBA JO LUDRINPaS AQ UBALP Bq pNoMm SBUIABS 8y| “Jeek ay} MBINSY (BINONNG L 6200 seaue eoines (|2 Ss0J0e suonelsado Aep / z
Buunp SPUBYBEM BLLIOS HIOM O] JEIS |E 8Xnbal W ydiym Aepung o) suonesado pueixa o) SI uonuajul
oN oN ay] "jaam Bunjiom Aep XIS e S3)BJad0 MOU BUBISIBRNS 'Z10Z Ul MaIASY 8UaISIe0RS a1y Buwmo|io4

99 xipueddy



ON

oN

uoisjaoid Aoimes
|e2nu2 uou ioj JeBpnq eonpes pue jsod JEUOIORI JoIas juedeA eleje(

meIAeY [RINDNAS

uoddng Afjwed w sBuiaeg

[43

ON

oN

seanes Ajljiqesip [esisAyd pue Ajiqes)
10} sjuewebuene Jebeuey weoj ofiow pue jsod Jefeueyy weey & ejejag

malAeY [eINONNS

seo)aIeg Ajligesiq sisod jueweBeuew aanpey

ON

‘Jues eaes 0} sesiweld 8210 efuspy «
1s0d seBeueyy | eanpey

Mo)1ARY [RINIONNG

so2)A1eS AJIqESIP PUE SB83|AI0S YljReY [ejusw 0) yoecidde meirey

oL

ON

ON

leeH Aq pesnaouoy s ‘pieog
yieeH A N Jpe[empe) Is1eg Jo Al oy Bujeq se pessesse|
pue ‘ @indsip w, ARusuna Asuow oie] yieeH Buinuyuol ey ensuly

UOHEIBUBS) BILADU|

yileeH yiw Buipun) urol eyenobeusy |

ON

(03 tepun "e'() Juswdinbe soutw 10) suokiars
I8 pue 1 Adesay] | O 10} BiED 0} s89008 NiB) Ajddy

uoganpey 8o1AIeS

(Adesey) jeuor 0) toutw Butkiddns Joj spioysesy

oN

uofjejdepe o) Jo 1803 By
104 efueys *Aed o} Aljjiqe uo paseq 'pue suoyejdepE JOLIW 1BAILBP [[W eday
pue eies) ‘sedey pue sied yw diysisuped uj suojeidepe soun lopowsay|

UOHRIBUBE) BICIY|

suoyejdepe Jou)w 1oy yoeasdde Buyse) suesw dojeasq

suesn) Bunsixg

yoddns jo jsad ey} pue sebeysed poddns Suonpes

Ajejeudaidde se [lem se o)) jo Aenb sejdoad eacidw pinoys yoeaidde sy
spoou aqibije easy oym e|doad

BunoA 10} sjuewwebueLe [eusilisuel, Jo sinjee; Aoy B §1 uoisseibaid einsue .
sjueuthey 12841(] JO O8N BY) OSIWIXRW »

83us|(Ise!

|euossed pue Awouaine pjing jey) sAem ul Woddns ybnous jsnl, Bupiacud .
{e1e00191) ue(d poddns ey) jo Led se ABojouyoe) Buisiuixew «

:sepnjou) sy ‘e|qissod se seAl

juspuedepu) se aa)] 0} ojdoad spoddns ysiym [epow uoissesboud ay) Jdopy!

Aoueioy)3 eoinieg

Buiar p Goud, e dojpreq

104 fopow |

sies() Bunsixg

‘uoyeynsuad o} 19slqns ese sBujaes ealedlpy) ‘sisAjeue Aoeded jexpewr
episbuoje eoe)d ueye) sBY UCHEINSUCD B3UO Jea)d oq [w sbujwy pue sBulaes
es)oexd '10)268 Juepuadepul 8y} UIol) poLoiss) 1 dde eq ues
1oy sjoefoid Jo sequinu By ] "PEIBPISUCD B4 o} [enuejod By} aaey jey) sioefasd

ZZ ©sm @JBY] J0}20S Juep puj ay; Aq ttep Ajear 8q o)
oy} oAey Avw jey) sipefoud Buiar pepoddng Ajnuep! o) eusjuo dojersg

Aoueioy)3 eojnies

I~

sosnoy Buiar pepdlidng
esnoy u| Aq papiaotd Ap (acud uoiss! 0} |ey wﬁcoe.ou

siesn) Bugsixg

‘uoisiaid ©J80 UL} LIOYS 83NPal ||M.

yoeaudde siy} ‘||esoao ey pebesiaue 1)) "8jal (E3RUI B U) s10se0 Boddns
0} pepiacud st poddns ybnoue Jsnl, jey) Buunsue eq |w (ediouud Buiping
8Yy] ‘pesu [enplAlpu| Uo paseq UOIsIAGd BIED WIS} LOYS JO [BAB] 8L Yy
seps z Bujuiewie) oY) W) 64 (W UOISIAGI] 8183 ULB) Loys ABpM PIBYIO

JO MBIABI U} LJIM SBJ(S JO JBQUINY IB]|PLS B UO PBJDJO 04 0} 8JBD ULB) HOYS

uslNPeY B3IAIBS

§100

pepiacd §I 81E3 UL} OYS @SNOH-U| B18UM SO}IS JO JIOqUINU B MAIASY

sies( Buisixg

‘seBersdnaib Jueno (je o) si [esodald “uoisiaaid sjidess 8onpes
| yoeoudde s1y) ‘|jeseao jey) pebiesiaue si)| "8{Qs (2o(uD B1)} U) SI0IED
Woddns o} papiaaid sy poddns yBnoue isnl, jey) Buunsue aq |jw jediouud
Bupinb ey) -pesu jenpjapul Uo peseq eusjud meu Buidde pue euejud

o Buisirel Aq d eydsel o} 4 pesif © eonpaiju|

uolaNpaY BoIAIRS

ei1ds01 Jo) BEID ANqIBije @81AR) PUB MBiADY

sies() Bunsixg

SjueuIed 19011 JO 05N BEEBIIY

Apanoe Aep Ajunwiwod

pue |esisAlUN ssB0E 0} Bjdoed 10) Hoddns uue) Loys pue sy dojessp «
sjusuidotaaep’

1ngae Aep jo .
61jUBD OSCI[BYY B1f) JO MOIABS »

ISJIS JO JOqUINU IB}jeils B U0 Pe.e)jo eq o} uoisioid eses Aeg

ese]) enxg meu pue Bupsixe je

Asueoi3 eojates

pepiacid 51 8162 ABp BSNOH-U| BISYM SOJIS JO JBGLUINU BY} MOIASY

siasq Bunsixg

SaA

‘siase2 poddns o} pue eRUSWSEP LW
syjnpe JeBunok "6'e uoisiacud isieioeds elow jefie) ||w BUSILD 8}j0 B1ED)
Aep oy} Buwosieu o) mela B yywm uoisircid eied Aep 10) BUBJLD 8y} moiray|

uaganpey eaineg

8163 Aep J0) BUSIUO AqiBlle SnoojeY

pouvueyd

HIEpedy

ongnd sydadg

ayiqnd o} uadQ

uopeuejdxy

ad4) jesodosg

|esodosd
ay} Jo Aynqesanjiep
pue Ajjjiqejdasde
ay} 10) SMEYS HSIY

joedw) agqnd
B S] aJolf) Jetgaym
jo uogespoBaje)

w3
sjesodoid 91-G1

stesodoid ai3iaeds

ON

2g xjpueddy

O1|0[1I0g 8.0 |E10G 103 91-G| 19Bpng]




joedusy ogqnd JeyB)H =¢

3oedw) ayqnd Mo =Z

yorduw oyqnd Joeip ON = |

AT NOILVSINOOILVD

%TE 1e6pnq v, sajoualdyye |eJo L

956'8S |e303 Jobpnq oljojod
898'T sfe10} Aouaoyyd yabpng

100Z°0) S8|0UB|91}48/SIS0D ) 1SAUS JBLRO
8907 sjesodoud uejd ssauisng Jo anfea [ejoL

wy aie) 81908

sfejol]

sies() Bupsixg

JustussesSE
[ejouRLY [ENPIAPY UO peseq (g3 O} s2jAles Amonwuop Joj sbieyd Apjeem
ay 1 Aojjod Buibiseyo s 9 YSIOAM Ui Bulf ]

UOHRIBUBE) BLICIU| z

eies Alejiaiwop Joj efieyo xew §93 0} 98U LAY BLICOU) PaseaIdu|

62

—

ON

ON

SO)E) JOyIeLl L)W aul| Ul 8] LO[SIAGID B8NOH U] JNO 18
eoueuajuew spunash (1ouno? Ajuno) ailysiully Joj sjuewebueue jey) einsug

Aoue|olyy3 eajnles L

punaug o)

14

oN

oN

SOJeI 1O Y)W BUY| Ul 8| UoisiAcld 68NOH Y] N0
1e sesjales Suesd lounal Ajuno) allysjully Joj sjuewebueue ey} einsuz

Asusiiy3 eoinles L

10§ /lopoul MmelAeY

yx4

ON

ON

Buiutes] ejeiodio) Yim UOHEDOH-03 O MBIA
© | ayis sieenbpeey Asesqy eyl woy Q sasopy)

Asueia1)§3 eialeS L

siepenbpesi Atesqi Joj ebieyoes esowey

9z

oN

oN

epuabe ebueys aibejens ey woddns
0} sjuesB ueedaing Jo (enuejod ey pue Asuow [eucibel jo esn Jaleq exeyw

Asuedy)3 eoinieg (8

eweBeuew abueyd Joj sjuesd esiwndo

14

ON

oN

qny Bujuoissiwwo?) [euoibey ey ‘Aq
Bupun) ey u| sejauBIoIYE JBAle]

peenl) pue ‘0

Aoueini)jg eotales L

sbuiaes gny Bujuoissiwwo)

ve

siosn Bunsixz

uoisiaaud Aioymess |eanuo o) peubije j0u ese jey) sjebpng eonpey

uoganpey e%AIeS 1

502JA185 8,UBIP|IYD W) uoisiacud Aiginjeys |EDILD O) w.:..v:an&._(

€z

sies) Buisixg

PooU [eoRNoAseeRIl LW
sjueled ssoy) o) papiaaid poddns Yum (10)0es pig) suonesebiossiepiaoid |
a1e3 pIyd slesl AUES WOl PEUDISSILULLIOD BIIAISE JO [BAB] BY) a.w.aoao:cwl_:

101005 Aejunjop [}

1eyiew eieopiyD oy} BulbBueyy
O

w

|1ounog Atejunjop
{007 enysjuly

‘ABejeng |

£J818D) S,0HYSIU} MOIAG) pUE UoyEluewe|dw) Jiey) Jo Jeek Jaul eyl u A|uo ale
Yolym 880A188 Yj|eeH jBjUBH Ul S51aBRUGD BUnSIXe SWOS UO 810U PAISS O}
Awesseoau aq (w )] "UBIP|IYYD 10) uonay yw diysisuired aiBejens e dojeasp|
0} %908 (| BM SBDJAIBE S,UBIP|IYD U] "susWesibe Bujpun e100 jueund epnjoul|
os(e jw yoeaidde siy] “puesio) Gujob uogeindod ey jo ebuel sepeaiq e Yore)
18y} 921A188 JO S{epow matt Bupiees Aeaiep esiates pue sepuoud estales |
190J1p o} peubjje Ajesofo eq (W Buipung ‘Bulpun) jo uononpel %0 JeeA uo
JeeA B eAGIYDE 0} 101088 PIE By} Yim sjuewebueue Buipun) Bupsixe (e melrey |

10)085 AsRIUN|OA 4

(@)
©

10j088 Areyunjon o) Buipuny ubyees v:np_’nm

24

S)INPE 10} 5juUd eLe,
A pe Jeyjeboy BuiBuuq 1o} e es0idx3 d Bo1 yym
uolelnsuod u) Jeplaaid eaewejje ue yGnoy (sidoad Bunok pue uespya

101088 Lmunjop z

Aaesoape 0 yoeasdde [eucibey |

174

stes Buns)xg

104 A pe) esjaleg A ¥ INOA X Bupsixe |m_

eoinas oined ey} pue yosAeid oy} 10§ Buyj
ay) Bujpue pue sjpeqUOD 1Blalg AllWwe ] pue BisQlY BY) J0) 501 JO :o:ust_
e Bugepobeu o) mela & (iw UBIPIYD 10§ UCHoY W sjoRQUCS Jelebo Buug

10108¢g Aseyunjop L

uBIP|IYD 10} UONDY v BujuorssiLLed melreY

64

siesn Bunsixg

s1ysybiqua( Yiw uois|Acid 821188 0 1500 ey} ejenobeusy "aBdA 18 sAels
1Biuteao Jo) peau ey} esiwiulW o} sel|iwe) o} Hoddns eagews)e epjaold

Aoueialy)3 esines z

(QgdA) vAiyhQg uaug seld (0BsA je einypuedxe esnpey |

13

ON

asnles
ay) 10} yoddns | 1xe s0) JeBpng Bur I aonpey’

Aoueioyy3 esinies 3

800JA105 S,UIPIIYD Ul S1eBpNq BuuossILIWOD

Ll

siosq Bunsixg

L 181208 € jo UsH) 8y} Jo Jojoes pi ud o} Buy ‘B
|epow a3jAI0S OA ue Bui ybnanp Jyoe eg ueo sb
Jeuyuny moy esojdxe uey) pue buneBiey Jeseed ybnaiy) sBuiaes Y53 eABIYOY

Aausiay)3 esjuies L

|opow Asoaliep BA) pue sbu dnoub Ajwey y p olop

9

ON

seA

221]IB5 BY} JoAltep o) sdiy J dde e Ajuep|

uopesoqe|ioD I

831]85 uoeuLoju) Ajjwe Jo AIoAllep [ppowsy

SL

ON

oN

sepUsRye
eyew pue dy 1000y pue (eroueu] toy] Buug

me1ABY [RININIS b

wee} ¥ )) sl ney

14

oN

ON

‘jsod sebeuey wee| | eonpe: pue emonns ubleey

meley [RINjoNIS |

802)A198 §,UBIP(IYD Uy uBisope) B21AIBS!

€L

o9 xjpuaddy



. ON "J01095 AJEIUN|OA JO JUSWSAJOAUI paSESIOU YUM] o o o o .
N pue ABajeng 93IAIS N0 LM BU| U) S[9A3) Buiyets paonpay INSY [EIMANIS b 160°0 Juswabeueyy Aouedep g suonaNpay juswabeuey pauueld 9oIAag YinoA| €2
ON ON ‘sfoa) Buyjels paonpay|  MalAly |eindnag ] 9200 uononpay buiyels adIAIag S3SNI YINOA - SBJIBS YINOA| 22
oN -
N uogonpas jsop| MO 39InES : Lyl (£3) 196png MaIAsy UonesuEBIQ J00UIS Ul uonanpay - sppouog Aimusn isiz| 12
ON “§j00U40S
uofeIaPa4 SIaYIED ] pea 0} pabueyaal aq (M 1509 ay) Ing Aluoyiny ay) Ag papiacsd|  Aousioyg aoiaes L 5100 sfooyas
80 0} BNUALOD JIM IDEUDD LOND3dSU) uoReaNpPa [1SAYd ] 0} 3o1uas uofdadsul juawdinba uonesnpa [easAyd Joy Alpqisuodsas Jajsuel) | 02
oN 736pnq | —
oN Buises|al paonpas sey swoolsseld ajiqow Buipiaoid jo 1500 Aouapy3 o1nss b | vv0'0 SUWIOOISSE[D IO JOj UOISIACLD 3aNpay [:]8
oN S8A Y Aouaiyg ao1AiRg 1 . 6100
AJOJME}S YIIM BUI| Uf SOUBMO}|E WIOJUN [00Y3S 3oNpay 123 891 b [eaa] Aiojnjess o) abueys Aoyod suuojiun ooyds| B
oN “SUOISSIWRI
uofjeIapa, SJAYJEa ) PEIH Buneaw Joy pasn aq Aj@iewniba] ued Yaiym JueI uoneaudag )
1 s1as Bunsixa 1[0Nc] PASEBIOU BABY [ SIOUIS 'SI00UIS LM 1531 [Im jso| A UPIOLE SAINBS ' 4610 sjooyas
ay) Buipuny pue suoisioap uoissiwal Buijew Joj Ayqisuodsay 0} sanIqIsuOds@l SUDISSIWAI Jajsuel) - (UoISIAGL B Buluueld looyos) ssasoy FAN
oN ON £i503 EU[UES) Aouayg asine 1 i
g Bunjelale 'sasjwaud Buisesjal |leH Alunoy 0] Yeis a1edojRy 103 89IIBS | 4100 51509 Buues)d g Bupjelased ‘'sasiwald — aj|BleS Jmep JueN 18
sJas Bunsixg S3A sassao0sd SSaUISNG jo UORESIeUanE) pue mataay|  AJuBIDl3 a3IAIBS A 0900 aDIAJ9s JUBWSSasSY AOJNIeIS Ul LoldNpal — uoisnjoul butues ) Sl
ON S8A [2pOus JUBJaYIP B1A PRIaYO Bq 0} 3j0) yull uoneonp3|  Aduay3 adlnag 1 0500 |SpOW JUIBYIP BIA PAJaY0 aq O} 3j0J Yul] UOHEINPa — BIIAIDG ONSNP YINOA| b
uopesapaZ SJsyaea ] peaH SaNNIYIP [EUOTIOWS '[E100S INCIABYSY Uit SBNIMOYP [EUONOLLD '[E10S “INOIARL3E Yi 2fdoad
J sizs Bupsixg ajdoad BunoA g uaspiyD Joj 301AseS papen yBnouy uonessust|  Aousiay3 sowag 4 0500 BunoA g ualpyyd Joj 331A9S papes; yBnoay uonesauab awooul pue uoisinoid Jun
S8A 3wWosu) pue uoisIAcsd Jun [BL3JRY (tdnd JO uononpay leuagay |idnd jo uoponpal — adnBg Boddng Jnolneyag [ 8oag [euaey kdnd| €1
uoflelapa4 sJayoea] peaH e . G'g 0l
/ ssasn Bupsixa SIA JusjeaInba awn N} w) uononpai - Auedea Juaung) SEEICE AL b 0v0°0 s1s0d juajeainba awsy [jn} Ul UOJIONP3J - ADUBDEA JUBLIND — B3IAIBG SIBJIOM UOISN|DU| cL
uonesapad siaydea] peaH ) G'£ O} SH0j|asunod juaje
| ss9s) Bupsig SBA *SJ0{|9SUN03 JUBEAIND BWN [N} U) UORONPaJ - AJUBJEA JUALIND Rouaro3 sonias b | 000 awy (jny ul uonaNpas - ASUBDEA JUBLND — 8J1ALeS Bullsuno) saidoad bt L
uonesapad s19ydea] peay *301AJ3S JO UofeJado . 150d jO [eAoibbl
] ssasn Bupspg SaA pue AJaAjep 3y} mainay 1sod Jo [eAowal -AJUBDEA JUaLNg e t 500 -Aaueaea Juewund - Loddng Jajlaael | AsdAoy; abenbuer [euonippy ue se ysy oL
uofiesapad sisyies) pesyH “AUaA|ap BOIAIBS JO MIIARI PUE Bf0) JOSIADE JBPIOSIAL| o) sy JEIMONAS L 0900 3101 JOSIAPE JBPIOSIQ WdadS Wi
1 ssasn Bunsig S3A wnnaads wWsANy pajedpap Jo [EAOWA) - ADUBJEA JUALIND : PIIESIPaP JO |BAOWSS - AJUBJEA JUaLND — Woddns WSHNY - SBJIAJBS UOIS 6
‘O
uofiesapa4 SJayoea] peaH ‘uonesauab .
1 s1asp) Bupspa aW0oUI PasEaIous PUB LoINPal 1500 YBnouy Aiaaodal fouaioy3g eoinies 4 v 1900 DI
SBA 1500 ||y, O} BAOLU O} 30IAIFS 1SN J0 Bulj2powal Jayung K19A0231 }500 [y, O} BAOW 0} VNIAG SN Jo Buyepowal Jayung 8
OoN Aouapy3 aoines 1 0200 Ui jeay | pAMID yim juawaalby
ruwA2 neay pAMD im Juswaalby [9aa7 30IAI8S IoUN0) [8AaT @0Kuag f1ouno) uew ybnouy) apew uoisiaoid yim wswsalby [aaa] aoes
oN ulew ay) yBnay pepaoid 3G 03 uoISIA0ID 3DIAIS JUALIND ruwAo nesy) pAmy Buipuny asear) - uoneonpg Buinuiuo) 1 64-1 Aepuodag A
oN "(sBumas sieak Auea papuny|  fousiay3 soimas 1 L1E0 "(sbumes sieak Auea papury
Ul 3w Jayoea) % 0| jo uoisinosd 1oj [epow mau Buipnour) Juels ul 3w Jaydea) %0} JO uoisinoid Joj japoww mau Buipnjow) Jueis) aseyd uonepunod
OoN aseyd uonepuno.f luawapsu3 Ape3 jo wawkojdag Buisiwixeyy swapug Ape3 jo Juawhoidag Buisiuixep - uoneonpy sieaA Aued p Aewud 9
sanuoyine 9
. oN BuunoquBrau Ly Buiuien Buusaep uBnouy Aouaryg|  UORSIO9EIO0 g €000 Aousioy3 Buires] JOwsA0n| G
ON oN quawannbas Buyyels ul uoonpay|  MaIAaY |eiMaNaS 1 2100 (¢°0) Buyers woddng 109fosd aanpay v
oN aN juswauinbaJ 1a6png pue s1500 Bulobuo Ul uononpay Aauayg ases 1 G000 suonduosqng aanpay £
ON oN ‘juswa.inba 1abpnq pue 1500 Bulobuo ) uoonpay|  Aousioy3 ad1MasS l 2100 s83) [eba] ¥ SI0WAA0G 0} bunpalD - a3ueuLIopa @ Buuossiuwo) k4
oN (sJo101paud 1sn Ajwe Jayasi4 pue elep Bunsa) [euoneu(  yoponpay aoinies 1 0£0°0
oN uo Aja1) s1awseay Joj bunsal 1sa) Amiqy aanuboy asead Bunsay 1591 Amqy aanubos) asean - wea ] UOJEULOU| pue Juawabeueyy OYIS L
yoedwy ayqnd fesodo.d w3
pauue|d uoje}nsuod soeqpasy ayy jo Ayjiqesaniep
d
angnd oysadg angnd o uedg uofjeueidxy adA] |esodoig € s] 359y} Jayleym pue Aynqeidease sjesodoig sjesodoid ayoeds ON
jo uojiesuiobajen 95l
8y} Joj SMES HSIY

Pg xipuaddy

0ij0}110d INOA PUE UOREINP3 0} 91-G| 19bpng|




Page 50

1oedwy oyqnd JaYBIH =¢

1oedwy ojjqnd Mo =z

1oedw) o)qnd 193P ON = |

AN NOLLVSNOOILVD

%S'T 18bpnq o, sajouaidye jejo)
%L'8 S92|AI8S YINOA R UOREINPT 48430 U0 AJU31dIT %
%E'0 J9bpng sjooyss uo Asu3idy3 %
€£5°96 |e30} 18B6pnq oljojI0d
L8T'PT uoieanp3 Jayio B YINnoA
9vE'Z8 1ebpng siooyosg
65¢'T sjejo} Aouajoyy3g Jabpng
- S219UBIJ14J8/SISOD JUBWISIAU JBYIO
esr'T sjesodosd uejd sseuisng jo anjea |ejo)
w3 yino, g uopeanp3

TVLOL

U} Lononpal o}

Aouapiy3 adnseg L

UOISIAOI] S2IN0SaY JO LONESHEUONEY

14

ON “SIRquUInU |
oN anp sisixa Jabuo| ou Jo pasnpal sey adjAIes 8y} Joj Juswaiinbal
U} 218YM S|DOYDS LI SYUN 321N0Sal JO uoneweblewe/ainsolD
oN

uoniesapa siayoea) peaH

“3SEad ||M 3DIAIDS
05 3|gelaun 321AJs ay) Bupew B01AI3S Y1 WO melpylim
0} uoguajul Jiay) pajjeubls aaey sanuoyine GuunoqubiaN

uonoNPay aolAeg I

uogiessag @ uoeBajapaq - aojag AJeigr 100y3s siooyds

144

P9 xipuaddy



ON

ON

pasinbai awny yejs buionpas Agesay) sejexs sy pue
ongnd yjoq Joj sajeys BuipuiiBal jo yse) ey uo axe)
0) Bulpm st jey) Jeped) e 0) aoeds doys Aldwa ay) 187

Aousioly] adnieg

ON

ON

Ajunaas auny Aep pue Aep yoam
UO 8duElal 8y} 8INPaJ PUE [OIUOD SSBIDE [|BJSu|

Aouatoly)] adnes

ON

SBA

810w Jo (| Jo sdnosb
£q sjqeyieae sbunjooq Buiaes| swwesboid ay) woy
suoissas ooy pe sados ybiy pue Buiquid e eAowey

uoloNpaYy AIAISS

sJasn Buisixg

SBA

9,G'E UBY} SSa] PaseaLoul uaaq aAeY SaLlIANOR
pajejal yjeay awos apym ‘sease Bulnoqybisu

Y au vl asow eq o) ebejuadciad Jaybiy

e Aq peseaJou) uaaq aaey suonesiuebio pue sqno
0} sefiJeyo awos '%G'¢ S| SAIAIOE SBNAISS B.nsIaT]
|le SS010. G0z Joj asesous aaud abeseae ay|

uoNEIBUSE) BWODU

9000

puubai 9)ejS - 2JjuUa) ainsia apisea

13

ce00

Aunaag - aJjua) ainsia apiseeq

oL

6200

sadol ybiy
10 Buyquuipo doy pe ON - a4uaQ ainsia] apisesd

S¥0'0

LB Ul 9SB210UI UOHE)JUI BA0QY - S1USD) aInsiaT]

sJasn Bunsixg

sOA

su0sse] Bulwuwims [euoippe
Unm suoisses Buiuana asay) aoejdas pue awsyos
asuewsoped BunLWIMS Basiuld 8y) 10 Woddns pug

uononpay 8IS

0LL'o

suoissag BulusAz jo |eAoway - PAMID OON

sJasn Buisixg

saA

S8)N0J
Bujjem o} uonegsiuiwpe pue uojjowosd Buipinosd
jou Aq sdnosb asysiulld Jnogex|ean o) poddns aseed

10}085 ABjunjop

ON

SaA

's89.8)aJ Joj uewled pue siepaw Jo aseyoind sy}
‘sjuaaa Auno?) pusjie o) siayoes) Joj 5)sod Aiddns
JBAQD 0) S|O0YDS Sajqeue Jey) sjooyos o) Juelb esea)

uoloNpay 8BS

800°0

nIWA9 Yjepn sia - jJuswdojaaaq suodsg

L10°0

Hodg |ooyog ui 3d - juawdojeaeq spodg
ainsia

Paqge 51

ON

ON

wejsisse Jesq) auo pue
sabeuew fesqy auo Aq sieas| Buyjels ay) sonpay

PETENTEI LTI

ON

ON

84)U80 8.nsia” apisea 0} sndwed
JieH AunoD woy ssapenbpeey Aseiqi| Jo uoheso-oy

Aousidiy] 8dnIeg

siasn Bunsixg

SOA

sjualo
lie 0} seuaAlep punoqesnoy Buiuiejal Agaiay) 8oines
Kianjep AJeiq) yim adiAIas punoqasnoy auquio)

uoionpay aoIAIeS

€LL0

SjejoL

890°0

Buyers

0€00

slapenbpesy Aiesqi]

9200

S90IAIBS SIIGOWN

sJasn Bunsixg

SBA

aoiaIas Bulues(o e yym uaisincxd Bunjejaled

ooejdas pue XJomieu Aueiql sy} JOAOCD 0} yels

0 88N JUaIdYYe BJ0W S|geuS 0) §'FE O} Yeam sad
G’y Woy sapelq) jo sinoy Busado (lessao sonpay

uolonNpay adiAIeS

6¥0°0

ssueIqi onels - saueIq]

pauue|d uoye)nsuod
olgnd ay)oadg

¥oeqpaaj
onqnd o3 uadQ

uojjeuejdxg

adA) |esodoid

joedw) aqqnd
e S| 343y} Jayjaym
jo uoyjespobaje)

|esodoud ay)
0 Ayqessayep
pue
Anqerdasae ayy
10} SME)S HSIY

w3
sjesodoad
91-G1

s|esodouid ouoadg

ON

ag xipuaddy

I 3ONVHO TVYNOLLYSINYOUO

ofjojHod
aBueys jeuonesiuebiQ 10} gL-G| J9b6png




“Snduied alj] punoJe aJue(isAINs ALDD
paaosdun ypm sayjeboy ‘leH AunoD je umop asolo
Buiping 0} aaow 0} pasu ayj josyal 0} AjBuipsoaoe

90NpaJ PUE B3IN0SBJ JO [9AB] JUSLIND MAIADY

uonaNpay daIneS

9LL'0

suolonpal Jers
Ajunoseg

1200

s|ejo

ON

‘S]oeIU0d
1o)Jew [eula)xe 8SEaIdU| UCHIPPE Ul pue AunoD
8y} Jo sea.e 0} aaies Buuesd onajeduad e saaleq

uoIBJaUSL) SLIODU|

2000

(anqow) Asanilep Jo [apow Juassyid

ON

,S9)is Jayjo ||

0) [jeH Quno) je psjdope uoijeayioads paonpas ey}
N0 |0y "SBYS [|B 0) palaaiap uonesyaads jo sjpAl|
Jenoiped up ‘eojaes Buues|o ay) Jo mainay, Jo seul|
ay) Buoje Bulyiswos eqAepy  ‘PaJoAlap S| adAleS
WauNd ay) Aem ay) pue sauue)) ase) Aeq pue
SBUIOH {ENUSPISaY 'SIooYaS Alewlg ‘sjooyos ybiH
0) paJBAljap SeoInoseas 8oiaIes Buleies ay) Jo meiney

MBIARY [BINjONNS

6100

(uononpai }s02) abueyo [eanjonus Jeis
Bujues|n

c620

S[ejoL

ON

S8A

"S{aA8] Jqep
apoe) o} uoyoe ejeudoldde axe) pue S[esw jooyos
o) Buejal 1qep Jo s|ane| ey AAoaye aow ebeuep

Aouaidly3 someg

§S20'0

(swoour) 18n0931 1920

ON

ON

-dn eye) aseadu) o} sjeew

ooyas ay) Jo uonowoid pue Buneysew pasosdwt
seJnbai sy -eigeasiyoe si jey) Jabie) e aq pinoys
%2P 12y} Bunediput Apnis Juaoal e yim %pe Ajuaund
1 Sjo0Yas ul dn exe)} pue asuewsoped waunl)

Aoua19y)3 adnes

080°0

(awooul) s1aquINU [ESW aSBaIIU|

ON

ON

“KiaAllap puUE [04U0D ¥00}S JO

wuojied owosoale ue o) Buiaow pue ‘sjsem Buionpas
Aqauay) uawabeuew ejep JUO0JO31S 0) BAOLW

pue pabeuew s| 20)s Aem aU) JO MaiABI B B)eUapuUn

Aousioly3 so1ueg

ovLo

j0J)U09 pue Juswabeuew X201g

ON

ON

"PRIBAIISP S B0IAIBS

Jus.Lna ay) Aem ey) pue sesuay) aien Aeq pue
sewWoH |enuapisay ‘sooyos Kiewd ‘sjooyos ybiH
0} PaIBABP S8IN0SBI 8IAIBS BuLIBjED By} JO MaIASY

MaiAay [einjonas

[440]

abueys |einjonns yeis

ON

ON

*a0IAI8S 8U) JO AIaNIBP JU0JOBJ3 JO BSN PISESIIU)
pue eoi)oeud jsaq uo Guimelp smoy ysomseded pue
$855320.d 8210 8Y) JO MBIAG NYT"] B 8)euapun

Aouaioy)g 9o1ueg

500°0

Aouaioiye 9010 pue sabueyo ssadoid HIOM
Buuaje)

€ ONVHD TTYNOILLVSINVOMO

€190

| aBueyy jeuonesiuebiQ jejoL

SSIIAOR paleles pue Suolanposd woy
QWOoUl Ul SBSEaIoUl pue 'sjsod Buiyels ul uoyonpal
2 UliM PauUIquIoD ‘g 0} g LIOL SMOYS Ul UoHoNpay

UONBIBUSC) SO
1Aouad1y] 8o1n8g
JuoioNpay aoIAIeS

goz'o

Alanonpoud asealou| pue smoys 2onpai o) |esodold

bl

niwAk) nesyy pAmio

00€°0

s|ejo)

ON

oN

san
0) Jnoy woy siabeueiy Ao JO JBGUINU 8Y) 8INPaY

MBIABY [eInjonsig

6v0°0

Jabeuepy Ajjioed - 3Ud)) aINSIST

€l

ssasn Bunsixg

S9A

'pPaoNPal Sey SPUBYSaM 8y} Je a1juBd ay) Jo} puewap
pue Appoe; BuiBueyd umo sy sey mou D4 Asujles
se Aepinjes e uo anua) suods Asujes 8so|)

uonINPaY BJINIBS

¥00°0

Aepinjeg aso|) - ajuag suods Asu)es

[43

89 xipuaddy



=4

%LET j8Bpnq %, Sa12u81d1Ys [B)o |
86%'6 |ejo} 396pnq ojjop10d
yoedw) oyqnd seybiy =¢ 90€'T siejo} Asuaioiyg 1abpng
- S8I2UdI21Y3/SISOI JUSWISISIAUL J8Y10
joedw) aiqnd mo =z
1oedwy aqnd J2021p ON = | 90€'T sjesodoud uejd ssauisng JoO anjeA |ejol
A3X NOLLYSINODILYD w3 aBueyo jeuoyjesiuebio
[90gL _ IONVHI TVNOLLYSINVONO TV.LO0L]|
€€9°0 z aBuey) |euogyesiuebi |ejo)
651°0 Sjejor
‘991AJ85 8U) JO AIBAIBP JIUONOBID JO aSN PAsEaIIul i
ON ON pue aojoexd )saq uo Guimesp smoy yomsaded pue Asuajoy3 samnies 5000
5855820.d 921J0 8U) JO MBIABI NYTT B 8YEUapun yuswabeuew adyo g1
™M
ON OoN ‘1502 821AJ8S pue 9oeds uojepowwodde Buonpas|  Aousioy)g aoIAeg $00°0 LO
‘g)s00 Buuns aoyo ay) Jo malAal NyJ T B ayeuspun 51502 Buuuni 3y Gl
‘apenb saddn Apeaije s Ateaisp O
@oUBUBJUIBL S)| O) UCHER] Ul 8duewIopad S{OUN0D ©
8y] ‘sjuswelinbai adUBUBIBW Ul LOHONP3I Dl
o {einjeu e o} pes| [im Jey) |ppow Busolssiwwod .
N ON ' U0 paseq ‘i ay) U1 aoiaas soueusew|  MOIASY [BINDNIS 0s1°0
pue ubisep Apadoid e Suuanijap jo Aem Jaues)
PUB JUBIONE 8J0W B pue uoyestjeuonel ybnouyy
‘gje)se Aladosd Buionpal e ypm uonounfuod ul 1a6pnq asueusjulew aonpay
$)8bpnq asueuajuiew Bulsixa SHoUN0I ay) Jo MaIATY uBisaq '3 asueusjuiey Aadoad vL
0€0°0 sjejoy
“sjasse Apadoxd
siasn Bunsixg SBA N0 JO UOHJEJEA JUBLIB] UO SIS00 uoiiepidejp jo| uonessuss) SWodY| 5000 (o1
S)UBUD) WO AUBA0IDI BAIJOB)S IO PUB PASEaIU} suoiepide|ip) Asanodai 1502 Juswabeuew ajels3yx €l
'@0IAJBS 8U) Jo AIBALep DIUOIDB}S JO 8SN Pasealou| .
ON ON pue eoyjoeud jsaq uo Bumesp smoy yiomseded pue Aouaoy3 aaasg 2000
$8558004d 821J§0 8Y} JO MBIARI NYT € a)euspun juawabeuew aoyo zl
siasn Buysixg SOA *-sg0uady| Buizesb pue sjuss jeanjnoube ‘sasee| jo| UONBIBUIL) BWODU| £€20°0 S|emaual asean
|emauel ' SBSES| MBU L0 8WODU| jejuB) Ul SBSEBIOU] saje)sq g suonen|eap 1
S00°0 s{ejol
‘sndwe [jeH . ERIENVEVED
of 0| Aousatolyg oI
N N Aunon) Joj 186pnq esueuejuiew S)10ads LY UOIONPaY U3 sonss 5000 BY10 oL
0L0°0 sjejol
siasq Bunsixg oN ‘uoisinoud ansjeduad pue aaisuodses asouws e uodn uonessuss) atIooU| 0L0°0 S9SBaIIU] SWOooU)
o paseq SJasn wa)sAs wol awodul 98} Jo A1anoosy ' ALDD 6
9LL’0 sjejolL

a9 xipuaddy



19 xipuaddy

%L'9 196pnq 9, S9|oUBIDIYS B30
010'S 1230} 396pnq oljopiod
Joedw) ayjqnd se4BiH =¢ SEE'Q sjejo} Asueioyyg jebpng
{oso'0) 12140} 3 tJayl0
oedwy ojqnd mo =g
1ordw) ojqnd joesp oN = | SBE'D sjesodoid uejd sseuisng Jo anjea [ejo |
A3X NOILVSINO93LIVD wy S$323N0S3Y ANV 31d03d
GeE 0 seainosay 3§ ejdoey
TsiE10L
‘uoyin|os 9
oN oN aAoeye 1500 esow © se sepiacid saewele|  Aduetol] edeg L Buuien pty-isiig jo Buosmosing
ue ela Bujuien pry 1814 Jo uoisIAOlg
"BDIOPHOM Ul SB1oUBIo1Je Bl S
oN oN Ageseyy nessiul il Aousioy)g 831188 8 S{OOYOS O} 89IAIBG J|OS Jusl || jo uoliejueweiduy
pue Uo eoueie! jo uoganpay
oN oN -gaeds uonepowwosse eonpet o) ejbe pue| Asuejyg eainies L (1 esayd) suswebuewe ’
olqIXo| j0 UoyEjUBLBdL PUE UOYOLWOIY : i Buppop ey ¢ elqixeld Jo (%0S) oo seyung
sjuswelinbel eImnj €
s,uoyjesiuefio ey} jesw Jayeq o) ubiseq
™ b {euonesjueBfiQ P S2IN0CSOY URIWNY 10} MaNBl jeInanS L sojal qof pue jepow Bupeiedo
ainjonns pue [epow SuneIedo By} MBIAGI 0) uBisaq (euohesiuefiQ P $821NaseY UBWNH JO MBIABH |
"50INGE0| z
HH UO 83Ue([e1 83NPB (|WA PUB SIMN}
oN oN Aoueiay)3 edjaes !
sieBeuew / (yH) seanosey
uewn} Joj seN||IGisLodses pue sejal Jee|d eulepey 4
. - d - Aoueioyns jjes siebeuepy 5
oN N Jos I | o Asueiay3 esines L
fintsdn o} esiosexe Juewebieuew puewsg i0 sions] o sinis stdoad eanoe)3 a)
ubtsaq [euopesjuebiQ @ sasinosay uewny (@)
L
S[e0L
] o ojqelEne GiLvLoz w peynuept| ¥
o aN Aieae je posiwixew e)e sepiunpoddo|  Aouaioyyg eoues 1 . . i
Buipun; juesb jey) einsue o} 8sioIOX] senunpeddo uopesiwixew juesB jo uonenuy
'S991Ala8 G80U) -gse201d Ul se1OUS! €
oN oN Buipiaoud jo shem jueioye elow Auepi|  Aoueioiy3 eainies 1 i ! sooueioye
0 suonaUny BouELY Js(Eiads ABY j0 MBIAGY Anuspi 0} suoiioun esueul) JsieIdeds jo metAey
k4
“uoyouNy edUBU) WBpPOW B se ejesedo
ON ON 0} pue §91ouBIs1e 9ABIYDE O} d| MeneY [einjanIg 13 ‘|opow @3ueUY MBU JO IO ||0J paseyd
$SOUISNQ PUE BINJOTUIS JO MEIAB] B pUR
|epoyy BoUBLI4 MBU € J0 Lonejuswe|dw) oy |
SUOONPO) PUE SBIOUBI0LJ0 BIIO)HOM £012UBID1)j6 eaUOpjiom Bullqeus| |
0} PEO| || YOI UOHUSAIRJU] [ENUBW sy} ino pue dus o) esusL)
oy oN )0 winwiu ey i "Afueiolye eiow|  Asusioyy edIAIBS L o} jog Butuue|d oAy D o uoy L
usyepepun eq o} Buuojuow jebpnq ojqeus
1l 818M}|0S MBU SIU} JO Uoflonpaiu) BYL
JINVNIJ
1esodoad
pauueid — 19edwy ayqnd au1 J0 AungeIsAyep w3
uopEeNSUOI angnd o} u u do uopeuerdxy adA| jesodoig © 5] 3Jay) JI3ylaym vcm b__.._a_.“. anu"_.n sjesodoid sjesodosd aposds oN
d
anqnd ayoadg jo uonesyobayey U1 10} STIEIS YSIN 91-51
oljoyod

sa21n0say pue ajdoad 10} 91-5| 386png




%L T 186pnq v, saI1ousId|ye [BJOL
8vv'8 |e303 }eBpnq ojjojod
yoedw; 3yqnd saybiH =¢ (z81°0) sjejo} Aouso)y3 Jebpng
yoedw) ayjqnd moT = (og0) S$3|9UdI21}Ja/S)SOD JUAWISIAU] JOYIO
yedwy oygnd J0aspoN = | 8920 sjesodoud ue|d ssaujsng Jo anjea [e}0]
A3 NOILVSIH0931VD wy 8IUBUIBA0D)
8ve'o B3UBUIBACS) [EJOL
S[eloL
OoN ON ‘puewsap ul sybnoly/sieed peesds pue XiW S|INS SSEBIOW 1 WeYXBIAA YIm 5
0} WeyxaJp Yim paleys A|aAneloge|iod aq [im YOAA uonesoqe}jo) 821AI8S || paseys jo Auaaiep Ybnosy) sisod yejs pue juawsbeuew ul uolanpay 5
101 a)
SoL o
‘wes) ..omum_ 8y} jo adualjisel ey) 1oajel 4 [40]
0) peonpaJ aq |m Japes| wes) mojeq sisod Jo Jequinu DI
oN oN le18A0 8y] ‘spiepuejs |euonesiuefio sjeaw joJjuod L
jo ueds sJepes| wes) oy} By} OS PBUIWOD Bq |m
9S8l| 'SWes) |[BWS { JO S)SISUDD SBMAIBS Jneldoweq MOINBY [BIMINNS wea) ajbuls e ojul swea} Ninw ejepijosuod - Buyeis
*SI8qWBW JO JEQUNU WNWIXEW )
oN oN ay) uey) semay Bumey jeuigeD o} anp ped w pasnbas L
uey} Jefie) s) seouemoje siaquwew Joj jebpnq eyl Aauaioyyg eaniag pusds auojsiy ypm aul ul siebpng sonpay
JLvdO0W3a
S[ejoL
“puewsp ul sybnoJy/siead pesids pue xw F3
o . S|INS 8sEBaIIUl 0} Weyxalpn Yim paleys A|aAneioge)jod
N N 8q |w wopy Jebeuew abuis e sepun pauquod b
8 M yoym sweas} Z Jo Sisisuoo saoinag |eben MBINDY |BINONNS manas aolaes - Buyels
{spounod )
1ayo Jo jey; jey Ajewixoidde si jebpng edames sy}
OoN ON JO 9, B SB palles swodul 8y)) S8jEAA Ul S[IDUNCD Jayjo 1
yim aul ur 1ounod ey) ypm sjuswaaibe jebe| buusiue
oja siedojeasp 0} pebieysasr seay oy) eseessul 0| UOHRIBUBSD BWIOIU| 8W0oUl 8SE8IdU|
vo3al
jesodosd
pauueld uojjelnsuod yaeqpasy yoedui; ay1Gnd ayj jo AjjjiqeJonlep w3
B S| 18y} Jaylaym sjesodol sjesodod
s)qnd sypdeds | ayiqnd oy uadQ uopeue|dx3 adA) jesodoig | as8y) soyjay pue Ayqeidease 1 d | d dyioeds ON
j0 uopespobajen gL-st
3y} Joj SMEIS HSIY

6g xipuaddy

OljO]}I0 S2UBUIBAO0D) 10} §1-G| }abpng|




10510 8
ON S3A 10aloud Jeak ¢ Bupsixa jo uonenuguod - uieb go sup UOEIBLBD Sulodu| b | 1UN03JSI UOSIa 3buIg MaIAaY
oN S\ s(|iq Jaded ||e J0) 9bJeyo (3|  UONeIsuas) awodu| z 0900 S|Iq X€|_ 19unoy) Jaded 1o} abieyo jey |3 eonponu| 7
of s3, e UOIBIBUIS) WO | s200 9
N A piepuess se sjuawied pied ipasd uo abieyouns 4,2 o 9 | 4 | sjuawied psed ypaln uo abieyains ¢z
Sanuad 8200 S
oN SBA S}198UU07) AJIYSIUNd Je papiaosd aq [m ao1AJes | Aousioly3 adiAseSg z
siuawAed aAiz09) 0} ||I2Unod 3y sabieyd 3oy 1sod uofdo JuawAed Se aoYQ 1504 JO [EAOWRY
vl ooL'o [
ON °N Jawwns - jauige”) Aq paaibe Apeale 1abue) awodu| uonesauag swoou| b 99)AJ3S Yllieq asnoy-u|
o] |
Juawabeuew ASUBOEA 001’0 €
pue Aouepunpas Asetunjoa ybnosy pasaajaq 'sieak
N N € Jan0 Juelb suojsusd pue SYIOM Jo Juswuedag M3INSY [EIMINAS + sjyauaq Joj juesd suoisua
0} 51509 Jjels yajew o} sisod u) uoponpay puE SHJOA j0 Juawlieda 0} 5100 JEIS Yojew 0) 2INJINISal YEis
OoN OoN $7500 UIWPE U) BUIAES Fouspyy3 901A188 3 Wl vSo'0 SpIOjpUE] O} SBSIAPE soUERIWa) Bujpuas buiddals [4
= €000 g
N S2A S{jiq @ aAl@23J ajdoad asow se abejsod ui Buies Aouaiy3 aomss 4 suopesynou / Buljig @ Guines ebpng
S114INTF ANV STINNIATY
[X{A] Sadjuag yoddng Ajjunwiwo) fejo L
uoyap 0L0'0 Bubiey) isepjeal 2 ub
S e 821135 1950 Ajlenued o) yaam Jad 613 Buibieyn uoge.ausg suloou) 4 IbJey isepealgy pag
suopesiuebio G000 6u 6
o| 3, ]
o . jeusayxa oy Buien buipiacid Joj buibreyd A . .
0020 (]
ssasn Bunsiay SaA (pabseyd ApuaLIng saInua) JaLo ||y) “aoIAIes UONEIBUSY) WO £ v Buibieyn asedsja ]
wieje AJUNWWod 3y ;o) sjueud) (;ounoa buibiey) ‘.
ERIYET -
ssasn Bupsixg SaA ssuodse) (euos:ad SIN0Y 40 Ino aig o Buibseun [CEENER NI z v ajdoad Jap|Q Joj a1Aag asuodsey a
Buisea| Auadoid &
ON ON yBnosy swoou 1yeuag osmzo.x mx.__ . UONBIBUSS) SWOdU| 1 0v0'0 Buises| woyj yyauag Buisnoy we
3518 noqubiau 0€00 sQ)
siasn bugsixg S9A aoineg Bujpynod w._qus_g >w=ﬂ2.=uEu_an=m MBIADY [BIMONNS z v a0jneg Hoddng UoREpPOWWODDY paseq Ajunwwo) a
Em_:s_,g yBnouy sieak ¢ 530 sisod £ Jo uononpay DI
s1asn bunsixg SOA abBesn 10} JUN0DDY enUBASY BUISNOH abjey)|  uoesaua awool] ] 800 X ER LI o) 3
OoN OoN M3IADY [BINONIS ] v ov0'0 aIMNNsay JUSWADELBY - S80IAJRS Hoddng ANUNWWO) €
SPiojpueT oN UONESBUIS) BWodU| 1 0e0'0 1osfald suoneoso)ly pue saisibay Buisnoy 4
|e00g pasalsibay a|buis Joj spiojpue] [ejaog pasaisibay abeyd - 4 f /| 4
sbulaes 0200 ]
oN SBA JBAIIBP PUE 32|AISS SIYBL Buejam Jo uoisiAcd Ma3tAY [eInjonIIS 1 v MaIAdY wea) sIybry aJeyapm
pJenBiajes 0} AJaA|ap a0IAISS JO [apOW JBPISU0D
S3JIAN3S LHOddNS ALINNWWOD
IEL0 SadjAIeg JOWIO}SN) 810 [
PIOW 'lleH ULDaUAMT S103UL07) 24(YSIUlj4 O) SUCNBJEDAP UUIq JO 18jSuUes €
N SoA woly pasaAlap aq o) asiAsas uoiensibal [equa Aouapy3 somias ¢ v 0£0°0 |epuajod pue SUONEISING WOJ) 301AISS UONENSIBa) MEIPLIA
Wawaxnbal iy paoejdal 4
N S2A SEL UONEULIOJU) 3)ISGam |Iouno) Aunog aiysiuld Aouapyj3 ajuiss 4 800°0 syooqauoyd | g u uaape abed ||} jlouno)) jo uope|l@dUED
oN saA Buypuey MBIASY |EINONN z v sj|e2 auoydaja) 1
||ED UBIDIYa J0) SUORCO NUBU [|ed Aq pasejday i S 6600 PIROGUINMS UIBW JO} 321Asas Bunamsue (euossad ay) 9s50()
S3DIAMIS HIWOLSND
" w3
[ |d uoyey {oeqpaay 1oedw) ajqnd e s |esodoud ayj jo Aunqessnyep
onqnd syioeds | ayiand oy uad uoneueth adALfesodoid | 504, soyioum jo uonesoBares | pue Mugeidoase ay) o) snels MSH m_nmmw“ﬂ.u Fieserod auesds °n

ug xipuaddy

oljosHod

asudiajug pue Ajlunwwo?) Joj 91-G1 }obpng




%L'0T 196pnq o, sajauajoyja |ejoL
LT 12303 126pnqg ojjojuod
1oedw) 2yqnd Jaybiy =¢ SIST s1ejo0} Aauayayyg yebpng
{os00) S9]9UB|21)8[SISOI JUSWISIAU] JBYIO
1oedw) 2yqnd Mo =g
yoedw) aqnd 10ap ON = | 595°'T sjesodoud ue|d SSauisng JO anjeA |ejo | N~
A3 NOILVSINO931VD wy asudiajug g Ajunuiuod Lo
a
595°1 e
(@)
0000 (o8
oN oN MaIADY [EIMDNANS L ooLo DI
s150d Jabeuepy JOIUAS Z JO UONBRA . FANLONULSIN LNIFWIDVYNVYIN HOINIS
260°0
Jlouno) 51001040 [EJUSWUCHAUS 6000 v
Aseunjop |B20°7 aaysiul 4 S3A 0 Bu )2 10123s P} 30§ 136pnq paonpay Joag Asewnjon - 5)22(04d |BIUSWILOIALS AJUNWIWOD 3ONPaYy
LoReuLoyul 9100 €
oN SaA paseq gam paAosdus) PUE aDJAISS SI0BULCD M|  M3IA9Y [BINONAS !
a0e(das pUB BUSD UORELLIOJU) ISUNO) JO 3INSDID | safunpoddo UONEBWIO)UI JSLIN0) [BPOWSY
oN ON 1500 Jabeuepy Jojuas | Jo uonapd MaIADY [EINONNG ] Z20°0 S1aBeUBW J0jUS ayl aIMaNAsSY z
Sp00 13
oN oN Aouepunpas Ajunjoa MaIARY [BINPNAS L
ybBnouy) aaawoe o adoy - s)sod Jaolya Ul uononpay 301AI35 §0 3BIS U| UoNoNpay
{S30v1d) NOLLYHANIOIN
§20°0
5200 l
1s0d papesb
o oN Jamo| yiim aoe(dal 'Aouepunpas Aselunioa ybnong MIATY |BIMONAS ! *AJINUNUOD 3D1AISS BJEPOLWILLOIJE O} ainjoniisay buyers
1so0d auo Buiso| wea) aimonasas snid (ounod
Aq papuny A)lepsed) ysod uua) paxy jo uonsisg
INIWNHOT3IAIA SSINISNG
88L°0
Ao 8900 ol
ON ON Asualoy3 a3pues z
UOfIE20]jE SUCISU PUB SHJIOAA JO Jualwedag asn juawiey Buisnop Areuonasosiq dn doj 0} Jou uo|sIag
WaUaq Xe} (12UN0D 0020 5
s4asn bunsig S3A |ensed jo 1diadas u) ssauoisuad Joy dn doj Jo [eAowsy Aouaiay3 sainiag 4 juesb sauoisuad jo wawied uon

ug xipuaddy



oedw 2iignd JaybiH =¢

yoedwiy ajignd mo =¢

yoedwy ajqnd Jo3IIpON = |

A3 NOLLVSRIO931VI

lejol

ON

ON

"sbuipgng 21A12 Je bupjed
Jed Joj Buibreyd pue anes|
Jenuue Jo yoegAnq ‘'sied jood
10 asn 0} Bunejas Aousoiya

Aousioy3 891098

00€0

|esodold A9usiouy] 20J0MI0M

OoN

ON

‘wayshAs

Apisgns wouy xa (SvHH)
JUNO22Y anuaAdy Buisnoy jo
yoedw) ‘swweiboid jende) pue
S30UEBjEg ' SOAISSAI JO MAIABI
Bumoljo) Bummousioq uo j1sasaiu|
Jo uoponpay abreys ay) Jogep
0} (dHIN) UOISIAOIH anuaAay
wnwiui jo Bulyoiday :sease
ulew aay} 0} anp Aocualoiyyg

Aouaioi3 20IAI8S

0e8’L

MBIABY JUBWISBAU| R SUBOT [BAUSD

ON

ON

‘palinbai

Jabuoj ou sieak snoinaid w
UOl}ejjul PJEPUB)S UOU 10} SpISE
1os 196png o) Bunejas Asuaioy3

Aauasioiy3 8o1A18S

Kouaoy3 1o6png aseq uonepu| pJepuelS UoN

ON

ON

‘a1em)jos

Buroloaul o1U01)23]8 Jo asn ay)
10} j12uno?) 3y} jo siayddns o}
abseyo e 6uifidde o) uonejas ul
Ayunuoddo Bunesauab awoou|

uoljeIBUaS BWOoU|

\ 4

910

Buibieyn Jonddng juswainsoidq

pauueld
uoneNsuod
aiqnd ayidads

yoeqpe’y
anqnd o} uadQ

uopeuepdx3y

adAj |esodoid

joedwy oiqnd
e si asay)
J238ym Jo

uojespiobajen

|esodoid
ay jo
Rnqesaniap
pue
Aqeydasoe
ayy 1oy
snjess NS

w3
sjesodoud
91-GL

sjesodoud aitaads

ON

9 xipuaddy

ajeltodion B [eNUI) 9}-G| }96png




Budget 2015/16

Council Fund - Revenue

Specific Grants

Education
& Youth
Non Delegated

Delegated

Social Services

Streetscene &
Transportation

Planning &
Environment

Community &
Enterprise

Organisational
Change

Chief
Executive's

Total

Basic Skills

Language and Play

Community Learning

Community Focussed Schools

Welsh Baccalureate

Families First

Education of Travellers

Foundation Phase

Free School Milk

Funding for Youth Work Training in Wales
Learning Pathways 14-19

Minority Ethnic Achievement

School Effectiveness Grant

Pupil Deprivation Grant

School Uniform Financial Assistance Scheme
Youth Service Revenue Grant

Welsh in Education

Welsh Network of Healthy School Schemes
Education Improvement Grant for Schools
Youth Crime Prevention Fund

YOT / Youth Justice Board

Teaching Induction Training

Youth Engagement Programme

National Literacy Tests

DCELLS (Post 16 provision in schools)

Social Care Workforce Development Programme

Well Being Activity

Flying Start

Implementation of Mental Health Act 2007
Youth Service Community Service Grants

Concessionary Travel
Local Transport Services
Sustainable Waste Management

Safer Communities Fund

Food Hygiene Rating

Animal Health & Welfare Enforcement
Substance Misuse

Crime Reduction and Anti Social Behaviour
Planning - Delivering for Wales

Domestic Abuse Co-ordinator Funding

Supporting People
Communities First
Tidy Towns

Free Swimming

National Exercise Referral
NE Wales Play Forum
Active Young People

LS8 Development Support Grant

Budget Budget Variance to
2014-15 2015-16 2014-15
£ £ £
137,526 0 (137,526)
0 58,376 58,376
3,311 2,034 (1,277)
97,877 97,877 0
61,740 61,740 0
1,735,285 1,735,285 0
70,673 0 (70,673)
4,949,746 0 (4,949,746)
179,773 179,773 0
22,000 22,000 0
360,000 0 (360,000)
128,032 0 (128,032)
1,403,508 0 (1,403,508)
2,295,918 2,525,510 229,592
30,487 30,487 0
126,756 126,756 0
215,374 0 (215,374)
87,320 87,320 0
0 6,446,505 6,446,505
0 221,882 221,882
327,280 241,006 (86,274)
0 30,000 30,000
0 50,000 50,000
35,450 0 (35,450)
12,268,056 11,916,551 (351,505)
5,935,481 5,787,094 (148,387)
5,935,481 5,787,094 (148,387)
356,833 367,000 10,167
10,000 10,000 0
2,722,790 2,954,700 231,910
0 0 0
0 0 0
3,089,623 3,331,700 242,077
1,991,843 2,058,000 66,157
399,062 399,062 0
2,976,172 3,006,226 30,054
5,367,077 5,463,288 96,211
76,868 221,881 145,013
5,969 0 (5,969)
15,646 0 (15,646)
293,353 638,139 344,786
121,203 31,566 (89,637)
20,000 0 (20,000)
27,500 37,500 10,000
560,539 929,086 368,547
6,483,688 5,809,818 (673,870)
708,911 708,911 0
0 0 0
7,192,599 6,518,729 (673,870)
156,567 164,807 8,240
118,750 125,000 6,250
340,086 319,010 (21,076)
439,867 541,638 101,771
1,055,270 1,150,455 95,185
50,000 50,000 0
50,000 50,000 0
35,518,645 35,146,903 (371,742)

Page 59

Appendix 7

Confirmed (C)
or Estimated (E)

ommommmommmOOoOoOoOmmoOooOommMmMmMmmMm

mmmmmmm mmm OoOommm m

mmm

mmom



Page 60



Appendix 8

Budget 2015/16
Council Fund - Revenue

Summary of Council Fund Earmarked Reserves

Estimated Estimated
Balance Balance
01/04/15 31/03/16
£m £m

Service Reserves
Social Care 0.032 0.000
Total 0.032 0.000
Corporate Reserves
Equal Pay / Single Status 15.132 7.247
Business Transformation / Workforce Planning 6.148 0.313
Total 21.280 7.560
Specific Reserves
Insurance Reserves 0.558 0.803
Housing Benefits 0.319 0.300
Supporting People 1.493 1.014
Building Control 0.109 0.000
Winter Maintenance 0.250 0.250
Waste 0.327 0.227
Unitary Development Plan / Local Development Plan 0.427 0.427
Post 16 Education 0.164 0.314
Community Equipment Store 0.120 0.120
Various (Value of each less than £0.1m) 0.453 0.132
Total 4.220 3.587
Total Council Fund Earmarked Reserves 25.532 11.147

Page 61



Page 62



APPENDIX 9

Flintshire County Council

Feedback on the 2015/16 Budget Proposals

Summary Report

January 2015

P Ty Fflint
Tirtshie




Contents

The purpose inviting feedback
The period open for feedback
How people could feedback
What people told us
Equality Impact Assessment workshop
Background papers
Statistics
Hits and views
Demographic information

Equality Impact Assessment

Next steps

Page 64

O ~r WO O W W

(o)}

11



The purpose of inviting feedback:

e To raise awareness of the 2015/16 budget proposals

The period open for feedback:
e Thursday 18 December 2014 — Sunday 11 January 2015

How people could feedback:

A bi-lingual, on-line, self-selection feedback form using Survey Monkey software accessible
via the Council's:

e new e-magazine ‘Your Council’ / ‘Eich Cyngor’
e website flintshire.gov.uk/FCCBudget / siryfflint/CyllidebCSyFf
e corporate Twitter account @FlintshireCC / @CSyFflint

93 people provided feedback by a range of methods

e on-line
e emalils to service managers
e telephone responses

What people told us:

The proposals were grouped to match the Council's five Scrutiny Committee themes with
open feedback invited against each grouped set of proposals.

Feedback was collected via a Survey Monkey feedback form and other comments were
also received through the emagazine ‘Your Council’ feedback option, by direct email and via
telephone. All feedback has been collected into one comprehensive public feedback
document.

In their feedback people generally were keen to ensure that the impacts of the proposals
would not adversely affect other services delivered by the Council or other organisations.
The continued protection of the young and the vulnerable was also raised particularly in
relation to equality of opportunity, the retention and accessibility of localised services and
community protection.

Each themed area also received feedback in relation to workforce and resources where
ideas and suggestions were put forward for improvements and efficiencies and also a range
of general issues and topics not specifically related to a particular proposal.

Below is a summary of the areas covered in the feedback received:
Corporate Resources
Withdrawal of registration service from outstations

Alternative payment methods
Withdrawal or reduction of benefits

Main switchboard personal answering service

Page 65 3



Reduction in performances at Clwyd Theatr Cymru
Property maintenance/assets
Environment
Car parking charges
Street lighting
Highway and winter maintenance
Waste and recycling
Public transport
Tourist information
Public protection
Income generation
Transfer of assets to Town & Community Councils
Housing
Benefits
Lifelong Learning

Education and youth services
Sports and leisure

Libraries

Clwyd Theatr Cymru

Social and Health Care
Social Services for Adults

Social Services for Children

Equality Impact Assessment

In addition to collecting the public feedback highlighted above, an Equality Impact
Assessment workshop was held on the evening of Monday 5 January 2014. The purpose of
the workshop was to look at the Category 2 and 3 proposals (those with lower and higher
direct public impact) and discuss what potential they had to specifically impact on any of the
9 protected characteristic groups and the Welsh Language.

17 people attended the session, representing older age groups; disability groups; the Welsh
language; people from a black and minority background; Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and
Transgender (LGBT) groups. Also in attendance were the Trade Unions and other groups
representing all protected characteristics such as North Wales Regional Equality Network.

The main outcome of the session was the identification of those proposals which would
require a full Equality Impact Assessment and highlighting the potential negative impact of

Page 66



proposals which could be reduced if other actions were taken such as providing financial
capability sessions to reduce the impact of bed and breakfast charging.

Concern was also expressed generally about the cumulative impact of the proposals i.e.
where an efficiency on its own may not have a significant impact but considered along with
a group of others could have a significant impact.

It was also felt that consideration needed to be given to ensure that making savings in one
area didn't increase the demand and cost for services elsewhere i.e. those who are
reluctant or unable to pay Telecare costs become less independent and rely heavily on
social services.

Background Papers
Public feedback document

Equality Impact Assessment workshop recorded feedback

Page 67



Statistics

Hits and views

During the open period for feedback following statistics were recorded:

English | Welsh
Views on page 1 of *Your Council’ 4797 228
Views on the Budget proposals introduction page of Your Council 3097 59
Following through to specific grouped proposals:
Corporate Resources 1803 40
Environment 1628 32
Housing 1256 35
Lifelong Learning 1369 35
Social and Health Care 1400 32
Views on the budget proposals ‘Your Feedback’ page of Your 1325 34
Council
Unique users - ‘Big Budget Conversation’ web page 297 7

Page 68




Demographic Information

How people best described themselves

Answer Choices Responses
I live in Flintshire / Rwy'n byw yn Sir y Fflint 51.09% -
| work in Flintshire / Rwy’'n gweithio yn Siry Fflint 6.52%
1 live and work in Flintshire / Rwy'n byw ac yn gweithio yn Siry Fflint 23.91% .
| represent a Flintshire business / Rwy'n cynrychioli busnes yn Sir y Fflint 1.09% 1
| represent a Flintshire business / Rwy'n cynrychioli busnes yn Siry Fflint 0.00% 0
::lf'le_present a business outside of Flintshire / Rwy'n cynrychioli busnes y tu allan i Siry 0.00% 0
int
| represent a Flintshire organisation / Rwy’n cynrychioli sefydliad yn Siry Fflint 217% 2
| represent an organisation outside of Flintshire / Rwy'n cynrychioli sefydliad y tu allan 1.09% 1
i Siry Fflint
1 am a visitor to Flintshire / Rwy'n ymweld & Sir y Fflint 0.00% ¥
Cther / Arall 14.13%
13
Total G2

Those people who ticked either option 2 or 3 above were asked a supplementary question ‘Are you

an employee of Flintshire County Council?’ Overall 26% of those people who responded work for
the Council.

Answer Choices Responses
English / Saesneg 100.00% &1
Welsh / Cymraeg 0.00% 0
Other f Arall 0.00% 0
Total 81

Preferred Language

Page 69



Age

Answer Choices
under/dan 16
17-24
25.44
45-64
€5-74
75+

Total

Answer Choices
Male / Gwryw
Female / Benyw

Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio d dweud

Total
Gender

Answer Choices
Yes / Ydw
No / Nac Ydw
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio & dweud

Total
Transgender

Page 70

Responses
0.00%
1.61%
22.58%
48.3%%
22.58%

4.84%

Responses
35.59%
55.93%

8.47%

Responses
1.67%
80.00%

18.33%

]
[N

o

th
w



Answer Choices

Bisexual / Deurywiol

Gay man / Dyn Hoyw

Cther ! Arall

Gay woman / lesbhian / Merch Hoyw / Lesbiad
Heterosexual / straight / Heterorywiol / Strét

Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidic & dweud

Total
Sexuality

Answer Choices
Yes / Ydw
No !/ Nac Ydw
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio & dweud
Total
Disability

Ethnicity

Answer Choices
White / Gwyn
Mixed / Cymysg
Other / Arall
Asian, Asian British / Asiaidd, Asiaidd Prydeinig
Black, Black British / Du, Du Prydeinig
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio & dweud

Jotal

Page 71

Responses
1.89% 1
1.89% 1
0.00% 0
0.00% 0
69.81% 37
26.42% 14
53
Responses
8.47% 4
74.58% 44
16.95% 10
59
Responses
74.70% 62
0.00% 0
14.46% 12
0.00% {
0.00% g
10.84% 9



Cultural background — White

Answer Choices Responses
British / Prydeinig 56.60%
English/ Seisnig 11.32%
Other / Arall 1.89%
Scottisi / Albanaidd 0.00%
Welsh / Cymreig 24.53%
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio § dweud 5.66%
Irish { Gwyddelig 0.00%
Gypsy or irish Traveller / Sipsi neu Deithiwr Gwyddelig 0.00%

Total

Where ‘Other’ was selected ‘Mixed English and Welsh’ was specified.

Answer Choices Responses
White / Black Caribbean - Gwyn / Du Caribiaidd 0.00%
White / Black African - Gwyn / Du Affricanaidd 0.00%
Other/ Arall 0.00%
White / Asian - Gwyn /Asiaidd 0.00%
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio & dweud 100.00%

Total

Cultural background — Mixed

Religion and belief

Page 72

o
(%



Answer Choices Responses

Buddhist / Bwdhydd 0.00%
Christian / Cristion 52.24%
Other / Arall 16.42%
Hindu / Hindw 0.00%
Jewish | lddew 0.00%
Muslim / Mwslim 0.00%
Sikh / Sikh 0.00%
Atheism / Anffyddiaeth 13.43%
Prefer not to say / Well gen i beidio 3 dweud 17.91%
Where ‘Other’ was selected ‘Christo-Pagan’ and ‘... | have no religion’ was specified.

Equality Impact Assessment Statistics

Protected Characteristic (PC) Number of proposals impacting on people with PC’s

Age Older people 16 / younger people 9

Disability 18

GR 6

Race 10

Religion and Belief 2

Marriage and Civil Partnership 0

Pregnancy and maternity 1

Sex 3

Sexual orientation 3

Welsh language 3

Poverty 4 (need to clarify which groups most likely to experience
poverty)

Next steps

The feedback received will be considered by the Council's Scrutiny Committees in January.

Open to the public the meetings will be held on:

Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee Thursday 22 January 2015 at 10am
Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee Friday 23 January 2015 at 10am

Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee Friday 23 January 2015 at 2pm

Social & Healthcare Overview & Scrutiny Committee Monday 26 January 2015 at 10am
Lifelong Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee Monday 26 January 2015 at 2pm

The proposals will be considered for final approval at a meeting of Flintshire County Council
on Tuesday 17 February 2015.

11

Page 73



Page 74



Agenda Item 11

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
DATE: TUESDAY 17 FEBRUARY 2015
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER

(ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE), CORPORATE
FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16
AND INDICATIVE FUNDING TO 2018/19

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present the annual Council Fund Capital Programme for 2015/16
and indicative funding levels to 2018/19.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The draft annual Council Fund Capital Programme for 2015/16 and
the indicative funding levels to 2018/19 was considered by Cabinet on
Tuesday 16" December 2014 for initial approval and was also
referred to Overview and Scrutiny for consideration.

2.02 The draft proposals were considered by the Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 30" January 2015 (a meeting
which was open to all Members), where Members offered comments
and asked questions to clarify issues. A summary of these, together
with Officers responses, is included in Appendix 3 of the attached
Cabinet report.

2.03 The final budget proposals for 2015/16 and the indicative funding to
2018/19, which were unchanged from the draft stage, were
considered by Cabinet earlier today. A copy of the report is attached
as Appendix A.

2.04 Cabinet were recommended to approve the recommendations as set
out in 9.01 of the attached report in full for recommendation to
Council. A verbal update from Cabinet will be provided at the
meeting. It is normal Council practice to approve the annual Capital
Programme at the annual budget setting meeting alongside the
annual Council Fund Revenue Budget.

Page 75



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

CONSIDERATIONS

Flintshire has to achieve revenue efficiencies of circa £50m over the
next three years and pressure on capital resources comes at the
same time as these revenue pressures and is set to continue until at
least the end of the decade. The combination of the two means that it
is more important than ever that the Council’s revenue and capital
service delivery and financial planning are fully integrated.

In approving the 2014/15 Capital Programme Members endorsed a
more prudent approach to setting the capital budget, particularly in
relation to the recognition of capital receipts. This led to a reduced
core programme in 2014/15 and in proposing the budget for 2015/16
this approach has been replicated again.

The Council is currently developing its Capital Strategy and integrated
Asset Management Plan. The document will set out clearly the overall
approach to capital management, alternative sources of funding and
the effective delivery of its capital programmes of work in the future
which are likely to move from the current core programme approach to
one which is business case derived. This approach to future capital
programme delivery will form one of the strands of an overall
approach which will be set out within the Medium Term Financial Plan
and will also assist and support a more structured and focussed
delivery of the capital budget.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Council approve the recommendations listed within the attached
report from Cabinet at Section 9.01.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific anti poverty
impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific
environmental impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual capital programme schemes may have specific equalities
impacts.

Page 76



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

All Members and Overview and Scrutiny.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

All Members and Overview and Scrutiny on 30th January 2015.

APPENDICES

Appendix A - Report to Cabinet 17" February 2015: Council Fund
Capital Programme 2015/16 and Indicative Funding to 2018/19.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

2015/16 budget papers, including Welsh government papers

Contact Officer: Gary Ferguson

Corporate Finance Manager
Telephone: 01352 702271
Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER (ORGANISATIONAL

CHANGE), CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2015/16 AND
INDICATIVE FUNDING TO 2018/19

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 The purpose of the report is to set out proposals for the Council Fund
Capital Programme for 2015/16 (with indicative funding estimates for
future years).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council plans on a 4 year capital programme timescale. Each year,
the Council sets its capital programme for the coming year and provides
an indication of the estimated level of resources available and has
historically shown the potential allocation to service areas in future years.

2.02 Indicative amounts for 2015/16 were shown in the Capital programme
2014/15 report which was agreed by Council on 18" February 2014.

2.03 A meeting hosted by Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee was held on 30" January to enable all Members to consider
the 2015/16 capital programme. Members raised various comments and
questions, responses were provided and a summary of these are in
Appendix 3.

3.00 CAPITAL STRATEGY

3.01 Flintshire, along with all Councils, has experienced significant pressure
on its capital programme in recent years. This results from reduced
funding available through the annual financial settlement from Welsh
Government (WG) and the impact the current austerity measures and
related financial climate continues to have on the Councils ability to
generate capital receipts.

Page 79



3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

Furthermore, as WG seeks to manage its own budgets, the specific
grants available to Councils for capital investment in particular services
have become more limited. For example, the initial funding proposal for
the 21% Century Schools programme was; half unsupported (prudential)
borrowing and the remaining half from WG specific capital grant. The
WG half is now a mixture of grant and further Council borrowing with the
WG providing revenue funding to support principal repayments and
interest on the debt.

Flintshire has to achieve revenue efficiencies of circa £50m over the next
three years and pressure on capital resources comes at the same time as
these revenue pressures and is set to continue until at least the end of
the decade. The combination of the two means that it is more important
than ever that the Council's revenue and capital service delivery and
financial planning are fully integrated.

In approving the 2014/15 Capital Programme Members endorsed a more
prudent approach to setting the capital budget, particularly in relation to
the recognition of capital receipts (Sections 5.02.2 to 5.02.6 of the
Council Fund Capital Programme 2014/15 report to Cabinet on 18"
February, 2014 refer). This led to a reduced core programme in 2014/15
and in proposing the budget for 2015/16 this approach has been
replicated again.

Against this backdrop it is important to note that the Council sets its core
capital programme and puts in place funding to meet urgent needs for
2015/16 to enable the resources to be in place to:-

e Support emerging requirements for change flowing from the
Council's current business planning process;

e Support key service needs e.g. schools maintenance;

e Support investment which enables change and service flexibility
e.g. ICT networks; and

e Provide funding for property related costs e.g. Health & Safety
measures, as well as measures to improve accessibility to our
properties for those with disabilities.

In addition to the work and position detailed above the Council is
currently developing its Capital Strategy and integrated Asset
Management Plan. The document will set out clearly the overall
approach to capital management, alternative sources of funding and the
effective delivery of its capital programmes of work in the future which are
likely to move from the current core programme approach to one which is
business case derived. This approach to future capital programme
delivery will form one of the strands of an overall approach which will be
set out within the Medium Term Financial Plan and will also assist and
support a more structured and focussed delivery of the capital budget.

Page 80



4.00 FUNDING SHORTFALL OF APPROVED SCHEMES

4.01 The final 2013/14 outturn of approved schemes was a shortfall carried
into financial year 2014/15 of £1.578m, as a direct result of receipts in
previous years not being achieved or not achieving their anticipated
levels. The aim, when setting the 2014/15 programme, was to focus on
and eradicate this shortfall in order to place the capital programme on a
sound footing going into 2015/16. This was to be achieved by:-

e the reduction in the core programme described in paragraph 3.03,
and

e capital receipts generated in-year.
The projection (to date) is that this aim will be achieved.

5.00 FUNDING THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

5.01 The capital programme includes the following parts which are funded as
shown below:-

(a) A core capital programme resourced by:-

¢ The funding mechanisms within the WG financial settlement
(general capital grant and supported borrowing where WG
recognise the cost of this level of borrowing through funding in
the revenue financial settlement in the Revenue Support
Grant); and

e Capital receipts from the sale of Council assets in accordance
with the disposal programme.

The Council has discretion to allocate both of these resources as it
determines to meet its local priorities and needs.

(b) Capital schemes funded from specific grants which are for specific
purposes as directed by WG or other grant providers;

(c) WG supported borrowing through the Local Government
Borrowing Initiative (LGBI) for the 21% Century Schools (WG
element); and

(d) Locally determined unsupported (prudential) borrowing, the costs

of which are met from the Council's revenue budget without
support from WG.

Page 81



6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

6.04

6.05

CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The total projected (to date) core funding available over the 4 year period
2015/16 to 2018/19, by way of the sources in 5.01 (a) above, is shown in
the table below and amounts to £27.472m.

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE FUNDING 2015/16 - 2018/19

201516 201617 201718 201819 Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Financing (Excluding Specific Grants)
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB)1 4210 4210 4210 4210 17.080
General Capital Grant (GCG)1 2598 2508 2598 2508 10.392
Total 6868 6868 6868  6.868 21412

1 As per 15/16 Final Settlement.

This shows that the total projected (to date) resources available in
2015/16 to fund the core capital programme are £6.868m.

Funding

The basis for the estimates of funding levels are as follows:-

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) and General Capital
Grant (GCG)

The final financial settlement received from WG on 10" December 2014
indicated a total of £6.868m, £4.270m through USB and £2.598m via
GCG for 2015/16. This has been assumed to be consistent throughout
the reporting period.

The total is £0.004m less than the 2015/16 provisional financial
settlement reported to Cabinet on 16" December 2014.

Capital Receipts

The issue of capital receipts continues to be problematic and is
negatively impacted upon by the current economic climate which leads to
lower than anticipated disposal values in the current market. It is
therefore difficult to predict with certainty when disposals will be effected
and the funds realised to support the capital programme.

Page 82



6.06

6.07

6.08

6.09

6.10

As a consequence of this continued position it is considered to be
imprudent to set capital budgets where the funding may not be realised.
In setting the 2014/15 Capital Programme a budget with a minimal target
was set which the Council could be confident in achieving and would
address the shortfall described in Section 4 above (£1.578m). Any
additional receipt over and above this target figure would be allocated in
2015/16, placing the Capital Programme on a more secure footing during
difficult economic times.

The current projection for capital receipts in 2014/15 is sufficient to meet
2014/15 core capital expenditure, though receipts actually received to
date are minimal. Given past experience and the legal complexities that
can occur in generating a capital receipt; the recommendation is to
assume no receipts from 2014/15 are available to fund the 2015/16 core
programme.

Further, it is therefore recommended that the 2015/16 core capital
programme budget be set based without reliance on any capital receipts
generated in 2015/16.

For information the Council is currently estimating a level of anticipated
capital receipts in the order of £2.800m for financial year 2015/16,
however, and for the reasons stated above, the delivery of these receipts
is subject to negative market forces and legal complexities and at this
stage in the budget setting process the delivery of this level of receipts
should be treated with some caution.

It is of course possible that receipts generated in 2014/15 will exceed
those needed to fund core capital expenditure. Any receipts generated
over and above anticipated need during the remainder of 2014/15 could
either be:-

e Allocated to the 2015/16 programme in year through quarterly
budget monitoring reports to fund the core capital programme or
works arising from corporate priorities; or

e Allocated for use in future years.

Allocation of the available funding

As indicated in 6.02, the total amount available to fund the core capital
programme in 2015/16 is £6.868m.

A review of the core schemes has been carried out and the resulting
recommended allocations for 2015/16 are summarised in the table below,
with a more detailed breakdown in Appendix 1. The allocations total
£6.535m.

Page 83



6.11

6.12

CORE ALLOCATIONS BY PORTFOLIO
£m

Chief Executives 0.020
People & Resources 0.075
Govemnance 0.170
Education & Youth 2.035
Community & Enterprise 2.265
Planing & Environment 0.290
Transport & Streetscene 0.860
Organisational Change 0.820
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 6.535

Detailed programmes for future years will be drawn up in the light of
actual levels of receipts becoming known.

The recommended allocations above result in a balance of £0.333m of
core funding unallocated. This is a prudent position moving into the new
financial year and provides a degree of protection to the core programme
to deal with any issues which may arise in the delivery of those
programmes.

The intention is to consider the emerging requirements for capital funding
from the business plans to enable organisational change and deliver the
necessary revenue efficiencies over the medium term.

It is recommended that unallocated funding, along with any surplus
capital receipts realised in 2014/15 (if any, and over and above
requirements set out in 6.07 above), be allocated to capital schemes
arising from business plans. This would be subject to Portfolios
submitting a sound business case and with the approval of Cabinet at a
later date.

Current requirements under assessment at this stage include; investment
in schools in support of school modernisation and repair programmes,
investment to facilitate Community Asset Transfers (CAT's) and the
installation of income generating energy installation facilities.

Page 84



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.06

ESTIMATED TOTAL COUNCIL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

The total projected funding available (including the core programme) over
the 4 year period 2015/16 to 2018/19, by way of the sources in 5.01 (a) to
(d) above, is shown in the table below and amounts to £82.719m.

ESTIMATED AVAILABLE TOTAL FUNDING 2015/16 - 2018/19
2015/16  2016/17 2017118 2018/19 | Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Funding (Total)

General Funding

Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) ! 4270 4270 4270 4270 17.080

General Capital Grant (GCG) ! 2598 2598 2.598 2598 | 10.392

Sub Total 6.868 6.868 6.868 6.868 | 27472

Specific Funding

Specific Capital Grants 19.959 4.250 0.504 24713

Unsupported (Prudential) Bormowing 20.290 4637 0.443 25.370

Local Govt Borrowing Initiative - 21st C Schools 3575 1.589 5.164

Sub Total 43824 10476 0.947 0.000 | 55.247

Total Funding Available 50692 17.344 7815 6.868 82.719
1 As per 15/16 Final Settlement.

This shows that the total resources available in 2015/16 to fund the
capital programme are £50.692m.

Appendix 2 sets out the estimated total capital programme for 2015/16,
taking account of all funding sources referred to in Section 5. These are
detailed below.

The core allocations, as funded by those sources referred to in Section 5,
can be found in the column ‘General'.

Specific allocations can be found in the column ‘Specific’. In 2015/16 this
adds further investment of £43.824m (See 7.06 to 7.09 below).

Specific grants amount to £19.959m, the majority of which is 21%' Century
Schools (£19.122m). The amounts included are based on historical
allocations and information available at the time of writing the report, any
subsequent variation in the level of individual grants will be dealt with by
amendments in subsequent budget setting reports, or by amending the
budget in monitoring reports as necessary in year (2015/16). These
allocations are for specific time durations hence the variation in amount
year on year.

Page 85



7.07

7.08

7.09

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

Unsupported (prudential) borrowing of £20.290m relates to Flintshire's
element of the 21%' Century Schools programme.

Welsh Government Local Government Borrowing Initiation (LGBI) funding
mechanism for 21%' Century Schools comprises an element of LGBI and
specific capital grant. This equates to £22.697m for Flintshire in 2015/16
(£3.575m LGBI, £19.122m specific grant).

The funding for 2015/16 includes £42.907m related to 21%' Century
Schools. Whilst preliminary expenditure on the programme has taken
place in 2013/14 and 2014/15, the profile is for significant expenditure to
commence from 2015/16 to deliver on the £64m of investment in
Flintshire schools under the 21% Century programme which is funded
equally by Flintshire and WG.

CONSULTATION

A meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee
was held on 30th January 2015, at which the capital programme
proposals as set out in this paper were considered. The scrutiny meeting
was open to all Members of the Council and the feedback from the
meeting is incorporated at Appendix 3.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is invited to recommended to Council on 17" February:

Approval of the allocation of funding to the core capital programme in
2015/16, as shown in Appendix 1 (and note the indicative funding
available for future years).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific anti-poverty
impacts.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific environmental
impacts.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

Individual Capital Programme Schemes may have specific equality
impacts.

Page 86



14.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

14.01  None directly as a result of this report.

15.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

15.01  All Members through Overview & Scrutiny.

16.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

16.01  Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 30" January
2015.

17.00 APPENDICES

17.01  Appendix 1 - Core Capital Programme Schemes 2015/16
Appendix 2 - Total Capital Programme 2015/16
Appendix 3 - Feedback from Overview and Scrutiny

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:  Gary Ferguson

Telephone: 01352 702271

Email: gary.ferguson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 87



Page 88



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1

2015/16
Estimate
£m
SUMMARY
CHIEF EXECUTIVES 0.020
PEOPLE & RESOURCES 0.075
GOVERNANCE 0.170
EDUCATION & YOUTH 2.035
SOCIAL CARE 0.000
COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE 2.265
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 0.290
TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE 0.860
ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2 0.820
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 6.535
FINANCING
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4.270
General Capital Grant 2.598
(Unallocated - Headroom) / Under Financing (0.333)
TOTAL - FINANCING 6.535

Page 89




CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2015/16

Estimate
£m
CHIEF EXECUTIVES
Clwyd Theatr Cymru
General Provision 0.020
TOTAL - CHIEF EXECUTIVES 0.020
PEOPLE & RESOURCES
Corporate Finance
General Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075
TOTAL - PEOPLE & RESOURCES 0.075
GOVERNANCE
ICT and Customer Services
General ICT Infrastructure 0.170
TOTAL - GOVERNANCE 0.170
EDUCATION & YOUTH
Education - General
Various School Building Works 1.700
Various DD Act - Individual Pupils 0.250
Various Furniture and Equipment 0.045
Primary Schools
Various Learning Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.040
TOTAL - EDUCATION & YOUTH 2.035

Page 90




CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2015/16
Estimate
£m

SOCIAL CARE
Social Care

General Capital Works 0.000

TOTAL - SOCIAL CARE 0.000
COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE
Grants

Various Private Sector Renewal & Improvements 1.730

Shotton Housing Renewal Area Support 0.155
Flintshire Connects

Various Flintshire Connects 0.250
Regeneration

Various Town Centre Regeneration 0.130

TOTAL - COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE 2.265
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT
Energy Services

Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.100
Engineering

Various Land Drainage Works 0.045

Various Coast Protection Works 0.070
Townscape Heritage Initiative

Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.075

TOTAL - PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 0.290

Page 91



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 1 (Cont.)

2015/16
Estimate
£m
TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE
Highways
Various Highways Infrastructure 0.520
Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.100
Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.120
Various Structural Maintenance 0.120
TOTAL - TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE 0.860
ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2
Administrative Buildings
Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.175
Various Asbestos Removal 0.070
Various Legionella Works 0.070
Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.055
Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100
Various Corporate Property Maintenance 0.350
TOTAL - ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2 0.820
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND || 6.535 |

Page 92



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2

Estimate 2015/16
Estimated Financing
Payments General  Specific
£m £m £m

SUMMARY
CHIEF EXECUTIVES 0.020 0.020 0.000
PEOPLE & RESOURCES 0.075 0.075 0.000
GOVERNANCE 0.170 0.170 0.000
EDUCATION & YOUTH 45.022 2035 42987
SOCIAL CARE 0.000 0.000 0.000
COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE 2.841 2.265 0.576
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 0.551 0.290 0.261
TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE 0.860 0.860 0.000
ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2 0.820 0.820 0.000
TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND 50.359 6.535 43.824
FINANCING
Unhypothecated Supported Borrowing (USB) 4.270 4270
General Capital Grant 2.598 2.598
Capital Receipts
Specific Capital Grants 19.959 19.959
Unsupported (Prudential) Borrowing 20.290 20.290
LGBI - 21st Century Schools 3.575 3.575
(Unallocated - Headroom) / Under Financing (0333)]  (0.333)  0.000
TOTAL - FINANCING 50.359 6.535 43.824

Page 93



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)

Estimate 2015/16
Estimated Financing
Payments General  Specific
£m £m £m

CHIEF EXECUTIVES
Clwyd Theatr Cymru

General Provision 0.020 0.020

TOTAL - CHIEF EXECUTIVES 0.020 0.020 0.000
PEOPLE & RESOURCES
Corporate Finance

General Capital Works - Health & Safety 0.075 0.075

TOTAL - PEOPLE & RESOURCES 0.075 0.075 0.000
GOVERNANCE
ICT and Customer Services

General ICT Infrastructure 0.170 0.170

TOTAL - GOVERNANCE 0.170 0.170 0.000
EDUCATION & YOUTH
Education - General

Various School Building Works 1.700 1.700

Various DD Act - Individual Pupils 0.250 0.250

Various Furniture and Equipment 0.045 0.045
Primary Schools

Various Leaming Environments (Foundation Phase) 0.040 0.040
School Modernisation

Shotton Taliesin Junior/Shotton Infant 0.080 0.080

Various 21st Century Schools 42.907 42.907

TOTAL - EDUCATION & YOUTH 45022 | 2.035| 42.987

Page 94



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)

Estimate 2015/16
Estimated Financing
Payments General Specific
£m £m £m

SOCIAL CARE
Social Care

General Capital Works 0.000 0.000

TOTAL - SOCIAL CARE 0.000 0.000 0.000
COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE
Grants

Various Private Sector Renewal & Improvements 1.878 1.730 0.148

Shotton Housing Renewal Area Support 0.433 0.155 0.278
Flintshire Connects

Various Flintshire Connects 0.250 0.250
|Regeneration

Various Town Centre Regeneration 0.130 0.130
Travellers' Sites

Queensferry  Riverside Caravan Site 0.150 0.150

TOTAL - COMMUNITY & ENTERPRISE 2.841 2.265 0.576
PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT
Energy Services

Various Energy Efficiency Measures 0.100 0.100
Engineering

Various Land Drainage Works 0.045 0.045

Various Coast Protection Works 0.070 0.070
Townscape Heritage Initiative

Flint Townscape Heritage Initiative 0.309 0.075 0.234
Ranger Services

Connahs Quay Wepre Park Development 0.027 0.027

TOTAL - PLANNING & ENVIRONMENT 0.551 0.290 0.261

Page 95



CORE CAPITAL PROGRAMME SCHEMES APPENDIX 2 (Cont.)

Estimate 2015/16
Estimated Financing
Payments General  Specific
£m £m £m

TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE
Highways

Various Highways Infrastructure 0.520 0.520

Various Bridge Assessments and Replacement 0.100 0.100

Various Street Lighting Replacement 0.120 0.120

Various Structural Maintenance 0.120 0.120

TOTAL - TRANSPORT & STREETSCENE 0.860 0.860 0.000
ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2
Administrative Buildings

Various Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) Works 0.475 0.175

Various Asbestos Removal 0.070 0.070

Various Legionella Works 0.070 0.070

Various Upgrading Fire and Intruder Alarms 0.055 0.055

Various Fire Safety Order Works 0.100 0.100

Various Cormporate Property Maintenance 0.350 0.350

TOTAL - ORGANISATIONAL CHANGE 2 0.820 0.820 0.000

TOTAL - COUNCIL FUND | | 50350 | 6.535| 43.824 |

Page 96



‘Buimoliog [enuapnud Jo asn ayj} buipnjoul
‘pessalppe 8q Ued siyl MOy 0} Se uoljew.ojul Jayuny
pajsanbai aAey Auiiniog @ malnIaAQ Buluies Buojay

‘9ouBUSUIRW pue Jiedal Bulpue)sino Jo [9A8| 8y}
SSsalpal 0} JuUSIdIYNSUI SI WQQO. L3 8y} Jeyy pajdadoe st )

¢sbuiping
|OOYDS INO Ul UONEeIOLd)Bp JO djel ayl yum asedwod
SIy} Se0p MOH ‘wQQ/’L3 S!I uoneoo|e siledas syl

aoueuauIel g Jjeday [00YdS

0’}

:sasuodsay

:suUoiISaNY pue SjUBAWWOD

‘oN

swweibold [ejide) pung [IoUNo0Y) — S83inosay ajelodio)

ANILNYIS ® MIIAYIAO

€ XIAN3ddV

Page 97



Page 98



Agenda Item 12

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE, CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY
AND ENTERPRISE), CORPORATE _FINANCE
MANAGER

SUBJECT: HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 2015/16 & CAPITAL
PROGRAMME 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Revenue and
Capital Budget for 2015/16.

2.00 BACKGROUND

The final proposals for the HRA Revenue and Capital budget for the
2015/16 financial year, including proposed rent increases were
considered by Cabinet on 17t February 2015, and recommendations
made to County Council. A copy of the report is attached as Appendix
1.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

The outcome of the Cabinet meeting will be reported verbally to the
Council, along with a presentation on the main details of the HRA for
2015/16.

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to receive and approve the
recommendation from Cabinet on 17t February 2015.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report to Cabinet on 17t February 2015.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

Page 99



8.00

9.00

10.00

11.00

12.00

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None directly as a result of this report.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Report to Cabinet — 17t February 2015

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None.

Contact Officer: Clare Budden
Telephone: 01352 702500
Email: clare_budden@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 100



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE:

TUESDAY, 17™ FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CHIEF OFFICER (COMMUNITY AND ENTERPRISE)

CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: HRA REVENUE ACCOUNT 2015/16 & CAPITAL

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

PROGRAMME 2015/16

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present for approval the draft HRA Budget for 2015/16, and HRA
Business Plan developed for the introduction of self-financing in April
2015.

BACKGROUND

The UK Government and the Welsh Government have reached an
agreement to change the financing arrangements for council housing
in Wales from April 2015. A new rent policy has also been introduced
which Flintshire is required to implement from April 2015. This sets the
context for the proposed rent increase and for the requirement to start
introducing charging for services.

Welsh Local Authorities have long argued for this change; which to
date, has seen a negative subsidy system in operation which has
required all eleven stock owning councils across Wales to make a
total annual payment of £73m (in Flintshire’s case c£6m) of rental
income to Welsh Government and on to the UK Treasury. On the
introduction of self financing this will cease;

The new arrangements negotiated by Welsh Government will see the
annual subsidy payment replaced by a one off payment of c£920m.
The eleven councils are required to take out loans from the PWLB
which equate to £40m per annum in interest charges.

In addition to this, a total borrowing cap of £1.85b has been set for all
eleven councils. This includes the borrowing needed to meet the
settlement figure referred to above; existing HRA borrowing; planned
borrowing to meet WHQS, and a small amount to start a new build
programme.

The legislative framework to enable this change is contained in the

Housing (Wales) Act 2014, which came into effect from 17th
September. This act contains a duty to make the settlement payment;

Page 101



2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10

2.11

2.12

and in the UK Government — Wales Bill , which is currently at report
stage, and will set the all Wales limit of indebtedness and those for
individual Local Authorities’.

Welsh Government has also set a requirement for all providers of
social housing to reach the Welsh Housing Quality Standard by 2020.
This will require some prudential borrowing in Flintshire’s case.

The council has an aspiration to build council housing to help meet
unmet need for social housing and self- financing is providing an
opportunity to take this forward in the next few years.

The detail on the distribution of the borrowing limits across the eleven
councils is a Welsh Government decision. WG established an officer
Steering Group and a number of work streams to take forward this
work and make recommendations to the Minister. A consultation
paper on the detailed options to implement self financing was issued
by Welsh Government in May this year with a return date of July.
Flintshire’s response to this was supported by Housing Scrutiny
Committee and agreed by Cabinet prior to submission.

In summary, (although figures cannot be defined explicitly at this
stage), Flintshire’s borrowing requirements and/or limits for borrowing
will be (approximately) as follows :-

Existing HRA borrowing- £25m
Borrowing to achieve settlement- £92m
Borrowing for WHQS- £25m

Borrowing for new build- £14.5m

The initial borrowing of c£92m for buy out will result in a basket of
loans of varying lengths in accordance with the Councils treasury
Management Strategy. External advice has been sought and the
recommendation is that the council continues to operate a single debt
pool approach, providing maximum flexibility.

Work is well underway to prepare for self financing. A HRA project
group has been established for some time; this includes the Leader,
Deputy Leader, Cabinet member for Housing, Chief Executive, Chief
Officer, Finance and Asset Management colleagues. Housing Scrutiny
Committee has taken a strong interest in this work. An elected
member and tenant workshop was held in January to discuss self
financing.

At its November 2014 meeting, subject to a risk assessment, Cabinet
gave delegated authority for the Leader of the Council with advice and
guidance from the Chief Officer Governance and Corporate Finance
Manager to enter into a Voluntary Agreement in January 2015, to
enable the introduction of self financing for the HRA from 1st April
2015. This was delayed on the advice of Welsh Government in early

Page 102



2.13

3.00
3.01

3.02

January. Interest rates had reduced considerably since the first
proposals were developed with Treasury to confirm the detail of the
Buy out arrangements and Local Authorities and Welsh Government
wanted to see whether they could adjust the original agreement to
provide greater certainty to Local Authorities around interest rate
variations, making the buy out payment more certain. These
discussions have been positive but are not yet finalised. The figures
quoted in this report are close to what the final figures are likely to be
and demonstrate the positive benefit that self financing will provide.
Subject to a final risk assessment it is expected that the Leader will be
able to sign the voluntary agreement towards the end of February.

The HRA will benefit from circa £0.5m additional revenue in year 1
and this should grow in future years. This will provide additional
resource for investment in tenants homes and will support
achievement of the WHQS by 2020, (whilst minimising prudential
borrowing). In addition the borrowing thresholds set will allow a
council house building programme (of circa 200 homes over five
years), to commence in early 2016 following the completion of the
SHARP tender process.

CONSIDERATIONS

The HRA has to have both short and long term financial planning in
place. The short term (more detailed) planning shows how the WHQS
standard can be achieved, Choices document promises kept, and
new council housing commissioned. The longer term plan shows a
viable account with surplus income over expenditure needs. This
presents opportunities to do more to improve service delivery;
provides reassurance that once achieved, the WHQS standard can be
maintained, and could provide further capital funding for new build (
subject to borrowing limits).

The strategic context for this year's HRA budget setting includes the
following:

e The introduction of self- financing and the need to implement a
treasury management strategy to meet the councils new and
ongoing borrowing requirements

e Delivering a prudent plan for income- ensuring that rents are
affordable in a local context, and phasing in service charging
for new tenants

e Setting a balanced budget with 3.1% surplus revenue over
expenditure

e Continued drive to ensure all service costs are efficient and that
value for money can be achieved.

e Maximisation of revenue efficiencies to minimise the borrowing
required to meet WHQS by 2020.

e Review of WHQS investment strategy to meet tenant and
elected member expectation and the new achievable deadline
of 2020

Page 103



3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

e Planning for the delivery of new build council housing in 2016

Rent increase

Councils are required to implement the new Welsh Government rent
policy from April 2015. Target rent bands are set for each landlord
based on a consistent set of principles and a common methodology
across Wales for both local Authorities and Housing Associations.
Landlord rents will be based on locality, size quality and type of
dwelling. Rents will be higher for houses and bungalows compared to
flats and maisonettes. This framework will be fixed until 2018/19.
There is flexibility for each landlord to set the rent band at target, 5%
below or 5% above. Cabinet decided to set Flintshire rents at target to
support tenant affordability.

Where a landlords weekly rent is lower than the rent band, rents are
set at the September CPI figure plus 1.5% plus up to £2 per week, to
work towards rent convergence. Where rents are above target (this
applies to circa 1000 Flintshire homes), then the rent increase will be
inflation (1.2%) plus 1.5% up to minus £2 until the weekly rent falls
within the target rent band. The September 2014 figure was 1.2%.
This means an average Flintshire rent increase of 2.7% plus or minus
up to £2 for 2015/16. Approximately 67% tenants are in receipt of full
or partial Housing Benefit.

The business plan attached to this report describes the average rent
currently payable and the target rent for each property type. Some
tenancies could take 7 years to achieve the target rent.

Capital programme

The WHQS and Asset investment programme for 2015/16 has been
set at a total of £20.3m. This includes provision for internal work
streams, external enveloping works, fire risk works, DDA, Asbestos,
off gas and energy efficiency works. Cabinet has approved the Asset
investment plan to achieve the WHQS by 2020 and this budget will
ensure that the council meets the commitments in that plan to achieve
the standard by 2020.

In addition £0.9m has been budgeted to commence the council house
building programme.

Attached to this report for Cabinet approval: -

The 3 year HRA business plan — Appendix A

30 year revenue and capital account.- Appendix B

Efficiencies and service investment proposals —Appendix C
WHQS programme to achieve the standard in 2020.- Appendix
D

Page 104



4.00

4.01

4.02

4.03

4.04

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cabinet is asked to approve and recommend to the Council:-

The proposed HRA budget for 2015/16 as set out in the Business plan
at Appendix A, with the 30 year financial assumptions in Appendix B
and service efficiency and investment proposals in Appendix ¢

The level of rents for 2015/16 as set out in the business plan with
target rents applied for new tenancies and the introduction of service
charges for new tenancies.

The proposed HRA Capital programme for 2015/16 as set out in
Appendix D

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The HRA is a ring fenced budget. This HRA budget and business plan
demonstrates that the council can achieve the WHQS by 2020, can
meet service improvement plans and commitments and with
prudential borrowing can commence a council house building
programme in 2016.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

Self-financing in the HRA will provide additional revenue to improve
property standards and to meet service improvement objectives. The
council has agreed a Rent Policy which will see rents at benchmark
levels, rather than taking the opportunity to set at 5% per cent above
the benchmark. This decision was taken to safeguard affordability for
tenants.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Stock investment delivery plans will enhance the appearance of the
environment and will contribute toward the council’s CO2 reduction
targets.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

All households will benefit from the Councils WHQS programme. The
impact of the investment planning and efficiencies is being modelled
for wvarious customer groups to ensure that there is no
disproportionate impact on any groups with protected characteristics.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Additional staff will be required to deliver an accelerated WHQS
programme. The funding for these posts is provided for in the WHQS

Page 105



10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00
12.01
12.02
12.03
12.04

programme.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

The proposed rent increase will be discussed with the Tenants
Federation at their February meeting.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Detailed consultation has been undertaken with tenants and elected
members to inform the preparation of the revised WHQS investment
programme.

APPENDICES

HRA Business Plan- Appendix A

30 year HRA Revenue and Capital Account- Appendix B
Efficiencies and service investment proposals — Appendix C
WHQS programme- Appendix D

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.

Contact Officer: Clare Budden
Telephone: 01352 703800
Email: clare.budden@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 106


mailto:clare.budden@flintshire

FLINTSHIRE
HOUSING REVENUE

ACCOUNT:

BUSINESS PLAN

2015 - 2018

Page 107



INTRODUCTION

The HRA funds the landlord function of the council for 7200 homes. This includes
repairs and maintenance, including upgrading properties and environmental
improvements, neighbourhood management including resolving anti-social behaviour

and estate caretaking, income collection and customer involvement.

Self financing is being introduced for the Councils Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
from April 2015. This will replace the current negative subsidy arrangements,
whereby c£6m of tenants rent is paid to Central Government in Westminster annually.
The HRA will remain a ring-fenced account; and self financing is expected to provide
additional revenue to deliver improved services and will provide more local

accountability to tenants.

The new arrangements, which will apply to the 11 stock retaining councils, will see
the annual subsidy payment replaced by a one off payment of c£920m. Each of the
councils is required to take out loans from the PWLB to fund this payment, and these
must cumulatively provide £40m per annum in interest charges. As interest rates
fluctuate and borrowing must take place on 2" April, it is not possible at this stage to
model the actual impact from a Flintshire perspective. As at the beginning of

February 2015 Flintshire’s settlement figure is expected to be circa £92m.

In addition to borrowing to fund the buy out, a Wales wide borrowing cap has been
set of £1.85b. This figure will include all existing borrowing, which from an all Wales
perspective is circa £460m (£25m for Flintshire), borrowing to meet WHQS which is
£358m for all Wales (£25m for Flintshire) the settlement figure of £920m; then leaving
£112m for other priorities such as new build. Flintshire’s negotiated share of the new
build figure is £14.5m.

BACKGROUND

This report sets out budget proposals for the three year period 2015/2018. Value for
money principles have been adopted to maximise resources for stock investment,

service improvement and new build. page 108



This plan identifies recent service change and efficiencies and future plans.

It does, as with any business plan, make some financial assumptions, and therefore
any aspects which are adopted will need to be kept under review to ensure that

assumptions reflect actual costs, performance and risks on an annual basis.

To date rents have been pooled meaning that service costs are charged out equally
to all tenants irrespective of service recipient. The council is required by Welsh
Government to de-pool rents and introduce charging for “services”. The expectation

from Welsh Government is that this will be phased in from 2016 at the latest.

2012 HOUSING BALLOT - CHOICES DOCUMENT

In 2012, the council balloted its tenants on the option for ‘stock transfer’. This process
involved making commitments to tenants on service quality and performance, should
tenants opt to stay with the council or move to an alternative landlord. 71% of tenants
used their vote, with 88% choosing Flintshire County Council to remain as their

landlord.

This plan and budget proposals once approved will provide sufficient resources to
ensure that all promises made to tenants in the Choices document can be delivered.
At the time of the ballot a 5 year stock improvement programme was promised which
would provide full kitchen and heating replacement schemes with limited work
streams for other property fixtures. At this stage the full WHQS standard could not be
delivered until 2038.

Since that time, following detailed cost and investment analysis work, robust
efficiency plans and improved performance (coupled with relatively low levels of
borrowing), the investment programme has been accelerated and full achievement of
the standard can be delivered by 2020.

RESOURCES FOR 2015/16

Rents

The new Welsh Government Rent policy will be implemented for local authorities from
April 2015 following exit from the Houﬁrag@eg_e{yge Account Subsidy system. The



target rent bands for each landlord are based on a consistent set of principles and a
common methodology across Wales that applies equally to both local authority and
housing associations. Landlord rents are based on locality, size, quality and type of
dwelling. The policy prescribes that rents should have a higher value for houses and
bungalows compared to those for flats and maisonettes and rents should have a

higher value for larger dwellings.

The rent policy sets out the total target rent band for each landlord and landlords will
be required to work towards and ultimately achieve average weekly rent levels that
fall within the scope of those bands. The banding can be set at 5% above or below

the target rent.

Where a landlord’s weekly rent is higher than the target rent band, the landlord is
expected to increase its rents more slowly (inflation minus £2) until the average
weekly rent falls within the target rent band. Where a landlord’s weekly rent is lower
than the target rent band, transitional protection will apply to tenants. In any year a
landlord will not be permitted to increase the rent for any individual tenant by more
than £2 per week in addition to the agreed average annual rate of rent increases for
the sector as a whole. The inflation indices to be used for uplifting rents each year
will be based on CPI at the previous September and a real increase percentage of
1.5% will be applied to the inflation indices. This will be fixed until 2018/19.

CPI for Sept 2014 is 1.2% plus 1.5% giving rent inflation for 2015/16 of 2.7%.
Anticipated Rental (including voids rent loss) and other income for the three year
period 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18 are shown in the table below:

Year Net Rental Other Income Total Income
Income

2015 -2016 £28,365,000 £ 1,033,000 £ 29,398,000

2016 — 2017 £29,685,000 £ 1,270,000 £ 30,955,000

2017 — 2018 £30,959,000 £ 1,547,000 £ 32,506,000

Page 110



Rent Charges
2015/16
£'s No.
Target Rents Properties Average Equal to /
Transitional Above Below

Target Rent Rent Variance Target Rent | Target Rent
G2house 689 84.91 77.79 - 712 54 635
G3House 3201 93.40 82.97 - 1043 60 3141
G4house 117 101.89 90.12 - 1177 0 117
G5house 10 110.38 95.19 - 15.19 0 10
G6house 4 110.38 98.52 - 11.86 0 4
G1Flat 178 71.64 71.39 - 0.25 101 77
G2Flat 279 79.32 74.95 - 4.37 23 256
G3Flat 61 87.00 82.00 - 5.00 0 61
G1bungalow 11 76.42 72.59 - 3.83 1 10
G2bungalow 1 84.91 80.34 - 4.57 0 1
G3bungalow 1 93.40 96.72 3.32 1 0
G2maisonette 9 76.82 76.82 - 9 0
G3maisonette 1 84.50 77.75 - 6.75 0 1
S1house 1 76.42 72.07 - 4.34 0 1
S2house 2 84.91 77.15 - 7.75 0 2
S3house 15 93.40 86.76 - 6.64 2 13
S1Flat 504 71.64 71.15 - 0.49 370 134
S2Flat 341 79.32 78.44 - 0.88 210 131
S3Flat 2 87.00 85.46 - 1.54 1 1
S1bungalow 1138 76.42 70.76 - 5.65 130 1008
S2bungalow 619 84.91 76.07 - 8.83 21 598
S3bungalow 26 93.40 90.00 - 3.40 9 17
7210 | £ 85.97 £ 78.46 -£7.51 992 6218

The above chart shows the transitional rents chargeable to Flintshire tenants under
The
average rent chargeable for 2015/16 is £78.46 some £7.51 below the weekly target

the new rents policy from 2015/16 and how they compare to target rents.

rent under the new policy. There are currently 992 (13.8%) tenancies at target rent.

G = General Need
S = Sheltered

The number equates to the number of bedrooms the property has for example a

G3house is a general need 3 bed house.

Page 111



Empty Properties

Void rent loss is currently at 1.38% of rental income. The business plan assumes

void rent loss of 1.30%.
Service Charges

Flintshire Council currently pools rents and service charges, and is required to start
the process of disaggregating service charges from rents. Some tenants receive
additional services, over and above the service that is provided through rent
payments. This tends to apply to those living in blocks of flats, or in schemes with
communal/shared facilities. De pooling involves separating out these costs and

charging them as a service charge to those who receive the service.

It is recognized that the costs for providing some current services are not value for
money and the quality of some services will need to be improved and costs reduced.
With the exception of services provided for the benefit of individuals, the service
charges described are all currently “housing benefit eligible”. At the beginning of this

financial year 67% of tenants were in receipt of full or partial housing benefit.

Itis proposed that charges would be introduced on a phased basis for existing tenants
over the three years from 2016 leaving a full year to review, consult and improve

services. Charging will be introduced fully for new tenancies from April 2015.

The HRA currently funds services to the value of £0.700m per annum (excluding

Administration costs). Service charging will be phased in as follows:
Year 1 (2015/16) New tenants service charges

Year 2 (2016/17) As above and Aerials, individual gardens, hedges and communal

cleaning services
Year 3 (2017/18) As above and Laundry and Janitor services
Year 4 (2018/19) As above and Caretaking and Communal garden services

The estimated cost recovery based on current service costs for 2015/16 is £0.030m.

Expenditure

Staff and associated costs Page 112



The business plan includes 219.2 established Positions (FTE) within the Housing
Revenue Account in 2015/16 a reduction of 7.3 FTE’s on 2014/15. 73% of these are

direct service posts and 27% are back office and management.
Housing Asset Management

Housing Asset Management (HAM) includes Responsive repairs, voids, WHQS and
cyclical works and Disabled adaptations. Total FTE’s for HAM assumed in the plan
are 150.4 a reduction of 3.0 FTE’s on 2014/15. The revenue budget for 2015/16 is
£8.398m and includes £0.207m of savings targets compared to 2014/15.

Total Housing Asset management and support costs for 2015/16 are £1.153m
(E160 per tenancy a reduction of £3 on 2014/15) and total repair and
maintenance expenditure costs are £7.245m (£1,005 per tenancy a reduction of
£33 on 2014/15)

Tenancy Management

Tenancy Management (TM) includes Rents, Anti Social Behaviour, Tenant
participation and Tenancy management services. Total FTE’s assumed in the plan
are 35.6; a reduction of 3.5 on 2014/15. The budget for 2015/16 is £1.573m and
includes £0.301m of savings targets compared to 2014/15.

Total Tenancy management support costs for 2015/16 are £0.266m (£37 per
tenancy a reduction of £18 on 2014/15) and Tenancy management frontline
costs are £1.308m (£180 per tenancy a reduction of £24 on 2014/15).

Estate Services

Estate Services (ES) includes all costs associated with service charges and landlord
costs for communal buildings. Total FTE’s assumed in the plan for ES are 8.6, an
increase of 0.5 Fte’s on 2014/15. This is for a service charge officer post to enable
implementation of the service charge programme. The budget for 2015/16 is
£1.024m.

The total cost for estate services equates to £142 per tenancy in 2015/16.

Support Services

Page 113



Support Services include Finance and cash collection, I.T, member services, HR and
Training, Legal, Insurance, Buildings, admin and Corporate management costs. The
budget for 2015/16 is £2.280m and includes £0.355m of savings targets compared to
2014/15.

Total support services costs are £316 per tenancy a reduction of £43 per
tenancy.

Capital Financing

The HRA self financing requires that FCC borrows the settlement amount from PWLB

at the beginning of 2015/16. The current estimated figure for Flintshire is £92m.

The borrowing strategy for 2015/16 is not to commit to long term borrowing too early, to
wait until it is clear from capital expenditure plans and reserves that long term borrowing
is needed. The HRAS settlement amount will be borrowed on the 2nd April as required,
but with £10m being borrowed for 1 year, providing some flexibility in FCCs loan portfolio.
When the loan matures in 2016/17 it can be refinanced on a short or long term basis

from the PWLB or from the wider market.

Capital financing costs for 2015/16 are estimated at £5.6m a reduction of £0.5m which
is the anticipated saving associated with leaving the HRA subsidy system. This figure is

likely to be fluid until self financing is concluded and will be monitored and revised as

necessary.

Expenditure over the same period is forecasted as follows:

Year Management Repairs Capital Total
Costs Financing Expenditure
2015/16 £4,877,000 £8,398,000 £5,621,000 £18,896,000
2016/17 £4,936,000 £8,201,000 £7,847,000 £20,984,000
2017/18 £4,950,000 £8,364,000 £8,355,000 £21,669,000
Service Management Service Cost Total cost
cost per per tenancy per
tenancy tenancy
Housing Asset £160 £1,005 £1,165
Management
Estate Services £0 £142 £142
Tenancy Management £37 £180 £218
Support Services £316 £0 £316
Debt Financing £759 £0 £759
Total Cost £1,272 £1,327 £2,600

Page 114




The capital programme for 2015/16 is £21.2m of which the majority is allocated to

achieving the Welsh Housing Quality Standard.

Council House Build Programme

Self financing will provide the HRA with enough borrowing headroom to start a build
programme of new Council homes. It is anticipated that 200 homes could be built over
5 years if these are all built on HRA land, and costs are controlled closely. A full
procurement exercise is underway and the developer should be appointed by May 2015,

with the first start on site in early 2016.

The proposed mix for the first Council house development in Chapel St Flint includes:

14 2 bed houses
8 3 bed houses
6 1 bed apartments
2 2 bed apartments.

Total 30 Council homes

A further 20 homes will also be started at the same time in other sites across the

county.

A Task and Finish group has been established, with representation from tenants and
elected members to agree the Flintshire House standard. Key priorities have been
identified which are, energy efficiency, sufficient storage space and adequate room
sizes for family living, lifetime home elements which are practical and cost effective
to deliver so making properties fit for purpose for a range of needs across residents

lives;

Business plan headroom of £14.5m has been identified for the programme at the

moment but this could be extended if further efficiencies are identified and delivered.

BRIEF SUMMARY OF RECENT SERVICE CHANGES / EFFICIENCIES
ALREADY ESTABLISHED

Delivering the Choices Document promises

Since the positive ballot result for the future ownership of the council housing stock, the
council has focussed on delivering the promises made to tenants in the Choices
document. These included both service improvements and stock investment. A number

of the successes are detailed below;

Page 115



e Appointed two Tenant Liaison Officers to involve customers in the delivery of
improvements in their homes, and appointed a Customer Involvement Assistant

on a temporary basis as a trial.

e A dedicated Anti-Social Behaviour Team of three officers has been created. This

has improved the service to those suffering anti-social behaviour considerably.

e Face to face customer service has been improved through the opening of three

Flintshire Connects Centres in Holywell, Flint and Connahs Quay.

e Creation of a Financial Inclusion and Tenancy Support Team to support tenants

struggling with debt and maintain their tenancies

e Community hubs developed to deliver support services to older tenants in a

number of areas throughout the County

e Creation of Apprenticeships and Local Jobs through the Welsh Housing Quality

Standard delivery programme

Staffing Costs

Senior Management Costs have reduced significantly over the last three years: At
this stage there were four Senior Managers and 50% Head of service costs
associated with leading and managing the HRA. From early 2015 this has now

reduced to 1 senior Manager and 30% of the cost of the Chief Officer.

Team Staffing Costs: Housing Asset Management has recently restructured to
reduce staffing costs creating savings of £174.0k and Neighbourhood Housing
Management are currently re-structuring and have supported voluntary
redundancies, flexible retirements, and applications for full time staff to reduce hours.
The proposed re-structure and associated salary savings are addressed later in this

report.

Lean Reviews

Page 116



Lean reviews on all areas of the service led by a team of internal staff, and involving
customers trained in the process has been carried out in order to improve
performance, and reduce cost. For example, a review of the collection of ‘Former
Tenant Arrears’ was completed and has increased collection from £56.7k in 2011/12
to £117.3k in 2013/14.

A further example of how lean has been used to generate more efficient ways of
working is the introduction of appointments and reminders reducing the incidents of

failed appointments and is creating ongoing efficiencies.
Closure of Depot

Housing Asset Management has delivered savings in operational costs of £95.6k by

closing an outdated depot.
Outsourcing Stores

Housing Asset Management has delivered savings of £101.2k by outsourcing stores

to an external provider.
Multi-Skilling

Enhancing trades’ staff multi-skilling has brought about ongoing efficiencies by

reducing the need for multiple appointments and associated costs to repairs.
Fleet Review

The completion of the fleet review has resulted in efficiencies of £81.8k

Gas Servicing

The introduction of compressed working hours (8 day fortnight) has meant that the
service can be extended from 08:00 — 18:00 resulting in greater performance and
lower risk to the council of expired gas safety certificates. The introduction of warrants

for forced entry access has reduced the costs of legal cases.

WHQS Programme Out-turns
Page 117



replacements

2012/13 No. planned No. delivered
Heating 600 1100
upgrades

Kitchen 922 1100
replacements

Smoke 884 2400
detectors

Bathroom 56 62
replacements

201314 No. planned No. delivered
Heating 600 977
upgrades

Kitchen 922 1118
replacements

Smoke 884 804
detectors

Bathroom 0 200

I.T system- Anti- Social Behaviour Case Management

The introduction of the React System from a paper-based system will enable costs of
cases to be tracked to ensure value for money (2014-15 is the first benchmarking

year) and has improved performance by enabling effective case management and

performance management.

Housing News Magazine

Page 118




The number of editions of the publication “Housing News” has been reduced from 4
to 2 and less costly options have been selected in respect of paper choice. This has

reduced costs by £7k per year.
Voids Performance

The performance for all Void properties in 2013-14 was an average of 42 days
compared to 47 days for 2012-13. Letting days for normal Voids was just 33 days in
Q2 2014/15. This means that average rent loss for void properties now equates to

1.35% of the rent debit, a consistent reduction.
Rent arrears

Despite the introduction of benefit changes in April 2013 and a subsequent reduction
in Housing Benefit to the HRA of circa £800k it has been possible to maintain
performance in this area through a proactive approach to affordability and debt
management. The council has also out-performed the national average in its ability

to transfer customers to the smaller properties that they have requested.

Co-location of Area Housing Teams

The co-location of the three area housing teams along with the ASB Team, Income
Team and Customer Involvement, has enabled the Connah’s Quay and Mold offices
to close. The Neighbourhood Teams were one of the first to pilot agile and the new
flexible working system. This has enabled a reduction in office space and a greater
flexibility for both staff and customers, with appointments being offered later than

previously with no additional costs to the service.
New proposals for efficiencies and service improvement

This plan provides additional efficiencies of c£1.2m by year 3. The principles

underpinning the efficiencies are as follows:

e Joint Procurement

e Realising and releasing capacity

e Undertaking work for internal and external partners
e Improved performance

Page 119

e Increased customer satisfaction.



FUTURE FORECASTING & DEMAND

e The demand for social housing is nationally outstripping supply, so there is
minimal risk to the HRA not having sufficient demand for its properties in
general terms. However, the design and location of some properties has

resulted in low demand which incurs costs for the council through rent loss.

e Sheltered bedsits can be unpopular, and the introduction of welfare reform has
significantly reduced demand for upper floor 2 bedroom flats. Similarly the
location of some sheltered properties impacts adversely on demand and
therefore consideration may need to be given in the long term to the re-
designation of some units of accommodation to general needs. Particularly in
some areas where ‘single-person general need’ accommodation is in short
supply, and pressures are faced by the council fund to find temporary
accommodation for vulnerable homeless single people. These issues are

addressed in the Asset Management Strategy.

e WHQS must be achieved by 2020/2021 requiring an investment of £107m
however it can be assumed that this additional investment will have a positive
impact on the demand for repairs, and the scale of investment needed post
2020/21. Completion of the works will gradually (from April 2015), release

capacity for the DLO workforce to undertake capital work streams.

WHAT THE FUTURE SERVICE WILL LOOK LIKE AND WHAT NEEDS TO
CHANGE:

e Further improved productivity and performance

e Technology and support systems utilized to full potential

¢ Introduction of more customer self-serve options

e Improved management of housing stock to protect WHQS investment

e Longer operating hours (8am to 6pm)

¢ Inspections carried out by trades staff

e “Right First Time” approach, including a considerable increase in repairs jobs
being completed on the first visit and routine housing enquiries being resolved
at the first point of contact through the Contact Centre or Connects.

e Maijority of repairs undertaken through appointment and scheduling system

Page 120



e Streamlined processes to manage absence, capability, and disciplinary
issues.

e Increased capital works to deliver WHQS

e Improved Business Intelligence from IT System

¢ More automated workflows through Civica and Capita System

¢ Increased internal collaboration and joint procurement

e Consideration of the opportunities and benefits for external collaboration

RISK MANAGEMENT

A risk management plan has been developed for the WHQS programme and this is
regularly monitored by both scrutiny committee and the Cabinet. Reports have also
been considered on progress of the Choices Document promises by Scrutiny
Committee and by regular reporting to tenants conferences and the Tenants
Federation.
A revised risk assessment process is under development for the council and this will
be applied to this business plan before April 15t to include new key strategic risks as
identified below:

e Self financing

¢ MRA funding commitment

e Council house building programme

CONCLUSION

This plan is written at a time of significant change for council housing finance across
Wales. There are positive opportunities ahead to provide good quality housing services;
local homes maintained to a high standard and new council homes built to meet local
housing need.

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



Flintshire County Council - Base Model Business Plan Assumptions

Revenue ogerating Account - 2015 to 2044

Income Expenditure Net Operating Balance Available Capital Funding Capital Programme
Housing
Net Rent Other Total Tenancy Estate Asset Support Debt Total Net Operating Prudential Capital Total Capital WHQS Capital SHARP
Year Year Income Income Income Mgmnt | Services | Mgmnt Costs Charges Expenses Expenditure |Balance B/F CERA Balance C/F CERA MRA Borrowing Receipts Funds Programme programme Shortfall
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1{ 2015.16 (28,365) (1,033) |30y 1,573 1,024 8,398 2,280 5,621 18,896 (10,502) (946) 10,787 (661) 10,787 5,200 5,400 21,387 20,298 900 (189)
2| 2016.17 (29,685) (1,270) (30,955) 1,601 1,044 8,201 2,291 7,847 20,984 (9,971) (661) 9,897 (734) 9,897 5,200 10,500 25,597 21,589 4,017 9
3| 2017.18 (30,959) (1,547) (32,506) 1,632 1,065 8,364 2,253 8,355 21,669 (10,837) (734) 10,813 (758) 10,813 5,200 12,400 28,413 23,004 5,517 107
4| 2018.19 (32,192) (1,839) (34,031) 1,664 1,086 8,531 2,296 8,902 22,479 (11,552) (758) 11,524 (787) 11,524 5,200 8,900 25,624 20,214 5,682 272
5| 2019.20 (33,366) (1,877) (35,243) 1,697 1,108 8,700 2,341 9,006 22,851 (12,392) (787) 12,379 (800) 12,379 5,200 - 17,579 17,217 0 (362)
6| 2020.21 (35,103) (1,898) (37,001) 1,730 1,130 8,874 2,387 8,810 22,932 (14,069) (800) 14,066 (803) 14,066 5,200 3,000 22,266 19,518 0 (2,748)
7| 2021.22 (36,332) (1,928) (38,260) 1,765 1,153 9,051 2,435 8,727 23,132 (15,128) (803) 15,121 (810) 15,121 5,200 - 20,321 22,739 0 2,418
8| 2022.23 (37,604) (1,959) (39,562) 1,800 1,176 9,233 2,484 8,531 23,223 (16,339) (810) 16,336 (813) 16,336 5,200 - 21,536 17,351 0 (4,185)
9| 2023.24 (38,736) (1,990) (40,726) 1,836 1,199 9,417 2,534 8,310 23,296 (17,430) (813) 17,427 (815) 17,427 5,200 - 22,627 17,871 0 (4,756)
10| 2024.25 (39,782) (2,022) (41,804) 1,873 1,223 9,605 2,584 8,086 23,372 (18,432) (815) 18,429 (818) 18,429 5,200 - 23,629 18,407 0 (5,222)
11| 2025.26 (41,643) (2,064) (43,707) 1,911 1,248 9,798 2,636 7,871 23,463 (20,245) (818) 20,241 (821) 20,241 5,200 - 25,441 18,959 0 (6,482)
12| 2026.27 (41,959) (2,089) (44,048) 1,949 1,272 9,994 2,689 7,669 23,572 (20,476) (821) 20,472 (825) 20,472 5,200 - 25,672 19,528 0 (6,144)
13| 2027.28 (43,092) (2,123) (45,215) 1,988 1,298 10,193 2,742 7,434 23,656 (21,559) (825) 21,556 (828) 21,556 5,200 - 26,756 20,114 0 (6,642)
14| 2028.29 (44,255) (2,158) (46,414) 2,028 1,324 10,397 2,797 7,203 23,749 (22,665) (828) 22,662 (831) 22,662 5,200 - 27,862 20,717 0 (7,144)
15| 2029.30 (45,450) (2,195) (47,645) 2,068 1,350 10,605 2,853 6,975 23,852 (23,793) (831) 23,790 (835) 23,790 5,200 - 28,990 21,339 0 (7,651)
16| 2030.31 (46,678) (2,232) (48,909) 2,109 1,377 10,817 2,910 6,749 23,963 (24,946) (835) 24,942 (839) 24,942 5,200 - 30,142 21,979 0 (8,163)
17| 2031.32 (48,861) (2,281) (51,142) 2,152 1,405 11,034 2,969 6,540 24,099 (27,043) (839) 27,038 (843) 27,038 5,200 - 32,238 22,639 0 (9,600)
18| 2032.33 (49,232) (2,309) (51,541) 2,195 1,433 11,254 3,028 6,307 24,217 (27,324) (843) 27,320 (848) 27,320 5,200 - 32,520 23,318 0 (9,202)
19| 2033.34 (50,561) (2,348) (52,910) 2,239 1,462 11,479 3,088 6,083 24,351 (28,559) (848) 28,554 (852) 28,554 5,200 - 33,754 24,017 0 (9,737)
20| 2034.35 (51,927) (2,389) (54,316) 2,283 1,491 11,709 3,150 5,889 24,523 (29,793) (852) 29,787 (858) 29,787 5,200 - 34,987 24,738 0 (10,249)
21| 2035.36 (53,329) (2,431) (55,760) 2,329 1,521 11,943 3,213 5,440 24,447 (31,313) (858) 31,316 (856) 31,316 5,200 - 36,516 25,480 0 (11,036)
22| 2036.37 (54,768) (2,474) (57,242) 2,376 1,551 12,182 3,277 5,121 24,507 (32,736) (856) 32,733 (858) 32,733 5,200 - 37,933 26,244 0 (11,689)
23| 2037.38 (57,330) (2,532) (59,862) 2,423 1,582 12,426 3,343 4,779 24,553 (35,309) (858) 35,307 (859) 35,307 5,200 - 40,507 27,032 0 (13,475)
24| 2038.39 (57,766) (2,563) (60,329) 2,472 1,614 12,674 3,410 4,539 24,709 (35,620) (859) 35,615 (865) 35,615 5,200 - 40,815 27,843 0 (12,972)
25| 2039.40 (59,326) (2,609) (61,935) 2,521 1,646 12,928 3,478 4,483 25,056 (36,878) (865) 36,866 (877) 36,866 5,200 - 42,066 28,678 0 (13,388)
26| 2040.41 (60,927) (2,656) (63,584) 2,571 1,679 13,186 3,548 4,314 25,298 (38,286) (877) 38,277 (885) 38,277 5,200 - 43,477 29,538 0 (13,939)
27| 2041.42 (62,572) (2,705) (65,277) 2,623 1,713 13,450 3,619 4,146 25,550 (39,727) (885) 39,718 (894) 39,718 5,200 - 44,918 30,424 0 (14,494)
28| 2042.43 (64,262) (2,755) (67,016) 2,675 1,747 13,719 3,691 3,897 25,729 (41,287) (894) 41,281 (901) 41,281 5,200 - 46,481 31,337 0 (15,144)
29 pmgl13.44 (67,268) (2,822) (70,090) 2,729 1,782 13,993 3,765 3,765 26,034 (44,056) (901) 44,045 (911) 44,045 5,200 - 49,245 32,277 0 (16,968)
30] ¥h4.45 (70,389) (2,891) (73,280) 2,783 1,817 14,273 3,840 3,635 26,349 (46,931) (911) 46,920 (922) 46,920 5,201 - 52,121 33,246 0 (18,876)
«Q
D
=
N
w

Flintshire HRA Business Plan Financial model 201516 FINAL 110215 (Appendix B)

11/02/2015 15:42




HRA Business Planning - Appendix C

(322,877)

(797,655)

(1,007,676)

y2T abed

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

LOW

LOW

MEDIUM

Fire Alarm Testing in-house

Mobile working performance and productivity

Remove Tenant Incentive Budget and replace
with urgent cases budget

Reduced expenditure on rent credits on
tenancy commencement.

Savings on the stores contract

(45,000)

150,000

20,000

27,000

(45,000)

20,000

27,000

(56,000)

(45,000)

24,555

20,000

27,000

(56,000)

Proposal for Estate Caretakers to carry out
function in place of contractors.

Void programme of works incorporating a
phased move from subcontractors in year 1
to a team of 6 trades staff in years 2 and 3 as
a result of increased productivity allowing for
the redeployment of resource.

Currently have a budget of £35000 to assist
tenants with downsizing.

Prospective tenants are now provisionally
allocated properties well in advance of the
tenancy start date so there is a reduced need
to provide rent free weeks at the start of the
tenancy

This could be achieved through a joint
contract with Wrexham or as part of a re-
tendered service.




GeT obed

14|MEDIUM

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

MEDIUM

24(Low

Introduce a tree management policy

Reduced Tenant Group Funding

Housing Management Restructure

Reduce external conference events for tenant
groups

Increase insurance excess

One year IT post ended

Reduce bad debt provision

(18,000)

(116,801)

(46,849)

(20,000)

(18,000)

(116,801)

(46,849)

(30,358)

(20,000)

(18,000)

(2,750)

(116,801)

(46,849)

(30,358)

(20,000)

Essential tree works only on trees in tenants
gardens. Medium risk as may increase H&S
issues

10% reduction on tenant group funding.

Assumptions made about salary grades as
JEQs vet to be assessed.

A reduction in the funding for external
conferences from £7650 to £4k.

Insurance excess can be increased to reduce
cost of insurance. Medium risk as savings
could be offset by number of claims.

One year IT project post for Job scheduling
and service charges.

Budget realignment

Total

(753,675)

(1,094,913)

(1,177,105)




30 YEARS COST PROJECTION -WHQS AND OTHER CAPITAL WORKS

WHQS

3.00%

4.50%|

107,573,324|

Eco
Stock Funding/Non WWENEC] Other Total
Condition Trad. Internal Envelope External Off Gas  Environmental DDA/Smoke Empty Reform Contingency/Ur Flintshire Non WHQS WHQS  Capital Capital
Survey Properties Works Works Fire Risk works Cost Works Asbestos Alarms Properties  Remodelling gents WHQS Total Regen Total P.U P.U P.U
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
2015.16 2,800,000 8,391,450 3,914,950 500,000 475,000| 1,100,000 0 350,000 50,000 500,000 100,000 446,442 669,663 19,297,505 1,000,000 900,000 1,900,000 2,676 264 2,940 7,210
2016.17 550,000| 11,952,550| 2,581,150 150,000 475,000 750,000 950,000 350,000 50,000 750,000 100,000 520,761 781,142 19,960,603 1,030,000 4,017,000 5,047,000 2,768 700 3,552 7,210
2017.18 700,000 9,853,450| 5,834,900 150,000 475,000 500,000 950,000 350,000 50,000 350,000 100,000 547,901 821,851 20,683,101 1,060,900 5,516,680 6,577,580 2,861 910 3,945 7,230
2018.19 0 6,825,000| 7,051,850 150,000 475,000 0 950,000 350,000 50,000 350,000 100,000 478,556 717,833 17,498,239 1,092,727 5,682,180 6,774,907 2,407 932 3,562 7,270
2019.20 0 2,662,500| 7,286,600 150,000 475,000 0 1,900,000 350,000 50,000 350,000 100,000 389,223 583,835 14,297,158 1,125,509 0 1,125,509 1,956 154 2,355 7,310
2020.21 0 662,500| 10,718,750 150,000 475,000 0 1,900,000 350,000 50,000 350,000 100,000 432,188 648,281 15,836,719 1,159,274 1,159,274 2,161 158 2,663 7,330
2021.22| 11,728,000 2,123,550( 1,967,800 150,000 350,000 500,000 489,581 734,371 18,043,301 1,194,052 1,194,052 2,462 163 3,102 7,330
2022.23| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,229,874 1,229,874 1,788 168 2,367 7,330
2023.24| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,266,770 1,266,770 1,788 173 2,438 7,330
2024.25| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,304,773 1,304,773 1,788 178 2,511 7,330
2025.26| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,343,916 1,343,916 1,788 183 2,587 7,330
2026.27| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,384,234 1,384,234 1,788 189 2,664 7,330
2027.28| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,425,761 1,425,761 1,788 195 2,744 7,330
2028.29| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,468,534 1,468,534 1,788 200 2,826 7,330
2029.30| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,512,590 1,512,590 1,788 206 2,911 7,330
2030.31| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,557,967 1,557,967 1,788 213 2,999 7,330
2031.32| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,604,706 1,604,706 1,788 219 3,088 7,330
2032.33| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,652,848 1,652,848 1,788 225 3,181 7,330
2033.34| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,702,433 1,702,433 1,788 232 3,277 7,330
2034.35| 11,728,000 500,000 351,840 527,760 13,107,600 1,753,506 1,753,506 1,788 239 3,375 7,330
2035.36| 11,728,000 500,001 351,840 527,760 13,107,601 1,806,111 1,806,111 1,788 246 3,476 7,330
2036.37| 11,728,000 500,002 351,840 527,760 13,107,602 1,860,295 1,860,295 1,788 254 3,580 7,330
2037.38| 11,728,000 500,003 351,840 527,760 13,107,603 1,916,103 1,916,103 1,788 261 3,688 7,330
2038.39| 11,728,000 500,004 351,840 527,760 13,107,604 1,973,587 1,973,587 1,788 269 3,798 7,330
2039.40| 11,728,000 500,005 351,840 527,760 13,107,605 2,032,794 2,032,794 1,788 277 3,912 7,330
2040.41| 11,728,000 500,006 351,840 527,760 13,107,606 2,093,778 2,093,778 1,788 286 4,030 7,330
2041.42| 11,728,000 500,007 351,840 527,760 13,107,607 2,156,591 2,156,591 1,788 294 4,151 7,330
2042.43| 11,728,000 500,008 351,840 527,760 13,107,608 2,221,289 2,221,289 1,788 303 4,275 7,330
2043.44| 11,728,000 500,009 351,840 527,760 13,107,609 2,287,928 2,287,928 1,788 312 4,403 7,330
2044.45| 11,728,000 500,010 351,840 527,760 13,107,610 2,356,566 2,356,566 1,788 321 4,536 7,330

9¢T obed




Agenda Iltem 13

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 - 2017/18 AND

REVISION OF 2014/15 PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Council the recommendations of the Cabinet in relation
to the setting of a range of Prudential Indicators.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Atits meeting of 17t February 2015, Cabinet considered a report from
the Corporate Finance Manager in respect of the setting of Prudential
Indicators for the period 2015/16 to 2017/18 and the revision of the
2014/15 Prudential Indicators.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The recommendations of Cabinet to County Council are set out in
Appendix 1 - Prudential Indicators 2015/16 - 2017/18 and Revision of
2014/15 Prudential Indicators (the report to Cabinet 17t February
2015).

4.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 Council is requested to agree the recommendations of the Cabinet as
set out in the attached report (Appendix 1).

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set out in the report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None directly as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

7.01  None directly as a result of this report.

Page 127



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

11.00

12.00

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Report to Cabinet 17t February 2015: Prudential
Indicators 2015/16 - 2017/18 and Revision of 2014/15 Prudential
Indicators

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager, Technical Accountancy
Telephone: 01352 702289
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 128



APPENDIX 1
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2015/16 - 2017/18 AND

1.00

1.01

2.00

2.01

2.02

2.03

3.00

3.01

3.01.1

REVISION OF 2014/15 PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present proposals for setting a range of prudential indicators in accordance
with the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the
Prudential Code).

BACKGROUND

The Prudential Code has been developed by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) as a professional code of practice to
support local authorities in determining their programmes for capital
investment in fixed assets. Local authorities are required by Regulation to
have regard to the Prudential Code when carrying out duties under Part 1 of
the Local Government Act 2003.

The framework established by the Prudential Code is intended to support local
strategic planning, local asset management planning and robust option
appraisal. The objectives of the Code are to ensure, within a clear framework,
that the capital investments plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent
and sustainable, and that treasury management decisions are taken in
accordance with good professional practice.

The Prudential Code sets out the indicators that must be used, and the factors
that must be taken into account in preparing such.

CONSIDERATIONS

General

The prudential indicators required by the Prudential Code are designed to
support and record local decision making; they are not designed to be
comparative performance indicators - the use of them in this way would be
likely to be misleading and counter productive. They are considered in parallel
with the treasury management indicators required by the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral
Guidance Notes, as reported elsewhere on this agenda.

Page 129



3.01.2

3.01.3

3.01.4

3.02

3.02.1

3.02.2

The Prudential Code recognises that in making capital investment decisions,
and in reviewing the prudential indicators, the Council must have regard to the
following:

e Service objectives, e.g. strategic planning for the authority

e Stewardship of assets, e.g. asset management planning

e Value for money, e.g. option appraisal

o Affordability, e.g. implications for Council Tax and Council housing rents
e Prudence and sustainability, e.g. implications for external borrowing

e Practicality, e.g. achievability of the forward plan

The Code does not specify how the Council should have regard to these
factors, but instead concentrates on the means by which it demonstrates that
the proposals are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Affordability is the ultimate constraint on the amount that a local authority can
spend or borrow. In practice, when making a decision to invest in a capital
asset, the authority must do more than simply determine whether it can afford
the immediate cost. In order to ensure long term affordability, decisions have
to be prudent, and in the long term sustainable. Borrowing has to be prudent
because, since future interest rates and revenue streams are uncertain, it
must involve an element of risk. Furthermore, if the Council is unable to
deliver its capital programme, or to afford the cost of running and maintaining
the new facilities, the chosen level of capital investment will not be sustainable
in the long term. Prudence and affordability are related concepts.

The Prudential Code specifies that prudential indicators are required to be
calculated for the forthcoming financial year and two subsequent financial
years, this process links in with the Medium Term Financial Plan.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — Introduction of Self Financing

Agreement has been reached between the UK Government and the Welsh
Government to change the financing arrangements for council housing in
Wales from April 2015. Currently a negative subsidy system is in operation
which requires Flintshire to make annual payments of c£6m in negative
subsidy to Welsh Government and on to UK Treasury, along with the other 11
stock retaining authorities in Wales.

The agreement is expected to generate revenue savings allowing the Council
to increase its investment in existing stock, and support the delivery of
additional supply of housing. It will also provide more local accountability to
tenants.

Page 130



3.02.3

3.02.4

3.02.5

3.03

3.03.1

3.03.2

3.03.3

3.03.4

Introduction of self financing will end the negative subsidy system and annual
payments. The subsidy payments will be replaced with interest payments on
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans that the Council must borrow to exit
the subsidy system. The PWLB loans, called the settlement payment (a one-
off lump sum payment classed as capital expenditure), will be paid to Welsh
Government (WG) and on to UK Treasury.

WG have established an officer Steering Group and a number of work
streams to undertake the considerable amount of work involved to exit the
subsidy system by the 31st March 2015, which Flintshire has been contributing
to. Good progress has been made to date, and the work continues.

The settlement payment will be set with reference to PWLB interest rates on
31st March 2015 and therefore cannot be confirmed at this point in time. The
current projection for Flintshire is £92m, based on the latest interest rate
forecast. At this value the estimated annual revenue savings are £0.5m.
These figures will change up until 315t March and will be monitored closely.

Prudential Indicators for Capital Expenditure

Based on those resources currently allocated (including specific grants, but
excluding any rephasing of expenditure from 2014/15 to future years), the
estimates of capital expenditure to be incurred in 2015/16 (and the following
two years), are as indicated in the table below.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 50.359 17.348 7.819
Housing Revenue Account 113.620 25.606 28.520
Total 163.979 42.954 36.339

This is in line with the capital programme proposals recommended to
commence in 2015/16 in the Council Fund Capital Programme 2015/16 to
2018/19 report which is included elsewhere on this agenda.

The 2015/16 HRA total includes the settlement payment required to exit the
HRA negative subsidy system detailed in section 3.02 of this report.

The capital expenditure totals essentially provide the base financial data from
which all other indicators follow.

Page 131



3.04

3.04.1

3.04.2

Prudential Indicators for Affordability

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for 2015/16
based on those expenditure assumptions outlined in the Council Fund and
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget report (both included elsewhere on
this agenda), are as included in the table below; these indicators of
affordability address the revenue implications of the Council’s financial
strategy.

RATIO OF FINANCING COSTS TONET REVENUE STREAM
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
% % %
Council Fund 57% 5.9% 6.1%
Housing Revenue Account 20.1% 26.4% 27.0%

The Council Fund net revenue stream is the amount to be met from Welsh
Government (WG) grants and local taxpayers, and the HRA equivalent is the
amount to be met from WG grants and from rent payers. The estimate of
financing costs includes the current commitments and the proposals included
in the capital programme report.

The HRA ratio, calculated in accordance with the Prudential Code, reflects the
increase in financing costs attributable to the settlement payment required to
exit the HRA negative subsidy system detailed in section 3.02 of this report.
The ratio does not include the revenue savings as a result of no longer paying
negative subsidy which outweigh the increase in finance costs. As a result of
this change to the system the HRA expects to save £0.500m per annum.

The Prudential code requires that the estimate of the incremental impact of
capital investment decisions as proposed in the capital budget report, over
and above capital investment decisions that have previously been taken by
the Council, are reported in terms of their impact on Band D Council Tax and
Housing Rents.

The Council Fund Capital Programme contains no new capital investment
decisions.

The HRA Capital Programme contains capital expenditure funded by
unsupported (prudential) borrowing for; the settlement payment to exit the
HRA negative subsidy system detailed in section 3.02 of this report,
achievement of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS), and building
new Council homes. However, the revenue savings as a result of no longer
paying negative subsidy, outweighs the increase in finance costs as a result of
the capital expenditure, meaning that these investment decisions haven’t had
an increasing impact on rent levels.

Page 132



3.05

3.05.1

3.05.2

3.05.3

Prudential Indicators for Prudence

Estimates of the capital financing requirement, for 2015/16 are:

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
Council Fund 181.758 194.278 194.662
Housing Revenue Account 119.308 125.797 134.731
Total 301.067 320.075 329.393

The capital financing requirement measures the Council’s underlying need to
finance capital expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability
arrangements. In accordance with best professional practice, the Council
does not associate debt with particular items or type of expenditure. The
authority has an integrated treasury management strategy and has adopted
the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and
Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The Council has, at any point in time, a
number of cash flows both positive and negative, and manages its treasury
position in terms of its debt and investments in accordance with its approved
Treasury Management Policy and Strategy. The Treasury Management
Policy Statement 2013 - 2016 and the Treasury Management Strategy
2015/16 appear elsewhere on this agenda following consideration by the Audit
Committee in January 2015. In day to day cash management, no distinction
can be made between revenue cash and capital cash. External debt arises as
a consequence of all the financial transactions of the Council and not simply
those arising from capital spending. In contrast, the capital financing
requirement reflects the Council’s underlying need to finance capital
expenditure by borrowing or other long-term liability arrangements.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the
following; gross debt and the capital financing requirement, as a key indicator
of prudence.

‘In order to ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for a capital
purpose, the local authority should ensure that debt does not, except in the
short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding
year plus the estimates of any additional financing requirement for the current
and next two financial years’.

Page 133



3.06

3.06.1

3.06.2

3.06.3

In November 2012 CIPFA issued an amendment to the Prudential Code
changing the indicator from net debt (total borrowing and other long-term
liabilities less any investments held) to gross debt. Following reflection that
comparing the capital financing requirement to the net position i.e., net of
investments, could potentially mask a position where an authority had
borrowed other than for a capital purpose and then subsequently invested the
surplus funds.

The Corporate Finance Manager reports no difficulty in meeting this
requirement for the future period to which the prudential indicators apply. This
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and all budget
proposals.

Prudential Indicators for External Debt and Treasury Management
2014/15 Revised Indicators

The Prudential Code requires that any revisions to indicators must be
approved by the body that set them in this case, Council.

The exit from the HRA negative subsidy system detailed in section 3.02 of this
report will require the Council to borrow to fund the settlement payment. The
borrowing arrangements will be made on 31st March 2015, in the 2014/15
financial year, and the transaction will take place 2 days later on the 2" April
2015, in the 2015/16 financial year. It is therefore necessary to ensure that
the borrowing limits for both 2014/15 and 2015/16 are sufficient to complete
the transaction.

Both the Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary for External Debt need to
be revised from those approved by Council at its meeting of 18" February
2014. The tables below show the original estimate and revised Indicators.

AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
201415 2014/15
Estimate Revised
£m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 202.300 303.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 20.100 20.100
Total 222.400 323.200

Page 134




OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2014/15 2014/15
Estimate Revised
£m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 182.300 279.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 10.100 10.100
Total 192.400 289.200

3.06.4 As stated in 3.02.5 the settlement payment and therefore the associated

3.06.5

borrowing requirement cannot be confirmed until 31t March 2015, as the
calculation is based on the PWLB interest rate on that day. The operational
boundary has been increased to accommodate a settlement payment based
on rates being 0.5% lower than anticipated in the HRA budget report. The
authorised limit has been increased to accommodate the highest possible
settlement payment. The point at which the Council would decide not to
proceed with the introduction of self financing, as the costs of financing the
debt outweighs the revenue savings from no longer making negative subsidy
payments.

Council is asked to approve the revised Indicators for 2014/15.
2015/16 - 2017/18 Indicators

In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the Council approves
the following authorised limits for its total external debt gross of any
investment for the next three financial years. These limits separately identify
borrowing from other long term liabilities such as finance leases. The Council
is asked to approve these limits and to delegate authority to the Corporate
Finance Manager, within the total limit for any individual year, to effect
movement between the separately agreed limits for borrowing and other long
term liabilities, in accordance with option appraisal and best value for money
for the authority. Any such changes made will be reported to the Council at its
meeting following the change.

AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 324.100 341.100 353.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 20.100 20.100 20.100
Total 344.200 361.200 373.200

Page 135




3.06.6

3.06.7

The authorised limits are consistent with the authority’s current commitments,
existing plans and the proposals in the capital programme report, and with its
approved Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16. They are based on the
estimate of most likely, prudent position with, sufficient headroom over and
above this to allow for operational management, for example unusual cash
movements. Risk analysis and risk management strategies have been taken
into account, as have plans for capital expenditure, estimates of the capital
financing requirement and estimates of cash flow requirements for all
purposes.

Council is also asked to approve the following operational boundary for
external debt for the same period. The proposed operational boundary for
external debt is based on the same estimates as the authorised limit but
reflects directly the estimate of the most likely, prudent provision, without the
additional headroom included in the authorised limit to allow for example for
unusual cash movements, and equates to the maximum of external debt
projected by this estimate. The operational boundary represents a key
management tool for in year monitoring. Within the operational boundary,
figures borrowing and other long term liabilities are separately identified.
Council is also asked to delegate authority to the Corporate Finance Manager,
within the total operational boundary for any individual year, to effect
movement between the separately agreed figures for borrowing and other long
term liabilities, in a similar fashion to the authorised limit. Any such changes
will be reported to Council at its next meeting following the change.

OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY FOR EXTERNAL DEBT
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m £m £m
All Borrowing (Cap/Rev) 304.100 321.100 333.100
Other Long Term Liabilities 10.100 10.100 10.100
Total 314.200 331.200 343.200

It should be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the
authorised limit and operational boundary, since actual external debt reflects
the position at a point in time.

Council is asked to note that the authorised limit determined in 2015/16 (see

section 3.06.4 above) will be the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1)
of the Local Government Act 2003.

Page 136



3.06.8

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

The Prudential Indicator in respect of treasury management is confirmation
that the Council has adopted the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes (as reported
elsewhere on this agenda). The aim of this indicator is to ensure that treasury
management is led by a clear integrated forward treasury management
strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Members approve and recommend to County Council on 17th February
2015:

(@)  the Prudential Indicators for 2015/16 - 2017/18 and revised Indicators
for 2014/15 as detailed in Section 3 of the report

(b)  delegated authority for the Corporate Finance Manager to effect
movements between the separately agreed limits within the authorised
limit for external debt and the operational boundary for external debt
(3.06.5, 3.06.6)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None directly as a result of this report.

Page 137



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government and CIPFA Papers.

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accounting
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 138


mailto:liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 14

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION — 2015/16 POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To present to Council the recommendations of the Cabinet in relation
to the setting of a prudent Minimum Revenue Provision for the
repayment of debt.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 At its meeting of 17" February 2015, Cabinet considered the
Corporate Finance Manager’s report in respect of the calculation of
Minimum Revenue Provision for 2015/16.

2.02 The report of 17" February 2015 detailed the requirements and
associated guidance in respect of:-

e The four available options for making prudent provision.

e The circumstances for using the options, two of which are
available in respect of capital expenditure funded by way of
Welsh Government supported borrowing and a further two in
respect of that funded by unsupported (prudential) borrowing.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The recommendations of Cabinet to County Council are set out in
Section 4.00 of the report to Cabinet of 17t February 2015, a copy of
which is included as Appendix 1 to this report.

400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 In relation to the Council Fund, Council is requested to agree the
recommendations of the Cabinet, being that:-

e Option1 (Regulatory Method) be used for the calculation of the

Minimum Revenue Provision in 2015/16 for all supported
borrowing.

Page 139



4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

e Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used for the calculation of the
Minimum Revenue Provision in 2015/16 for all unsupported
(prudential) borrowing.

In relation to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA), Council is
requested to agree the recommendations of the Cabinet, being that:-

e Option 2 (Capital Financing Requirement Method) be used for
the calculation of the HRA’s Minimum Revenue Provision for all
HRA capital expenditure funded by debt. This represents a
continuation of how the calculation has been carried out in
2014/15, although the governing regulations have changed for
2015/16.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2015/16 revenue budget provides for the Minimum Revenue
Provision as follows:

e Council Fund capital expenditure funded by supported
borrowing, on the basis of Option 1 - Regulatory Method
calculation.

e Council Fund capital expenditure funded by unsupported
(prudential) borrowing, on the basis of Option 3 — Asset Life
Method calculation.

e HRA capital expenditure funded by borrowing, on the basis of
Option 2 - Capital Financing Requirement Method calculation.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None required.

Page 140



11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

11.01 None.

12.00 APPENDICES

Appendix 1 - Report to Cabinet 17" February 2015: Minimum
Revenue Provision 2015/16 Policy

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Various Welsh Government papers.

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager — Technical Accountancy
Telephone: 01352 702289
Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1
FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 17" FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION - 2015/16 POLICY

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present proposals for the setting of a prudent Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) for the repayment of debt in 2015/16, as required
under the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales)
(Amendment) Regulations 2008 (‘the 2008 Regulations’).

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Local Authorities are required each year to set aside some of their
revenue resources as provision for the repayment of debt i.e. a
provision in respect of capital expenditure funded from borrowing or
credit arrangements.

2.02 Regulation 22 of the 2008 Regulations requires an authority to each
year make an amount of Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) which it
considers to be ‘prudent’, but the regulation does not itself define
‘prudent provision’. However, the Welsh Government (WG) has
provided guidance which makes recommendations to authorities on
the interpretation of the term; the guidance was last updated in April
2010.

2.03  Authorities are required to prepare an annual statement of their policy
on making MRP, which mirrors the existing requirements on the
prudential borrowing limit and investment policy.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 Meaning of ‘Prudent Provision’

3.01.1 The WG guidance provides for a number of options for making

‘prudent provision’. It explains that provision for the debt which funded
the acquisition of an asset should be made over a period bearing
some relation to that over which the asset continues to provide a
service.

Page 143



3.02

3.02.1

3.02.2

3.02.3

3.02.4

Options for Prudent Provision
Option 1 — Regulatory Method

For capital expenditure funded from borrowing which is supported by
Revenue Support Grant (RSG), authorities may continue to use the
formula specified in the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and
Accounting) (Wales) Regulations 2003 (the regulations which
preceded the 2008 Regulations), since the RSG is calculated on that
basis, i.e. authorities are able to calculate MRP exactly as if the 2003
Regulations were still in force.

Formula for calculation is to multiply the adjusted Capital Financing
Requirement at the end of the preceding financial year less adjustment
A by 4%.

(Adjustment A is a fixed value determined by changes to statutory
regulations referred to above).

Option 2 — Capital Financing Requirement Method

This is a technically simpler alternative to option 1 and may also be
used in relation to supported borrowing. While still based on the
concept of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), which is easily
derived from the balance sheet, it avoids the complexities of the
formula in Regulation 22. However, for most authorities it will probably
result in a higher level of provision (and subsequent impact on service
budgets) than Option 1, as it would for Flintshire County Council.

Formula for calculation is to multiply the adjusted Capital Financing
Requirement at the end of the preceding financial year by 4%.

Option 3 — Asset Life Method

For capital expenditure funded from debt under the Prudential system
for which no Government support is being given and is therefore self-
financed, there are two options. Option 3 is to make provision in equal
instalments over the estimated life of the asset for which debt is
undertaken. This is a possibly simpler alternative to the use of
depreciation accounting (Option 4), though it has some similarities to
that approach.

Option 4 — Depreciation Method
Alternatively, for debt under the Prudential system for which no WG
support is being given, Option 4 may be used. This means making

MRP in accordance with the standard rules for depreciation
accounting.

Page 144



3.03

3.03.1

3.04

3.04.1

3.04.2

3.05

3.05.1

3.05.2

3.05.3

Conditions for using the options

The intention is that Options 1 and 2 should be used only for WG
supported borrowing. Options 3 and 4 should be used in relation to all
capital expenditure which is to be financed by unsupported borrowing
or credit arrangements.

Practical Considerations

The useful life of an asset will vary depending on the class of asset
concerned; a vehicle or ICT equipment may be financed over 5 years
whereas a new school over 50 years. Judgements about the useful
life will need to be made on an individual basis as expenditure is
incurred.

Large capital projects may take a number of years to complete, for
example the 21st Century Schools building programme. In this
instance the MRP is incurred in the year after the asset has become
operational, rather than during the construction phase.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — Introduction of Self Financing

Currently the MRP for the repayment of debt within the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) is governed by the ‘Item 8 Determination’ set
by Welsh Ministers. It is calculated by multiplying the adjusted HRA
Capital Financing Requirement at the end of the preceding financial
year by 2%.

As a result of the planned voluntary exit from the HRA negative
subsidy system in Wales on 31st March 2015, and the introduction of
self financing, the Item 8 Determination governing the HRA’s MRP has
changed.

From 1st April 2015 the calculation of the HRA MRP will be similar to
the Council Fund as set out in section 3.02 with the following
modifications:

e Options 1 and 2 - the percentage applied is 4% for the Council
Fund and 2% for the HRA.

e Options 1 and 2 can be used in relation to capital expenditure

incurred before 13t April 2021. After 15t April 2021 only options
3 and 4 maybe used.

Page 145



4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

That members approve and recommend to the County Council on 17
February 2015 for Council Fund:-

Option 1 (Regulatory Method) be used for the calculation of the
MRP in 2015/16 for all capital expenditure funded from
supported borrowing; this represents a continuation of the
approved and adopted policy for 2014/15.

Option 3 (Asset Life Method) be used for the calculation of the
MRP in 2015/16 for all capital expenditure funded from
unsupported (prudential) borrowing; this represents a
continuation of the approved and adopted policy for 2014/15.

That members approve and recommend to the County Council on 17
February 2015 for the HRA:-

Option 2 (Capital Financing Requirement Method) be used for
the calculation of the HRA’s MRP in 2015/16 for all HRA capital
expenditure funded by debt. This represents a continuation of
how the calculation has been carried out in 2014/15, all though
the governing regulations have changed for 2015/16.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The 2015/16 revenue budgets provide for the MRP as follows:

Council Fund capital expenditure funded by supported
borrowing, on the basis of Option 1 - Regulatory Method
calculation.

Council Fund capital expenditure funded by unsupported
(prudential) borrowing, on the basis of Option 3 — Asset Life
Method calculation.

HRA capital expenditure funded by borrowing, on the basis of
Option 2 — Capital Financing Requirement Method calculation.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

Page 146



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

None.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Background Papers: Various Welsh Government papers
Contact Officer: Liz Thomas

Finance Manager - Technical Accountancy
Telephone: 01352 702289
E.mail: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 147



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 15

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present to Council the recommendation of Cabinet in relation to
Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have
due regard to both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of
Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice) and Welsh Government
guidance on Local Authority Investments.

2.02 The Council has adopted The CIPFA Code of Practice which requires:-

o The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management
Policy Statement which states the Council’s policies, objectives
and approach to risk management of its treasury management
activities.

. The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs) and accompanying schedules,
stating how those policies and objectives will be achieved and
prescribing how those activities will be managed and controlled.

o The Council to receive reports on its treasury management
policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an
annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year
review and an annual report after its close, in the form prescribed
in its TMPs.

o Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined.
The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and
practices to the Cabinet, and for the execution and administration
of treasury management decisions to the Corporate Finance
Manager, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s policy

Page 149


fscetxw
Underline


3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

statement and TMPs and, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional
Practice on Treasury Management.

o A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury Management

Policy, Strategy and Practices. The Council has nominated the
Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny
of the treasury management function. The Audit Committee has
previously agreed to include treasury management as a standing
item on each quarterly agenda to receive an update.

CONSIDERATIONS

At a meeting of the Audit Committee on 28" January 2015 Members
reviewed the draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16. The
Audit Committee recommended to Cabinet that the Council approves
the Strategy for 2015/16.

This morning’s Cabinet meeting (17" February 2015) received the
recommendation of the Audit Committee. The Cabinet report, which
includes the Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16, is included at
Appendix 1. Any comments from the Cabinet will be reported verbally.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management was
run by Arlingclose, the Council’s Treasury Management advisors on the
morning of 215t January. The aim of the workshop was to aid Members’
understanding of the Treasury Management Strategy.

On 18t March 2013 the Council approved the current Treasury
Management Policy and Treasury Management Practices with both
documents covering 3 financial years, 2013 to 2016. It was agreed that
these documents would not require annual approval by Members,
unless any significant changes was required. No changes need to be
made to the Policy, and only minor changes need to be made to the
Practices simply to bring them in line with changes approved to the
Strategy.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Council approves the Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

Page 150



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Cabinet report of 17" February 2015

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas — Finance Manager,
Technical Accounting

Telephone: 01352 702289

Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY, 17 FEBRUARY 2015

REPORT BY: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

SUBJECT: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2015/16

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To present to Members the draft Treasury Management Strategy for
2015/16 for recommendation to Council.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Local Government Act 2003 requires all local authorities to have
due regard to both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in Public Services: Code of
Practice (The CIPFA Code of Practice) and Welsh Government
guidance on Local Authority Investments.

2.02 The Council has adopted The CIPFA Code of Practice which requires:-

o The Council to create and maintain a Treasury Management
Policy Statement which states the Council’s policies, objectives
and approach to risk management of its treasury management
activities.

. The Council to create and maintain suitable Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs) and accompanying schedules,
stating how those policies and objectives will be achieved and
prescribing how those activities will be managed and controlled.

o The Council to receive reports on its treasury management
policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an
annual strategy and plan in advance of the year, a mid-year
review and an annual report after its close, in the form prescribed
in its TMPs.

o Responsibility for Treasury Management to be clearly defined.
The Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and
regular monitoring of its treasury management policies and
practices to the Cabinet, and for the execution and administration
of treasury management decisions to the Corporate Finance
Manager, who will act in accordance with the organisation’s policy

Page 153



2.03

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

statement and TMPs and, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional
Practice on Treasury Management.

o A body to be responsible for the scrutiny of Treasury Management

Policy, Strategy and Practices. The Council has nominated the
Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny
of the treasury management function. The Audit Committee has
previously agreed to include treasury management as a standing
item on each quarterly agenda to receive an update.

A training session open to all Members on treasury management was
run by Arlingclose, the Council’s Treasury Management advisors on the
morning of 215t January. The aim of the workshop was to aid Members’
understanding of the Treasury Management Strategy.

CONSIDERATIONS

The 2015/16 Treasury Management Strategy is attached in Appendix 1
for review and discussion. The Strategy is updated and reported
annually to Members in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice
and the Welsh Government guidance.

The Treasury Management Strategy details the approach that the
Council will take for investing and borrowing over the next year,
including the budgetary implications of the planned investment and
borrowing strategy and a number of treasury management indicators
that the CIPFA Code requires.

The contents and layout of the 2015/16 Strategy have not materially
changed from that of the 2014/15 Strategy.

Changes made and matters needing to be brought to Members
attention are summarised below along with the supporting rationale:-

. Section 4 — Local context.

This section summarises the anticipated treasury position in
2015/16. A new graph called the liability benchmark has been
included (Table 4) which shows the net requirement for
borrowing after considering resources available from reserves
and working capital over the next 50 years. Treasury
Management activity in 2015/16 will change and will focus more
on borrowing and less on investments than in recent years.

o Section 5 — Housing Revenue Account; Subsidy Reform and
introduction of self financing.

Preparations continue to be made for the abolition of the

Housing Revenue Account Subsidy (HRAS) system in Wales
and the introduction of ‘Self Financing’ for the Housing Revenue

Page 154



3.06

3.07

3.08

3.09

3.10

4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

Account on 31%t March 2015. The treasury impact will be to
increase the Council’s debt position. Section 5 of the report
provides further information.

. Section 6 — Investment Strategy.

Changes have been made to the format of the Investment
criteria and limits detailed in table 5. The changes are necessary
to ensure that the Council’s exposure to credit risk is minimised.
This is as a consequence of the recently introduced legislation
(commonly referred to as ‘bail-in’) to reform procedures should
financial institutions fail in the future. The reforms end potential
support available from the government and require investors /
creditors classed as unsecured bondholders (such as Councils)
to be bailed-in to secure the future financial stability in the event
of a default.

. Section 7 — Borrowing Strategy.

Changes have been made to the planned borrowing strategy in
2015/16 from that of 2014/15 which can be seen in Section 7 —
Borrowing Strategy. In 2014/15 the strategy was to create short
term revenue savings by not undertaking any new borrowing. In
2015/16 the Council will need to borrow to fund the capital
programme.

At a meeting of the Audit Committee on 28" January 2015 Members
reviewed the draft Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16.

Investments and borrowing requirements were discussed at length
during the meeting, with no amendments made to the draft report.

On 18t March 2013 the Council approved the current Treasury
Management Policy and Treasury Management Practices with both
documents covering 3 financial years, 2013 to 2016. It was agreed that
these documents would not require annual approval by Members,
unless any significant changes was required. No changes need to be
made to the Policy, and only minor changes need to be made to the
Practices simply to bring them in line with changes approved to the
Strategy.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Cabinet approves and recommends to the Council the
Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

Page 155



6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly as a result of this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly as a result of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Arlingclose Ltd as Treasury Management Advisers.

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Draft Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Liz Thomas - Finance Manager,
Technical Accounting

Telephone: 01352 702289

Email: liz.thomas@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 156



Slry Fflint
Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

-y

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY

2015/16

Page 157

APPENDIX 1



Section

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

CONTENTS

Introduction

Economic Context

Current Treasury Portfolio

Local Context

Housing Revenue Account Subsidy Reform
Investment Strategy

Borrowing Strategy

Policy on the use of Financial Derivatives
Treasury Management Indicators

Other Matters

APPENDIX A — Debt Maturity Profile

Page 158

12

15

15

17

19



Treasury Management Strategy Report 2015/16

The Council is recommended to:
e approve the Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16
e approve the Treasury Management Indicators for 2015/16

1.0 Introduction

In April 2012 the Council adopted the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice
2011 Edition (the CIPFA Code) which requires the Council to approve a
treasury management strategy before the start of each financial year.

In addition, the Welsh Government (WG) issued revised guidance on local
authority investments in March 2010 that requires the Council to approve an
investment strategy before the start of each financial year.

This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act
2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance.

The successful identification, monitoring and control of risk are central to the
Council's treasury management strategy as the Council has borrowed and
invested substantial sums of money and is therefore exposed to financial risks
including the loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of changing interest
rates.

2.0 Economic Context (including Interest Rate Forecast — as provided by
Arlingclose Ltd, November 2014).

Economic background: There is momentum in the UK economy, with a
continued period of growth through domestically-driven activity and strong
household consumption. There are signs that growth is becoming more
balanced. The greater contribution from business investment should support
continued, albeit slower, expansion of GDP. However, inflationary pressure is
benign and is likely to remain low in the short-term. There have been large falls
in unemployment but levels of part-time working, self-employment and
underemployment are significant and nominal earnings growth remains weak
and below inflation.

The MPC's focus is on both the degree of spare capacity in the economy and
the rate at which this will be used up, factors prompting some debate on the
Committee. Despite two MPC members having voted for a 0.25% increase in
rates at each of the meetings August 2014 onwards, some Committee
members have become more concerned that the economic outlook is less
optimistic than at the time of the August Inflation Report.

Credit outlook: The transposition of two European Union directives into UK
legislation in the coming months will place the burden of rescuing failing EU
banks disproportionately onto unsecured local authority investors. The Bank
Recovery and Resolution Directive promotes the interests of individual and

1
Page 159




small businesses covered by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme
and similar European schemes, while the recast Deposit Guarantee Schemes
Directive includes large companies into these schemes. The combined effect
of these two changes is to leave public authorities and financial organisations
(including pension funds) as the only senior creditors likely to incur losses in a
failing bank after July 2015.

The continued global economic recovery has led to a general improvement in
credit conditions since last year. This is evidenced by a fall in the credit default
swap spreads of banks and companies around the world. However, due to the
above legislative changes, the credit risk associated with making unsecured
bank deposits will increase relative to the risk of other investment options
available to the Authority.

Interest rate forecast: The Authority’s treasury management advisor
Arlingclose forecasts the first rise in official interest rates in August 2015 and a
gradual pace of increases thereafter, with the average for 2015/16 being around
0.75%. Arlingclose believes the normalised level of the Bank Rate post-crisis
to range between 2.5% and 3.5%. The risk to the upside (i.e. interest rates
being higher) is weighted more towards the end of the forecast horizon. On the
downside, Eurozone weakness and the threat of deflation have increased the
risks to the durability of UK growth. If the negative indicators from the Eurozone
become more entrenched, the Bank of England will likely defer rate rises to
later in the year. Arlingclose projects gilt yields on an upward path in the
medium term, taking the forecast average 20 year PWLB loan rate for 2015/16
to 2.8%.

Table 1: Interest rate forecast

Bank | 3 month | 12 month 20 year 50 year

Rate LIBID LIBID PWLB rate | PWLB rate
Q1 2015 0.50 0.60 1.00 2.55 2.65
Q2 2015 0.50 0.75 1.05 2.65 2.70
Q3 2015 0.75 0.90 1.20 2.75 2.80
Q4 2015 0.75 1.05 1.35 2.85 2.90
Q1 2016 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.95 3.00
Q2 2016 1.00 1.35 1.65 3.00 3.05
Q3 2016 1.25 1.50 1.80 3.05 3.10
Q4 2016 1.25 1.60 1.95 3.10 3.15
Q1 2017 1.50 1.70 2.10 3.15 3.20
Q2 2017 1.50 1.80 2.20 3.20 3.25
Q3 2017 1.75 1.90 2.30 3.25 3.30
Q4 2017 1.75 2.00 2.40 3.30 3.55

For the purpose of setting the budget, it has been assumed that new
investments will be made at an average rate of 0.65%, and that new long-term
loans will be borrowed at a weighted average rate of 3.15%.

2
Page 160



3.0 Current Treasury Portfolio
The Council’s treasury portfolio as at 31t December 2014 was as follows:
Table 2: Current Treasury Portfolio

Principal £Em | Interest rate %

Investments:
Call accounts 5.0 0.35
Money market funds 15.6 0.44
Short-term deposits 31.8 0.62
Long-term deposits - -
Total Investments 52.40 0.55
Borrowing:
Short-term loans - -
Long-term PWLB loans (fixed) 143.16 5.86
Long-term PWLB loans (variable) 10.00 0.55
Long-term market loans (LOBOS) 18.95 4.53
Total Borrowing 172.11 5.42
Net Borrowing 119.71

4.0 Local Context

Forecast changes in the sums in section 3 are shown in the balance sheet

analysis in the table below.

Table 3: Balance Sheet Summary and Forecast

(called the Liability Benchmark)

31.3.14 | 31.3.15 31.3.16 31.3.17 31.3.18
Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m £m
Counf:ll Fund Capital .Flnancmg 154 164 186 190 188
Requirement (Borrowing only)
Housing Revenue Account
Capital Financing Requirement 25 24 122 130 140
(Borrowing only)
Capital I':lnancmg Requirement 179 188 308 320 308
(Borrowing only)
Less: Current borrowing -172 -172 -172 -172 -172
Funding Required 7 16 136 148 156
Less: Usable reserves -60 -43 -25 -21 -19
Less: Working capital 4 4 5 5 5
Investments / 49 23
New borrowing -116 -132 -142

The underlying need to borrow for capital purposes is measured by the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR), while usable reserves and working capital are

3
Page 161




the underlying resources available for investment. The Authority’s current
strategy is to maintain borrowing below their underlying levels, sometimes
known as internal borrowing.

Table 3 shows the Authority’s CFR increasing steadily until 2015/16, this is
linked with the capital programme which increases sharply in 2015/16 due to
the 215 century schools building programme and the payment required to exit
the Housing Revenue Account Subsidy system (described in more detail in
section 5). The level of reserves the Authority has is expected to fall in 2014/15
following the implementation of the Single Status Agreement. The combination
of the increase in capital expenditure and a reduction in reserves, results in:

e an expected reduction in investments in 2014/15 and 2015/186,
e asignificant projected new borrowing requirement in 2015/16 and further
new borrowing required in 2016/17 and 2017/18.

The graph in table 4 shows the Council’s anticipated liability benchmark over
the next 50 years, being the net requirement for borrowing after considering
resources available from reserves and working capital. The steep rise in the
liability benchmark in 2015/16 corresponds with the need to borrow to fund the
increase in capital expenditure described above. The strategy in 2015/16 and
over the medium term is to ensure that any new borrowing undertaken does not
exceed the liability benchmark and cause the council to borrow more than it
needs.

Table 4: Liability Benchmark - Flintshire County Council (January 2015)

\ s Borrowing Borrowing CFR ~ --eeeeeeee Liability Benchmark \

350,000,000 -

300,000,000

250,000,000

200,000,000

150,000,000

100,000,000

50,000,000

The impact of the above will result in the focus of treasury management
activity changing in 2015/16. In recent years attention will have been
concentrated on investments, which will now switch to borrowing.

4
Page 162



Budget implications

The budget for investment income in 2015/16 is £130k, based on an average
investment portfolio of £20m at an average interest rate of 0.65%. The total
budget for loan interest paid in 2015/16 is £12.6m, based on an average debt
portfolio of £276.5m at a weighted average interest rate of 4.53%. If levels of
investments, borrowing and interest rates differ from those forecast,
performance against budget will be correspondingly different.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) — Introduction of Self Financing and
Subsidy Reform

Agreement has been reached between the UK Government and the Welsh
Government to change the financing arrangements for council housing in Wales
from April 2015. Currently a negative subsidy system is in operation which
requires Flintshire to make annual payments of cE6m in negative subsidy to
Welsh Government and on to UK Treasury, along with the other 11 stock
retaining authorities in Wales.

The agreement is expected to generate revenue savings allowing the Council
to increase its investment in existing stock, and support the delivery of
additional supply of housing. It will also provide more local accountability to
tenants.

Introduction of self financing will end the negative subsidy system and annual
payments. The subsidy payments will be replaced with interest payments on
PWLB loans that the Council must borrow to exit the subsidy system. The
PWLB loans, called the settlement payment (a one-off lump sum payment), will
be paid to Welsh Government (WG) and on to UK Treasury.

WG have established an officer Steering Group and a number of work streams
to undertake the considerable amount of work involved to exit the subsidy
system by the 315t March 2015, which Flintshire has been contributing to. Good
progress has been made to date, but the work continues.

The settlement payment will be set with reference to PWLB interest rates on
31st March 2015 and therefore cannot be confirmed at this point in time. The
current projection for Flintshire is £92m, based on the latest interest rate
forecast. Atthis value the estimated annual revenue savings are £0.5m. These
figures will change up until 315t March and will be monitored and revised as
necessary.

The sharp increase in the HRA capital financing requirement from 2015/16
onwards in table 3 above, is due to the estimated £92m settlement payment
and an estimated planned programme of £28.3m capital expenditure over 3
years to improve existing stock and to start building new council houses.

5
Page 163



Investment Strateqy

The Council holds surplus funds, representing income received in advance of
expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12 months, the
Council’s investment balance has ranged between £45.2 and £80.9 million.

Both the CIPFA Code and the WG Guidance require the Council to invest its
funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and liquidity of its
investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or yield. The Council’s
objective when investing money is to strike an appropriate balance between
risk and return, minimising the risk of incurring losses from defaults and the risk
of receiving unsuitably low investment income.

Strateqy

Given the increasing risk and continued low returns from short-term unsecured
bank investments, the Authority aims to further diversify into more secure asset
classes during 2015/16. This is especially the case for any longer-term
investment made. The majority of the Authorities surplus cash is currently
invested in short-term unsecured bank deposits and money market funds. This
diversification will therefore represent a change in strategy over the coming
year.

Investment criteria and limits

The Council may invest its surplus funds with any of the counterparties in the
following table, subject to the monetary and time limits shown.

6
Page 164



Table 5: Investment criteria and limits

(This table should be read in conjunction with the notes that follow it)

Minimum Banks Banks Government | Corporates | Registered
Credit Rating | Unsecured | Secured Providers
UK £ Unlimited
Government 50 years
AAA
£4m £7m £7m £4m
AA+ 5 years 5 years 25 years 5 years
£4m
4 years 4 years 15 years 4 years
AA- £4m £7m £7m £4m
3 years 3 years 10 years 3 years
A £4m E7m £4m
+
2 years 2 years 2 years
A £4m £7m £7m £4m £4m
1 year 1 year 5 years 1 year 5 years
A- £4m £7/m £4m
6 months 6 months 6 months
Pooled
Funds £7m per fund
BBB- The Council is restricted to overnight deposits at its’ own current
account bank with a limit of £5m where the banks lowest credit rating
is BBB+, BBB or BBB- (or equivalent)
Unrated Local £4m
Authorities 2 years
Unrated The Council may invest in any other unrated organisation, subject to:
Other e an external credit assessment and specific advice from the
Authority’s treasury management adviser (£1m each / 1 year limit)
e a further policy framework for investing with any other
organisations being developed(£100k each / 5 year limit)
Credit Ratin

Investment decisions are made by reference to the lowest published long-
term credit rating from Fitch, Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s. Where available,
the credit rating relevant to the specific investment or class of investment is
used, otherwise the counterparty credit rating is used.

Banks Unsecured

Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and senior unsecured bonds with
banks and building societies, other than multilateral development banks. These
investments are subject to the risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator

7
Page 165



determine that the bank is failing or likely to fail. Unsecured investment with
banks rated BBB+, BBB or BBB- are restricted to overnight deposits at the
Authority’s current account bank.

Banks Secured

Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and other collateralised
arrangements with banks and building societies. These investments are
secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the potential losses in the unlikely
event of insolvency, and means that they are exempt from bail-in. Where there
is no investment specific credit rating, but the collateral upon which the
investment is secured has a credit rating, the highest of the collateral credit
rating and the counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time
limits. The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one bank will
not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Government

Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national governments, regional
and local authorities and multilateral development banks. These investments
are not subject to bail-in, and there is an insignificant risk of insolvency.
Investments with the UK Central Government may be made in unlimited
amounts for up to 50 years.

Corporates

Loans, bonds and commercial papers issued by companies other than banks
and registered providers. These investments are not subject to bail-in, but are
exposed to the risk of the company going insolvent. Loans to unrated
companies will only be made as part of a diversified pool in order to spread the
risk widely.

Registered Providers

Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or secured on the assets of
Registered Providers of Social Housing, formerly known as Housing
Associations. These bodies are tightly regulated by the Welsh Government or
Homes and Communities Agency and, as providers of public services, they
retain a high likelihood of receiving government support if needed. The Council
will consider investing with unrated Registered Providers with adequate credit
safeguards, subject to receiving independent advice.

Pooled Funds

Shares in diversified investment vehicles consisting of any of the above
investment types, plus equity shares and property. These funds have the
advantage of providing wide diversification of investment risks, coupled with the
services of a professional fund manager in return for a fee. Money Market
Funds that offer same-day liquidity and aim for a constant net asset value will
be used as an alternative to instant access bank accounts, while pooled funds
whose value changes with market prices and/or have a notice period will be
used for longer investment periods.

8
Page 166



Bond, equity and property funds offer enhanced returns over the longer term,
but are more volatile in the short term. These allow the Authority to diversify
into asset classes other than cash without the need to own and manage the
underlying investments. Because these funds have no defined maturity date,
but are available for withdrawal after a notice period, their performance and
continued suitability in meeting the Authority’s investment objectives will be
monitored regularly.

Other Organisations

The Authority may also invest cash with other organisations, for example by
making loans to small businesses. Because of the higher perceived risk of
unrated businesses, such investments may provide considerably higher rates
of return. They will however only be made following a favourable external credit
assessment and on the specific advice of the Authority’s treasury management
adviser.

Foreign countries

Investments in foreign countries will be limited to those that hold an AAA or AA+
/ Aal sovereign credit rating from all three major credit rating agencies, and to
a maximum of £10 million per foreign country. Investments in countries whose
lowest sovereign rating is not AAA will be limited to one year’s duration. No
country limit will apply to investments in the UK, irrespective of the sovereign
credit rating.

Risk assessment and credit ratings

The Council uses long-term credit ratings from the three main rating agencies
Fitch Ratings Ltd, Moody’s Investors Service Inc and Standard & Poor’s
Financial Services LLC to assess the risk of investment default. The lowest
available credit rating will be used to determine credit quality.

Long-term ratings are expressed on a scale from AAA (the highest quality)
through to D (indicating default). Ratings of BBB- and above are described as
investment grade, while ratings of BB+ and below are described as speculative
grade. The Council’s credit rating criteria are set to ensure that it is unlikely
that the Council will hold speculative grade investments, despite the possibility
of repeated downgrades.

Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the Council’s treasury advisers,
who will notify changes in ratings as they occur. Where an entity has its credit
rating downgraded so that it fails to meet the approved investment criteria then:

e no new investments will be made,

e any existing investments that can be recalled or sold at no cost will be,
and

e full consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all other existing
investments with the affected counterparty.

Where a credit rating agency announces that a rating is on review for possible
downgrade (also known as “rating watch negative” or “credit watch negative”)

9
Page 167



so that it is likely to fall below the above criteria, then no further investments will
be made in that organisation until the outcome of the review is announced. This
policy will not apply to negative outlooks.

Other information on the security of investments

The Council understands that credit ratings are good, but not perfect, predictors
of investment default. Full regard will therefore be given to other available
information on the credit quality of the organisations in which it invests,
including credit default swap prices, financial statements and reports in the
quality financial press. No investments will be made with an organisation if
there are substantive doubts about its credit quality, even though it may meet
the above criteria.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness of all
organisations, as in 2008 and 2011, this is not generally reflected in credit
ratings, but can be seen in other market measures. In these circumstances,
the Council will restrict its investments to those organisations of higher credit
guality and reduce the maximum duration of its investments to maintain the
required level of security. The extent of these restrictions will be in line with
prevailing financial market conditions. If these restrictions mean that insufficient
commercial organisations of “high credit quality” are available to invest the
Council’'s cash balances, then the surplus will be deposited with the UK
Government, via the Debt Management Office for example, or with other local
authorities. This will cause a reduction in the level of investment income
earned, but will protect the principal sum invested.

Specified investments

The WG Guidance defines specified investments as those:

denominated in pound sterling,

due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement,

not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and

invested with one of:
o the UK Government,
o a UK local authority, parish council or community council, or
o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”.

The Council defines ‘high credit quality’ organisations as those having a credit
rating of A- or higher that are, domiciled in the UK, or a foreign country with a
sovereign rating of AA+ or higher. For money market funds and other pooled
funds “high credit quality” is defined as those having a credit rating of [A-] or
higher.

Non-Specified Investments

Any investment not meeting the definition of a specified investment is classed
as non-specified. The Council does not intend to make any investments in
foreign currencies. Non- specified investments will therefore be limited to long
term investments, i.e. those that are due to mature 12 months or longer from
the date of arrangement; those that are defined as capital expenditure, such as

10
Page 168



money market funds and other pooled funds; and investments with bodies and
schemes not meeting the definition on high credit quality. Limits on non-
specified investments are shown in the table below.

Table 6: Non-Specified Investment Limits

Cash Limit
Total long-term investments £10m
Total shares in pooled funds £30m
Total investments without credit ratings or rated below A- £10m
(not including pooled funds)
Total non-specified investments £50m

Liquidity management

The Council uses purpose-built cash flow forecasting software to determine the
maximum period for which funds may prudently be committed. The forecast is
compiled on a pessimistic basis, with receipts under-estimated and payments
over-estimated to minimise the risk of the Council being forced to borrow on
unfavourable terms to meet its financial commitments. Limits on long-term
investments are set by reference to the Council’s medium term financial plan
and cash flow forecast.

Planned investment strateqgy for 2015/16

The UK implemented the ‘bail-in’ provisions on 15t January 2015 ending
government support potentially available should a bank fail in the future.
Investors / creditors classed as senior unsecured bondholders will be bailed-in
to secure the future financial stability of a bank in the event of a default.

There is a risk that following the withdrawal of potential government support,
the credit rating agencies will downgrade the credit ratings of some institutions
on Flintshire’s counterparty list to BBB+, below A- which is the minimum rating
required by the Treasury Management Strategy.

To mitigate this risk, the Council will:

¢ Not invest in any financial institution rated below A-, with the exception
of overnight deposits with the Council’s current account.

e Reduce the amount of unsecured investments made.

e Seek to invest in alternative, secure financial instruments such as UK
Government Treasury Bills and investments secured on a bank or
building societies assets, such as covered bonds, that are exempt from
bail-in in the unlikely event of insolvency.

e Continue to diversify the portfolio of investments, subject to cash flow
requirements as outlined in the following paragraphs

Treasury management staff will continue to seek out investments that meet the
criteria detailed within this strategy whilst having full regard for the Council’s
cash flow requirements, in particular the expectancy to meet outstanding single
status and equal pay obligations during the 2015/16 financial year.

11
Page 169



The cash flow forecast will be used to divide surplus funds into three categories:

e Short-term — cash required to meet known cash outflows in the next
month, plus a contingency to cover unexpected cash flows over the
same period.

e Medium-term — cash required to manage the annual seasonal cash
flow cycle, including amounts to cover forecast shortages, planned
uses of reserves, and a longer-term contingency.

e Long-term — cash not required to meet cash flows, and used primarily
to generate investment income.

Short-term funds are required to meet cash flows occurring in the next month
or so, and the preservation of capital and liquidity is therefore of paramount
importance. Generating investment returns is of limited concern here, although
it should not be ignored. Instant access money market funds and bank deposit
accounts will be the main methods used to manage short-term cash.

Medium-term funds which may be required in the next one to twelve months
will be managed concentrating on security, with less importance attached to
liquidity but a slightly higher emphasis on yield. The majority of investments in
this period will be in the form of fixed term deposits with banks and building
societies. A wide spread of counterparties and maturity dates will be maintained
to maximise the diversification of credit and interest rate risks.

Cash that is not required to meet any liquidity need can be invested for the
longer term with a greater emphasis on achieving returns that will support
spending on local authority services. Security remains important, as any losses
from defaults will impact on the total return, but fluctuations in price and even
occasional losses can be managed over the long term within a diversified
portfolio. Liquidity is of lesser concern, although it should still be possible to
sell investments, with due notice, if large spending commitments arise
unexpectedly. A wider range of instruments, including structured deposits,
certificates of deposit, gilts and corporate bonds will be used to diversify the
portfolio.

Borrowing Strateqy

The Council currently holds £172.11m of long-term loans, as part of its strategy
for funding previous years’ capital programmes. The balance sheet forecast in
section 4 shows that the Council will need to undertake significant new long
term borrowing during 2015/16.

The Council’'s chief objective when borrowing money is to strike an
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and
achieving cost certainty over the period for which the funds are required. The
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Council’s long-term plans change is a
secondary objective.

The Council’s capital expenditure plans will be monitored throughout 2015/16

to inform and confirm the Council’s long term borrowing need (figures in section
4 are an estimate). This is to ensure that the Council does not commit to long

12
Page 170



term borrowing too early and borrow unnecessarily which will be costly. The
use of short-term borrowing will assist with such. This will be balanced against
securing low long term interest rates currently being forecast.

Given the significant cuts to public expenditure and in particular to local
government funding, the Council’s borrowing strategy continues to address the
key issue of affordability without compromising the longer-term stability of the
debt portfolio. With short-term interest rates currently much lower than long-
term rates, it is likely to be more cost effective in the short-term to either use
internal resources, or to borrow short-term instead. By doing so, the Council is
able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite forgone investment income) and
reduce overall treasury risk. Credit risk as a result of the bail-in legislation has
increased as referred to in section 6 the planned borrowing strategy helps to
mitigate the increased risk.

Whilst such a strategy is most likely to be beneficial over the next 2-3 years as
official interest rates remain low, it is unlikely to be sustained in the medium-
term. The benefits of internal borrowing will be monitored regularly against the
potential for incurring additional costs by deferring borrowing into future years
when long-term borrowing costs are forecast to rise. Arlingclose will assist the
Council with this ‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis.

In addition, the Council may borrow for short periods of time (normally for up to
one month) to cover unexpected cash flow shortages.

Sources of borrowing

The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing will be:

Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)

UK local authorities

any institution approved for investments above

any other bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK

UK public and private sector pension funds (except the Clwyd Pension
Fund)

capital market bond investors

e Local Capital Finance Company and other special purpose companies
created to enable joint local authority bond issues.

In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are not
borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities:

. operating and finance leases
. hire purchase

. Private Finance Initiative

. sale and leaseback

LGA Bond Agency (Municipal Bond Agency)

The LGA Bond Agency is a Local Capital Finance Company established in 2014
by the Local Government Association as an alternative to the PWLB. It plans
to issue bonds on the capital markets and lend the proceeds to local authorities.

13
Page 171



This will be a more complicated source of finance than the PWLB for three
reasons: borrowing authorities may be required to provide bond investors with
a joint and several guarantee over the very small risk that other local authority
borrowers default on their loans; there will be a lead time of several months
between committing to borrow and knowing the interest rate payable; and up to
5% of the loan proceeds will be withheld from the Authority and used to bolster
the Agency’s capital strength instead. Any decision to borrow from the Agency
will therefore be the subject of a separate report to Cabinet.

LOBOs

The Authority holds £18.95m of LOBO (Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option)
loans where the lender has the option to propose an increase in the interest
rate as set dates, following which the Authority has the option to either accept
the new rate or to repay the loan at no additional cost. All of these LOBOS
have options during 2015/16, and although the Authority understands that
lenders are unlikely to exercise their options in the current low interest rate
environment, there remains an element of refinancing risk. The Authority will
take the option to repay LOBO loans at no cost if it has the opportunity to do
so.

Short-term and Variable Rate loans

These loans leave the Authority exposed to the risk of short-term interest rate
rises and are therefore subject to the limit on the net exposure to variable
interest rates in the treasury management indicators in section 9.

Debt Rescheduling

The PWLB allows authorities to repay loans before maturity and either pay a
premium or receive a discount according to a set formula based on current
interest rates. Other lenders may also be prepared to negotiate premature
redemption terms. The Authority may take advantage of this and replace some
loans with new loans, or repay loans without replacement, where this is
expected to lead to an overall cost saving or a reduction in risk.

Planned borrowing strateqy for 2015/16

The Corporate Finance Manager will:

e Manage the Council's debt maturity profile, i.e. to leave no one future year
with a high level of repayments that could cause problems in re-borrowing
with the limits stated in this Strategy Statement. Appendix A analyses the
debt portfolio of the Council, as at 31st December, 2014.

e Effect any borrowing that maybe required in 2015/16 at the cheapest cost
commensurate with future risk based on interest rate forecasts.

e Monitor and review the level of variable interest rate loans in order to take

greater advantage of interest rate movements, within the limits stated in this
Strategy.

14
Page 172



e Continue to monitor options for debt-restructuring and debt re-payment.

The Corporate Finance Manager will monitor the interest rate market and adopt
a pragmatic approach to any changing circumstances, reporting any decisions
and actions taken under delegated powers to Cabinet via the Audit Committee.

The Council has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from
the Public Works Loan Board, but it continues to investigate other sources of
finance, such as bond issues and bank loans, that may be available at more
favourable rates.

Loans that present additional risk to the authority, such as lender's option
borrower’s option (LOBO) loans and variable rate loans will be restricted to the
limit on the net exposure to variable interest rates in the treasury management
indicators in section 9.

8.0 Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives
In the absence of any legislative power, the Council’s policy is not to enter into
standalone financial derivatives transactions such as swaps, forwards, futures
and options. Derivatives embedded into loans and investments may be used,
and the risks that they present will be managed in line with the overall treasury
risk management strategy.
9.0 Treasury Management Indicators
The Council measures and manages its exposures to treasury management
risks using the following indicators. The Council is asked to approve the
following indicators:
Interest rate exposures
This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk. The
upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, expressed as an
amount of net principal borrowed will be:
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Upper limit on fixed interest rate exposures £330m £350m £360m
Upper limit on variable interest rate £60m £70m £80m
exposures

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is
fixed for the whole financial year. Instruments that mature during the financial
year are classed as variable rate.

15
Page 173




Maturity structure of borrowing

This indicator is set to control the Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The
upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be:

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 10%
12 months and within 24 months 0% 10%
24 months and within five years 0% 30%
Five years and within 10 years 0% 50%
10 years and above 0% 100%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date of
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.

Principal sums invested for periods longer than 364 days

The purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’s exposure to the risk of
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits on
the total principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be:

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

Limit on total principal invested beyond year end

£10m

£10m

£10m

Any long term investments carried forward from previous years will be included

in each years limit.

Borrowing limits

The Council is being asked to approve these Prudential Indicators as part of

the Capital Programme report.
completeness.

However they are repeated here for

2015/16 | 2016/17 2017/18
Operational boundary — borrowing £304.1m | £321.1m | £333.1m
Operational boundary — other long-term liabilities | £10.1m £10.1m £10.1m
Operational boundary — TOTAL £314.2m | £331.2m | £343.2m
Authorised limit — borrowing £324.1m | £341.1m | £353.1m
Authorised limit — other long-term liabilities £20.1m £20.1m £20.1m
Authorised limit — TOTAL £344.2m | £361.2m | £373.2m

10.0 Other Matters

The WG Investment Guidance requires the Council to note the following three
matters each year as part of the investment strategy:

Treasury Management Advisers

The Council’s treasury management adviser, Arlingclose continues to provide
advice and information on the Council’s investment and borrowing activities,
although responsibility for final decision making remains with the Council and
its officers. The services received include:

16
Page 174



e advice and guidance on relevant policies, strategies and reports,
e advice on investment decisions,

¢ notification of credit ratings and changes,

e other information on credit quality,

advice on debt management decisions,

accounting advice,

reports on treasury performance,

forecasts of interest rates, and

training courses.

The quality of this service is controlled by Financial Procedure Rules

Investment training

The needs of the Council’s treasury management staff for training in investment
management are assessed as part of the staff appraisal process, and
additionally when the responsibilities of individual members of staff change.

Staff regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided by
Arlingclose and CIPFA. Relevant staff are also encouraged to study
professional qualifications from CIPFA and other appropriate organisations.

Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need

The Authority may, from time to time, borrow in advance of need, where this is
expected to provide the best long term value for money. Since amounts
borrowed will be invested until spent, the Authority is aware that it will be
exposed to the risk of loss of the borrowed sums, and the risk that investment
and borrowing interest rates may change in the intervening period. These
risks will be managed as part of the Authority’s overall management of its
treasury risks.

The total amount borrowed will not exceed the authorised borrowing limit of
£344.2 million. The maximum period between borrowing and expenditure is
expected to be two years, although the Authority is not required to link
particular loans with particular items of expenditure.

Other Options Considered

The WG Investment Guidance and the CIPFA Code of Practice do not prescribe
any particular treasury management strategy for local authorities to adopt. The
Corporate Finance Manager, believes that the above strategy represents an
appropriate balance between risk management and cost effectiveness. Some
alternative strategies, with their financial and risk management implications, are
listed in the following table.

17
Page 175



Alternative

Impact on income and
expenditure

Impact on risk
management

Invest in a narrower range of
counterparties and/or for shorter
periods.

Interest income will be lower

Reduced risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Invest in a wider range of
counterparties and/or for longer
periods.

Interest income will be higher

Increased risk of losses from
credit related defaults

Borrow additional sums at long-
term fixed interest rates

Debt interest costs will rise;
this is unlikely to be offset by
higher investment income

Higher investment balance
leading to a higher impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be more certain

Borrow short-term or variable
loans instead of long-term fixed
rates

Debt interest costs will
initially be lower

Increases in debt interest
costs will be broadly offset by
rising investment income in
the medium term, but long
term costs will be less certain

Reduce level of borrowing if debt
rescheduling costs weren’t
prohibitive

Saving on debt interest is
likely to exceed lost
investment income

Reduced investment balance
leading to a lower impact in
the event of a default;
however long-term interest
costs will be less certain

18
Page 176




APPENDIX A — DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

Debt Maturity Profile

£m 45

10

© N ©
R R SEIRC R RS (RS
S S P

19
Page 177




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Council Minutes
	10 COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for COUNCIL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2015/16

	11 Council Fund Capital Programme 2015/16 and Indicative Funding to 2018/19
	Enc. 1 for Council Fund Capital Programme 2015/16

	12 Housing Revenue Account 2015/16 & Capital Programme 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for Housing Revenue Account 2015/16 & Capital Programme 2015/16
	Enc. 2 for Housing Revenue Account 2015/16 & Capital Programme 2015/16
	Enc. 3 for Housing Revenue Account 2015/16 & Capital Programme 2015/16

	13 Prudential Indicators 2015/16 - 2017/18 and Revision of 2014/15 Prudential Indicators
	Enc. 1 for Prudential Indicators 2014/15 to 2016/17

	14 Minimum Revenue Provision  - 2015/16 Policy
	Enc. 1 for Minimum Revenue Provision 2014

	15 Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16
	Enc. 1 for Treasury Management Strategy 2015/16


